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CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Various statements in this annual report on Form 10-K contain or may contain forward-looking statements that are subject to known and 
unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which may cause actual results, performance or achievements to be materially different from 
any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. These forward-looking 
statements were based on various factors and were derived utilizing numerous assumptions and other factors that could cause our actual 
results to differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements. These factors include, but are not limited to, our history of losses 
and declining sales, our ability to raise sufficient capital to fund our operating losses, increase our net sales to a level which funds our 
operating expenses, economic, political and market conditions and fluctuations, competition, and other factors. Most of these factors are 
difficult to predict accurately and are generally beyond our control. You should consider the areas of risk described in connection with any 
forward-looking statements that may be made herein. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements 
and readers should carefully review this annual report on Form 10-K in its entirety, including the risks described in Item 1A. Risk Factors. 
Except for our ongoing obligations to disclose material information under the Federal securities laws, we undertake no obligation to release 
publicly any revisions to any forward-looking statements, to report events or to report the occurrence of unanticipated events. These 
forward-looking statements speak only as of the date of this annual report on Form 10-K, and you should not rely on these statements 
without also considering the risks and uncertainties associated with these statements and our business.

OTHER PERTINENT INFORMATION

Unless specifically set forth to the contrary, “DirectView,” “we,” “us,” “our” and similar terms refer to DirectView Holdings, Inc., a Nevada 
corporation, and each of our subsidiaries.

When used in this report the following terms have the following meanings related to our subsidiaries.

● “DirectView Video” refers to DirectView Video Technologies, Inc. a company organized under the laws of the state of Florida.

● “DirectView Security” refers to DirectView Security Systems, Inc. a company organized under the laws of the state of Florida.

● “Ralston” refers to Ralston Communication Services, Inc. a company organized under the laws of the state of Florida.

● “Meeting Technologies” refers to Meeting Technologies Inc., a company organized under the laws of the state of Delaware.
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PART I

Item 1. Business.

Corporate History

We were incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware on October 6, 2006. In October 2006 we acquired Ralston Communications 
and Meeting Technologies from DirectView, Inc., a Nevada corporation of which our executive officers and directors were officers and 
directors immediately prior to such acquisition, in exchange for the assumption by us of these subsidiaries working capital deficiencies and 
any and all trade credit and other liabilities. Immediately prior to this transaction, in conjunction with the acquisition by DirectView, Inc. of 
all of the stock of another entity which resulted in a change of control of DirectView, Inc., our executive officers and directors resigned from 
their positions with DirectView, Inc. Both Ralston Communications and Meeting Technologies had historically provided the video 
conferencing services we continue to provide. Thereafter, in February 2007 we formed DirectView Security and in July 2007 we formed 
DirectView Video. On March 14, 2014, the Board of Directors and the majority shareholders approved and ratified the Company’s 
reincorporation merger from Delaware to Nevada, amongst other corporate actions disclosed in the Company’s Information Statement on 
Schedule 14C filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 8, 2014. In March of 2015, the Company completed a 1 for 30 
reverse stock split of its common stock.

Organization

Directview Holdings, Inc., a Nevada corporation (“Directview Holdings”) was formed in October 2006. At that time DirectView Holdings 
acquired Ralston Communications Services, Inc., a Florida Corporation, (“Ralston Communications”) and Meeting Technologies, Inc. a 
Delaware corporation (“Meeting Tech”).

Thereafter Directview Holdings formed Directview Security Systems, Inc., a Florida corporation (“Directview Security”) as a wholly owned 
subsidiary in February 2007 and Directview Video Technologies, Inc., a Florida corporation, (“Directview Video”) as a wholly owned 
subsidiary in July 2007.

In November 2008, Homeland Integrated Security Systems, Inc., a Florida corporation (name changed to DirectView Technology Group, 
Inc. and referred to hereafter as “Technology Group) entered into an acquisition agreement with Directview Video Technology, Inc. a 
Florida corporation (“Directview Video”). The agreement includes a condition to ultimate consummation of the transaction, a 30-day clause 
which provided for termination of the agreement in the event any of the payment or exchanges were not finalized. Technology Group failed 
to pay the consideration within 30 days of acquisition which resulted in a termination of such agreement. Thus the closing of this transaction 
did not occur or consummate. As a result of these transactions and events, Technology Group, Roger Ralston and the DirectView companies 
did not complete the acquisition and integration of the DirectView companies with Technology Group, and there has been no relationship 
between the parties since that time. Mr. Ralston, our CEO, or any of the employees of Directview Holdings do not presently hold any 
position or ownership of Technology Group.

Subsidiaries

DirectView Video Technologies, Inc. - is a full-service provider of high-quality, cost efficient videoconferencing technologies and 
services. DirectView provides multipoint videoconferencing, network integration services, custom room design, staffing, document 
conferencing and IP / web conferencing services to businesses and organizations in the United States and around the world. DirectView 
conferencing services enable our clients to cost-effectively, instantaneously conduct remote meetings by linking participants in 
geographically dispersed locations.

DirectView Security Systems, Inc. - is a provider of the latest technologies in surveillance systems, digital video recording and services. 
The systems provide the latest in onsite and remote video and audio surveillance.

Ralston Communications Services, Inc. - is a full service provider of network services who partners with Sprint and works with other 
carriers such as Verizon and AT&T. The network allows many clients of other Directview Holdings companies to communicate whether 
they need it for DirectView videoconferencing connections or monitoring or DVRs.

Meeting Technologies Inc. - is a company that provides services similar to DirectView Video Technologies, Inc.
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Current Business Operations

Through our subsidiaries, our business operates within two divisions (i) security and surveillance, and (ii) video conferencing services. All 
of these entities combine to provide the services offered by Directview Holdings. None of the employees or officers of Directview Holdings 
provide similar services for any other entity.

Security and Surveillance. Designs and installs surveillance systems, digital video recording and services.

Video conferencing services: Full-service provider of teleconferencing services.

Security and Surveillance

We provide our customers with a range of technologies in surveillance systems, digital video recording and services. The systems provide 
onsite and remote video and audio surveillance. We offer several service options to protect and maintain each company’s security 
investment which includes a customized security system. We assess each client’s security needs and challenges through an on-site survey, 
which is performed by specially trained technicians, consists of a video-taped analysis and in-depth interviews to determine each client’s 
security needs. We also make recommendations for initiating or improving each client’s systems as well as, providing a plan for growth. We 
are able to provide a plan for a simple addition or a major migration to a new platform. We provide the highest quality installations, from 
mobilization to final testing, certification and training. We offer a complete line of non-proprietary products including:

DVR Recorders and Cameras Video Intercoms

NVR Recorders and IP Cameras Laser and Video Beam Perimeter Security

Motion Detection and Thermal Imagery Security Design and Consulting

Remote Control Device Management Equipment Maintenance Service Plans

Access Control Solutions

We have also developed customized software programs and applications to work with the products we offer to customers to enhance their 
convenience and capability. We have developed a mobile application which we call the “DirectView Security App” to enable full remote 
management of deployed surveillance devices including positioning cameras, setting recording parameters, and replay of selected video.

We target businesses of various sizes ranging from residential to large scale businesses. Our main markets can be divided into five 
categories which include:

-Transportation (Airports, Heliports, and Bus Terminals)

-Hospitality (Hotels, Golf Courses, and Bar/Restaurant)

-Industrial (Warehouse, Storage, and Manufacturing)

-Educational (Daycare, Private Schools, Learning Centers/Religious Organizations

-Residential (Condos/Co-ops, Property Management Companies, and Private Homes)

Video conferencing services

We are a full-service provider of video conferencing technologies and services. We provide multipoint video conferencing, network 
integration services, custom room design, staffing, document conferencing and IP/web conferencing services to businesses and 
organizations in the United States and we focus to provide this around the world. We believe that our video conferencing services enable our 
clients to cost-effectively, instantaneously conduct remote meetings by linking participants in geographically dispersed locations. Our 
mission is to provide customized video conferencing solutions and services to businesses and organizations. From design to installation, we 
strive to deliver products and services that are simple to understand, easy to implement and even easier to use.

Our products and services include the:

● sale of conferencing services based upon usage,

● sale and installation of video equipment, and

● sale of maintenance agreements.

Video conferencing as a medium for business communications has provided opportunities to streamline complex business processes and to 
conduct transactions more efficiently. As a result, sophisticated audio or video-enabled interactive communications have become 
increasingly necessary as companies seek to become more efficient and effective. We seek to employ the technical knowledge of our 
management team to provide our clients with solutions for a wide range of applications suitable for a variety of industries. We have 
installation and integration experience with expertise in one-on-one or large, multi-sided group meetings, and we currently have installations 
ranging from very simple configurations to highly customized rooms with multiple cameras, document presentation stands, recording 
devices, scanners, and printers.
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Initially we provide consultation to address and evaluate the project requirements and to offer expert advice on technology solution for our 
customer’s specific application. We assess the customer’s needs, desires and existing communications equipment, as well as cost-
justification and return-on-investment analysis for system installations. Our products and services include multipoint video conferencing, 
network integration services, custom room design, staffing, document conferencing and IP/web conferencing services.

A multipoint video conference is a video conference involving more than two sites. As a participant speaks, video is switched at all sites to 
broadcast the person speaking by a device called a multi-control unit. This switching unit is sound activated and can distinguish between 
short ambient sounds and long sustained sounds. It can also be set up in a “Hollywood Squares” type of look where all participants see each 
other. The call can also be set in a “chairperson mode” in which all sites see only the person heading the call. We offer multipoint bridge 
services to tie all of the locations, and we control this multipoint bridge. We outsource the remote access services which are incorporated 
into these multipoint video conferences to a variety of third party providers. We have no fixed agreements with such third party providers.
Our base standard price is from $125 to $150 per hour per location which includes all costs related to these services. Where the client 
requests, we can staff a client assignment with one of our employees to manage all of the client’s video conferencing needs. The cost of this 
technical support varies from assignment to assignment.

We offer a wide variety of network integration services to support our clients’ planning, design, and implementation efforts in deploying 
new network technologies such as Internet protocol (IP), integrated services digital network (ISDN), a T-1 data transfer system or working 
with their existing network infrastructure. Our network integration services are designed to be comprehensive to ensure that all unique 
collaboration needs are met. Our services can include a full menu of services from initial order coordination with outside contractors or 
providers to liaison with local phone companies, installation, training, or can be customized for a particular job. Whether starting from 
scratch or working with an existing environment we can also provide all aspects of design and installation for video conferencing rooms, 
including room layout, furniture, built in wall monitors, custom audio and video as well as document collaboration such as T120 data 
conferencing and document camera and presentation stands. We will also design computer integration. Costs for these custom installations 
may vary based upon the layout and complexity of the job.

We also offer our clients document conferencing and IP/Web conferencing services. Document conferencing affords the ability to bring 
people together to discuss, review and collaborate as a group, and to make on-line, real-time decisions regardless of the locations of the 
participants. IP/web conferencing services provides the client with a reliable and affordable way to share software applications, PowerPoint 
presentations, or anything running on a personal computer with others in online meetings. With these systems, meeting participants can view 
with clarity what is displayed on a desktop. We utilize third party software and applications such as Polycom and Sony to provide these 
services to our clients.

When a video conferencing system is functional, we also provide training to all levels of the customer’s organization, including executives, 
managers, management information systems and data processing administrators, technical staff and end users. The training includes 
instruction in system operation, as well as the planning and administration of meetings. The training can last anywhere from one hour to two 
days, depending upon the level of training that the client requests or requires. All training costs are built into each sale where training is 
required.

We are also a reseller of video conferencing products, including integrated video conferencing systems, video presentation products, flat 
screen monitors, iPower collaboration tools, Polycom view stations. We sell products from a variety of top manufacturers including Sony, 
Elggen, Fujitsu, Hitachi, JVC, NEC, Panasonic, Phillips, Pioneer, Samsung and ViewSonic.

Suppliers

We are dependent on third parties for the supply and manufacturing of our subassemblies, components and electronic parts, including 
standard and custom-designed components. We generally do not maintain supply agreements with such third parties but instead purchase 
components and electronic parts pursuant to purchase orders in the ordinary course of business. We are dependent on the ability of our third-
party manufacturers and suppliers to meet our design, performance and quality specifications.

Marketing and Distribution

Our security systems division focuses a majority of its sales and marketing efforts in various industries to companies where there is 
space/room to be monitored by our surveillance camera systems. Our marketing efforts are done through direct sales force, referrals and our 
website.
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Our video conferencing products and services are marketed and sold to the commercial, government, medical and educational sectors 
through a direct sales force and through referrals. We currently have three sales agents in our direct sales force that works for commission. A 
majority of our sales comes from word of mouth and referrals. Sales of video conferencing products to resellers are made on terms with 
respect to pricing, payment and returns that are consistent with those offered to end user customers. No price protection or similar 
arrangement is offered, nor are the obligations as to payment contingent on the resale of the equipment purchased by the reseller. There are 
no special rights to return equipment granted to resellers, nor are we obligated to repurchase reseller inventory.

We provide our security and surveillance and video conferencing sales force with ongoing training to ensure that it has the necessary 
expertise to effectively market and promote our business and solutions. In conjunction with manufacturer-sponsored programs, we provide 
existing and prospective customers with sales, advertising and promotional materials. Our technical and training personnel periodically 
attend installation and service training sessions offered by various manufacturers to enhance their knowledge and expertise in the installation 
and maintenance of the systems.

Competition

The security industry is highly competitive. We compete on a local and regional level with a small number of major firms and many smaller 
companies in the installed surveillance system space, and nationally in the direct to dealer space. We compete primarily on the quality of our 
service and the design and reliability of our products. Some of our competitors have greater name recognition and financial resources than 
us. We may also face competition from potential new entrants into the security industry or increased competition from existing competitors 
that may attempt to develop the ability to offer the full range of services that we offer. We believe that competition is based primarily on the 
ability to deliver solutions that meet a client’s requirements and, to a lesser extent, on price. Our competitors in the installed system space 
include Vector Security, American Sentry Guard, GVI Security Solutions, Inc., ADT Security Services, Ltd. (a division of Tyco 
International) and Sonitrol, Inc. There can be no assurance that we will be able to compete successfully in the future against existing or 
potential competitors who are larger or better capitalized.

The market for video conferencing products and services is extremely competitive. Competitive factors include pricing, our reputation and 
ease of use. Our primary competitors include manufacturers and resellers of video communications equipment, some are larger, have longer 
operating histories and have greater financial resources and industry recognition than us. The competitors would include local Bell 
Companies, Polycom and Tandberg.

Since the barriers to entry in the market are relatively low and the potential market is large, we expect continued growth in existing 
competitors and the entrance of new competitors in the future. Most of our current and potential competitors have significantly longer 
operating histories and significantly greater managerial, financial, marketing, technical and other competitive resources, as well as greater 
name recognition, than we do. As a result, these companies may be able to adapt more quickly to new or emerging technologies and changes 
in customer requirements and may be able to devote greater resources to the promotion and sale of their competing products and services. 
There are no assurances we will ever effectively compete in our target markets.

Our Customers

In 2014, one client, Green Ivy Schools, accounted for revenues of $250,082 which is approximately 50% of our total consolidated revenues 
in 2014. In 2015, two customers, Hilton Hotel and JRM Construction accounted for revenues of $419,000 which is approximately 52% of 
our total consolidated revenues in 2015.

Our video conferencing products and services are sold to commercial, government, medical and educational sectors that use technology to 
cost-effectively, instantaneously conduct remote meetings by linking participants in geographically dispersed locations. Our security system 
division provides the latest technologies in surveillance systems, digital video recording and services in any industry, organization and 
companies.

Website

We maintain a website at www.directviewinc.com and www.directviewsecurity.com. Recently, the Company purchased the domain name 
www.directview.com which we intend to make our main website. The Company paid approximately $4,000 to obtain this website.

Intellectual Property

We do not have any intellectual property at this time.
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Employees

We currently have nine employees which includes our two officers; Roger Ralston, CEO and Michele Ralston, CFO both of whom are full-
time. None of our employees are covered by a collective bargaining agreement, nor are they represented by a labor union. We have not 
experienced any work stoppages, and we consider relations with our employees to be good.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

You should carefully consider the risks described below together with all of the other information included in this annual report on Form 
10-K before making an investment decision with regard to our securities. The statements contained in or incorporated herein that are not 
historic facts are forward-looking statements that are subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially 
from those set forth in or implied by forward-looking statements. If any of the following risks actually occurs, our business, financial 
condition or results of operations could be harmed. In that case, you may lose all or part of your investment.

Risks Related to Our Business

WE HAVE AN ACCUMULATED DEFICIT AND WE ANTICIPATE CONTINUING LOSSES THAT WILL RESULT IN 
SIGNIFICANT LIQUIDITY AND CASH FLOW PROBLEMS AND WE MAY BE FORCED TO CEASE OPERATIONS.

We have incurred losses since our inception, and have an accumulated deficit of $23,081,557 as of December 31, 2015. Our operations have 
been financed primarily through the issuance of equity and debt. For the year ended December 31, 2015, net loss and cash used in operations 
were $4,373,018 and $1,263,626, respectively. We are constantly evaluating our cash needs and our burn rate, in order to make appropriate 
adjustments in operating expenses. We anticipate that our cash used in operations will continue to increase as a result of becoming a public 
company as a result of increased professional fees. Our continued existence is dependent upon, among other things, our ability to raise 
capital and to market and sell our products and services successfully. While we are attempting to increase sales, growth has not been 
significant enough to support daily operations, there is no assurance that we will continue as a going concern. If we are unable to continue as 
a going concern and were forced to cease operations, it is likely that our stockholders would lose their entire investment in our company.

OUR AUDITORS HAVE EXPRESSED DOUBTS ABOUT OUR ABILITY TO CONTINUE AS A GOING CONCERN. IF WE 
WERE FORCED TO CEASE OUR BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS, YOU WOULD LOSE YOUR INVESTMENT IN OUR 
COMPANY.

Our revenues are not sufficient to enable us to meet our operating expenses and otherwise implement our business plan. The report of our 
independent registered public accounting firm on our financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2015 contains an explanatory 
paragraph raising doubt as to our ability to continue as a going concern as a result of our losses from operations, stockholders’ deficit and 
negative working capital. Our consolidated financial statements, which appear elsewhere in this Form 10-K, are prepared assuming we will 
continue as a going concern. The financial statements do not include any adjustments to reflect future adverse effects on the recoverability 
and classification of assets or amounts and classification of liabilities that may result if we are not successful.

WE ARE PAST DUE IN THE PAYMENT OF PAYROLL TAXES.

At December 31, 2015 we had approximately $84,700 of accrued but unpaid payroll taxes due the federal government which includes 
penalties and interest. We do not have the funds necessary to satisfy this obligation. If we are unable to raise the funds necessary, it is 
possible that we will be subject to significant additional fines and penalties, Mr. Ralston, our CEO, could be personally subject to a 100% 
penalty on the amount of unpaid taxes and the government could file liens against our company and our bank accounts until such time as the 
amounts have been paid.

WE WILL NEED ADDITIONAL FINANCING WHICH WE MAY NOT BE ABLE TO OBTAIN ON ACCEPTABLE TERMS IF 
AT ALL. DUE TO THE SIZE OF OUR COMPANY AND THE LACK OF A PUBLIC MARKET FOR OUR COMMON STOCK 
IT IS LIKELY THAT THE TERMS OF ANY FINANCING WE MAY BE ABLE TO SECURE WILL BE DETRIMENTAL TO 
OUR CURRENT STOCKHOLDERS.

Our current operations are not sufficient to fund our operating expenses and we will need to raise additional working capital to continue our 
current business and to provide funds for marketing to support our efforts to increase our revenues. Generally, small businesses such as ours 
which lack a public market for their securities, face significant difficulties in their efforts to raise equity capital. While to date we have relied 
upon the relationships of our executive officers in our capital raising efforts, there are no assurances that we will be successful utilizing these 
existing sources. In such an event, we could be required to engage a broker-dealer to assist us in our capital raising efforts. Even if we are 
successful in finding a broker-dealer willing to assist us in raising capital, there are no assurances that the terms of financings offered by a 
broker-dealer will be as favorable as those we have offered our investors to date. While we do not have any commitments to provide 
additional capital, if we are able to raise capital, the structure of that capital raise could impact our company and our stockholders in a 
variety of ways. If we raise additional capital through the issuance of debt, this will result in interest expense. If we raise additional funds 
through the issuance of equity or convertible debt securities, the percentage ownership of our company held by existing stockholders will be 
reduced and those stockholders may experience significant dilution. In addition, new securities may contain certain rights, preferences or 
privileges that are senior to those of our common stock. We cannot assure you that we will be able to raise the working capital as needed in 
the future on terms acceptable to us, if at all. If we do not raise funds as needed, we may not be able to continue our operations and it is 
likely that you would lose your entire investment in our company.
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WE MAY NEED TO RAISE CAPITAL OVER THE NEXT TWELVE MONTHS TO FUND OUR OPERATIONS.

We do not have any additional commitments to provide capital and we cannot assure you that funds are available to us upon terms 
acceptable to us, if at all. If we do not raise funds as needed, our ability to provide for current working capital needs and satisfy our 
obligations is in jeopardy. In this event, you could lose all of your investment in our company.

BECAUSE WE SELL CAPITAL EQUIPMENT, OUR BUSINESS IS SUBJECT TO OUR CUSTOMERS’ CAPITAL BUDGET 
AND WE MAY SUFFER DELAYS OR CANCELLATIONS OF ORDERS. ANY DOWNTURN IN THE U.S. ECONOMY MAY 
ADVERSELY IMPACT NET SALES IN FUTURE PERIODS.

Customers for our products are companies that require teleconferencing equipment. These companies may purchase our equipment as part of 
their capital budget. As a result, we are dependent upon receiving orders from companies that are either expanding their business, 
commencing a new business, upgrading their capital equipment or otherwise require capital equipment. Our business is therefore dependent 
upon both the economic health of our customers’ financial condition and our ability to offer products that meet their requirements based on 
potential cost savings in using teleconferencing equipment in contrast to existing equipment or equipment offered by others.

OUR DEPENDENCE ON A LIMITED NUMBER OF THIRD-PARTY SUPPLIERS FOR KEY SURVEILLANCE, 
TELECONFERENCING AND CUSTOMIZED EQUIPMENT COULD PREVENT US FROM TIMELY DELIVERING OUR 
PRODUCTS TO OUR CUSTOMERS IN THE REQUIRED QUANTITIES, WHICH COULD RESULT IN ORDER 
CANCELLATIONS AND DECREASED REVENUES.

We purchase equipment from a limited number of third-party suppliers. If we fail to develop or maintain our relationships with these or our 
other suppliers, we may be unable to obtain equipment or our products may be available at a higher cost or after a long delay, and we could 
be prevented from delivering our products to our customers in the required quantities and at prices that are profitable. Problems of this kind 
could cause us to experience order cancellations and loss of market share. The failure of a supplier to supply components that meet our 
quality, quantity and cost requirements in a timely manner could impair our ability to deliver our products or increase our costs, particularly 
if we are unable to obtain these components from alternative sources on a timely basis or on commercially reasonable terms. As a result, 
such equipment is not readily available from multiple vendors and would be difficult to repair or replace.

WE DEPEND ON OUR KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL AND THE LOSS OF THEIR SERVICES COULD ADVERSELY 
AFFECT OUR BUSINESS.

We place substantial reliance upon the efforts and abilities of our executive officers, Roger Ralston, our Chairman and Chief Executive 
Officer, and Michele Ralston, our Chief Financial Officer, and a director. The loss of the services of any of our executive officers could have 
a material adverse effect on our business, operations, revenues or prospects. We do not maintain key man life insurance on the lives of these 
individuals.

MANAGEMENT EXERCISES SIGNIFICANT CONTROL OVER MATTERS REQUIRING SHAREHOLDER APPROVAL 
WHICH MAY RESULT IN THE DELAY OR PREVENTION OF A CHANGE IN OUR CONTROL.

Roger Ralston, our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, would have voting power equal to approximately 69.76% of our voting 
securities. As a result, management through such stock ownership rights has the ability to exercise significant control over all matters 
requiring shareholder approval, including the election of directors and approval of significant corporate transactions. This concentration of 
ownership in management may also have the effect of delaying or preventing a change in control of us that may be otherwise viewed as 
beneficial by shareholders other than management.
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Risks Related to Our Stock

OUR STOCK PRICE MAY BE VOLATILE, WHICH COULD RESULT IN SUBSTANTIAL LOSSES FOR INVESTORS.

The market price of our common stock is likely to be highly volatile and could fluctuate widely in response to various factors, many of 
which are beyond our control, including the following:

● technological innovations or new products and services by us or our competitors;

● additions or departures of key personnel;

● sales of our common stock, particularly under any registration statement for the purposes of selling any other securities, 
including management shares;

● negative sentiment from investors, customers, vendors and strategic partners due to doubt about our ability to continue as 
a going concern;

● our ability to execute our business plan;

● operating results that fall below expectations;

● loss of any strategic relationship;

● industry developments;

● economic and other external factors; and

● period-to-period fluctuations in our financial results.

In addition, the securities markets have from time to time experienced significant price and volume fluctuations that are unrelated to the 
operating performance of particular companies. These market fluctuations may also significantly affect the market price of our common 
stock.

WE ARE SUBJECT TO PENNY STOCK RULES WHICH WILL MAKE THE SHARES OF OUR COMMON STOCK MORE 
DIFFICULT TO SELL.

We are subject to the Securities and Exchange Commission’s “penny stock” rules since our shares of common stock sell below $5.00 per 
share. Penny stocks generally are equity securities with a per share price of less than $5.00. The penny stock rules require broker-dealers to 
deliver a standardized risk disclosure document prepared by the Securities and Exchange Commission that provides information about 
penny stocks and the nature and level of risks in the penny stock market. The broker-dealer must also provide the customer with current bid 
and offer quotations for the penny stock, the compensation of the broker-dealer and its salesperson, and monthly account statements 
showing the market value of each penny stock held in the customer’s account. The bid and offer quotations, and the broker-dealer and 
salesperson compensation information must be given to the customer orally or in writing prior to completing the transaction and must be 
given to the customer in writing before or with the customer’s confirmation.

In addition, the penny stock rules require that prior to a transaction the broker-dealer must make a special written determination that the 
penny stock is a suitable investment for the purchaser and receive the purchaser’s written agreement to the transaction. The penny stock 
rules are burdensome and may reduce purchases of any offerings and reduce the trading activity for shares of our common stock. As long as 
our shares of common stock are subject to the penny stock rules, the holders of such shares of common stock may find it more difficult to 
sell their securities.

OUR CURRENT CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND A MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, MR. ROGER 
RALSTON, HOLDS SERIES A PREFERRED STOCK, CONTROLS A SIGNIFICANT PERCENTAGE OF OUR CAPITAL 
STOCK AND HAS SUFFICIENT VOTING POWER TO CONTROL THE VOTE ON SUBSTANTIALLY ALL CORPORATE 
MATTERS.

Roger Ralston, our chief executive officer and a member of the board of directors, controls a significant percentage of our capital stock. 
Accordingly, Mr. Ralston will be able to determine the composition of our board of directors, will retain the effective voting power to 
approve all matters requiring shareholder approval, will prevail in matters requiring shareholder approval, including, in particular the 
election and removal of directors, and will continue to have significant influence over our business. As a result of his ownership and position 
in the Company, Mr. Ralston is able to influence all matters requiring shareholder action, including significant corporate transactions.

THERE IS, AT PRESENT, ONLY A LIMITED MARKET FOR OUR COMMON STOCK AND WE CANNOT ENSURE 
INVESTORS THAT AN ACTIVE MARKET FOR OUR COMMON STOCK WILL EVER DEVELOP OR BE SUSTAINED.

Our shares of common stock are thinly traded. Due to the illiquidity, the market price may not accurately reflect our relative value. There 
can be no assurance that there will be an active market for our shares of common stock either now or in the future. Because our common 
stock is so thinly traded, a large block of shares traded can lead to a dramatic fluctuation in the share price and investors may not be able to 
liquidate their investment in us at all or at a price that reflects the value of the business. In addition, our common stock currently trades on 
the OTC Pink, which generally lacks the liquidity, research coverage and institutional investor following of a national securities exchange 
like the NYSE MKT, the New York Stock Exchange or the Nasdaq Stock Market. While we intend to list our common stock on a national 
securities exchange once we satisfy the initial listing standards for such an exchange, we currently do not, and may not ever, satisfy such 
initial listing standards.
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OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS CAN AUTHORIZE THE ISSUANCE OF PREFERRED STOCK, WHICH COULD DIMINISH 
THE RIGHTS OF HOLDERS OF OUR COMMON STOCK, AND MAKE A CHANGE OF CONTROL OF US MORE 
DIFFICULT EVEN IF IT MIGHT BENEFIT OUR SHAREHOLDERS.

Our board of directors is authorized to issue up to 5,000,000 shares of preferred stock in one or more series and to fix the voting powers, 
preferences and other rights and limitations of the preferred stock. We currently have 51 shares of Series A Preferred Stock issued and 
outstanding. We may issue additional shares of preferred stock with a preference over our common stock with respect to dividends or 
distributions on liquidation or dissolution, or that may otherwise adversely affect the voting or other rights of the holders of common stock. 
Issuances of preferred stock, depending upon the rights, preferences and designations of the preferred stock, may have the effect of delaying, 
deterring or preventing a change of control, even if that change of control might benefit our shareholders.

OFFERS OR AVAILABILITY FOR SALE OF A SUBSTANTIAL NUMBER OF SHARES OF OUR COMMON STOCK MAY 
CAUSE THE PRICE OF OUR COMMON STOCK TO DECLINE.

Sales of a significant number of shares of our common stock in the public market could harm the market price of our common stock and 
make it more difficult for us to raise funds through future offerings of common stock. As additional shares of our common stock become 
available for resale in the public market, the supply of our common stock will increase, which could decrease the price of our common 
stock.

In addition, if our shareholders sell substantial amounts of our common stock in the public market, upon the expiration of any statutory 
holding period under Rule 144, upon the expiration of lock-up periods applicable to outstanding shares, or upon the exercise of outstanding 
options or warrants, it could create a circumstance commonly referred to as an “overhang,” in anticipation of which the market price of our 
common stock could fall. The existence of an overhang, whether or not sales have occurred or are occurring, could also make it more 
difficult for us to raise additional financing through the sale of equity or equity-related securities in the future at a time and price that we 
deem reasonable or appropriate.

WE DO NOT EXPECT TO PAY DIVIDENDS IN THE FUTURE. AS A RESULT, ANY RETURN ON INVESTMENT MAY BE 
LIMITED TO THE VALUE OF OUR COMMON STOCK.

We do not anticipate paying cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future. The payment of dividends on our common stock 
will depend on our earnings, financial condition and other business and economic factors as our board of directors may consider relevant. If 
we do not pay dividends, our common stock may be less valuable because a return on an investment in our common stock will only occur if 
our stock price appreciates.

WE HAVE NOT VOLUNTARILY IMPLEMENTED VARIOUS CORPORATE GOVERNANCE MEASURES, IN THE 
ABSENCE OF WHICH, STOCKHOLDERS MAY HAVE MORE LIMITED PROTECTIONS AGAINST INTERESTED 
DIRECTOR TRANSACTIONS, CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AND SIMILAR MATTERS.

Federal legislation, including the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, has resulted in the adoption of various corporate governance measures 
designed to promote the integrity of the corporate management and the securities markets. Some of these measures have been adopted in 
response to legal requirements. Others have been adopted by companies in response to the requirements of national securities exchanges, 
such as the NYSE or the NASDAQ Stock Market, on which their securities are listed. Among the corporate governance measures that are 
required under the rules of national securities exchanges are those that address board of directors’ independence, audit committee oversight, 
and the adoption of a code of ethics. While we have adopted certain corporate governance measures such as a Code of Ethics, we presently 
do not have any independent directors. It is possible that if we were to have independent directors on our board, stockholders would benefit 
from somewhat greater assurances that internal corporate decisions were being made by disinterested directors and that policies had been 
implemented to define responsible conduct. For example, in the absence of audit, nominating and compensation committees comprised of at 
least a majority of independent directors, decisions concerning matters such as compensation packages to our senior officers and 
recommendations for director nominees may be made by our directors who have an interest in the outcome of the matters being decided. 
Prospective investors should bear in mind our current lack of corporate governance measures and independent directors in formulating their 
investment decisions.
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WE MAY BE EXPOSED TO POTENTIAL RISKS RELATING TO OUR INTERNAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND OUR ABILITY TO HAVE THOSE CONTROLS ATTESTED TO BY OUR INDEPENDENT AUDITORS.

As directed by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the Securities and Exchange Commission adopted rules requiring public 
companies to include a report of management on the company’s internal controls over financial reporting in their annual reports, including 
Form 10-K. In addition, the independent registered public accounting firm auditing a company’s financial statements must also attest to and 
report on management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the company’s internal controls over financial reporting as well as the operating 
effectiveness of the company’s internal controls. We were not subject to these requirements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015. 
We are evaluating our internal control systems in order to allow our management to report on our internal controls, as a required part of our 
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

While we expect to expend significant resources in developing the necessary documentation and testing procedures required by SOX 404, 
there is a risk that we will not comply with all of the requirements imposed thereby. At present, there is no precedent available with which to 
measure compliance adequacy. Accordingly, there can be no positive assurance that we will receive a positive attestation from our 
independent auditors.

In the event we identify significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in our internal controls that we cannot remediate in a timely manner 
or we are unable to receive a positive attestation from our independent auditors with respect to our internal controls, investors and others 
may lose confidence in the reliability of our financial statements and our ability to obtain equity or debt financing could suffer.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

Not applicable to a smaller reporting company.

Item 2. Description of Property.

We currently use general office space in Boca Raton, Florida from a related party. The facility is provided to us at no cost by our CEO and 
director, Roger Ralston. We believe that our facility is adequate to meet our current needs.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

We are not currently involved in any litigation that we believe could have a materially adverse effect on our financial condition or results of 
operations. There is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation before or by any court, public board, government agency, self-
regulatory organization or body pending or, to the knowledge of the executive officers of our Company or any of our subsidiaries, 
threatened against or affecting our Company, our common stock, any of our subsidiaries or of our Company’s or our Company’s 
subsidiaries’ officers or directors in their capacities as such, in which an adverse decision could have a material adverse effect.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.

Not applicable.

PART II

Item 5. Market for Common Stock and Related Stockholder Matters.

Market Price of and Dividends on Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

Our common stock is quoted on the over-the-counter market on OTC Markets OTC Pink under the symbol DIRV. However, the Company 
has had limited trading activity in its common stock and we are unable to provide the range of high and low bids per share of our common 
stock for the applicable periods.

The market price of our common stock is subject to significant fluctuations in response to variations in our quarterly operating results, 
general trends in the market, and other factors, over many of which we have little or no control. In addition, broad market fluctuations, as 
well as general economic, business and political conditions, may adversely affect the market for our common stock, regardless of our actual 
or projected performance.

The closing price of our common stock as reported on the OTC Markets OTC Pink on April 11, 2016 was $0.0024 per share. As of April 14, 
2016, there were approximately 617,104,759 shares of our common stock issued and outstanding and approximately 192 record owners of 
our common stock.
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Dividend Policy

We have not paid any cash dividends to our shareholders. The declaration of any future cash dividends is at the discretion of our board of 
directors and depends upon our earnings, if any, our capital requirements and financial position, our general economic conditions, and other 
pertinent conditions. It is our present intention not to pay any cash dividends in the foreseeable future, but rather to reinvest earnings, if any, 
in our business operations.

Under Nevada law, we may declare and pay dividends on our capital stock either out of our surplus, as defined in the relevant Nevada 
statutes, or if there is no such surplus, out of our net profits for the fiscal year in which the dividend is declared and/or the preceding fiscal 
year. If, however, the capital of our company, computed in accordance with the relevant Nevada statutes, has been diminished by 
depreciation in the value of our property, or by losses, or otherwise, to an amount less than the aggregate amount of the capital represented 
by the issued and outstanding stock of all classes having a preference upon the distribution of assets, we are prohibited from declaring and 
paying out of such net profits and dividends upon any shares of our capital stock until the deficiency in the amount of capital represented by 
the issued and outstanding stock of all classes having a preference upon the distribution of assets shall have been repaired.

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans

On March 13, 2014, the Board of Directors of the Company approved the adoption of the 2014 Incentive Plan of DirectView Holdings, Inc. 
(the “Plan”). There are 10,000,000 shares of our common stock reserved for issuance under the Plan. On the same date, the Company filed a 
Registration Statement on Form S-8 to register with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) 10,000,000 shares of the 
Company’s common stock, par value $0.0001 per share, which may be issued by the Company upon the exercise of options granted, or 
other awards made, pursuant to the terms of the Plan. Please see the Plan as Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 
S-8 filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission on March 13, 2014.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

There were no sales of unregistered securities not already reported on the Company’s quarterly filings on Form 10-Q or on a Current Report 
on Form 8-K.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

Not applicable to a smaller reporting company.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Overview

Our company was formed in October 2006 and immediately thereafter we acquired Ralston Communication Services and Meeting 
Technologies from DirectView, Inc., a Nevada corporation of which Mr. and Mrs. Ralston were officers and directors immediately prior to 
such acquisition, in exchange for the assumption by us of these subsidiaries working capital deficiencies and any and all trade credit and 
other liabilities. Both of these entities had historically provided the video conferencing services we continue to provide. Thereafter, in 
February 2007, we formed DirectView Security Systems, Inc. (“DirectView Security”) and in July 2007 we formed DirectView Video. 
DirectView Security began offering services and products immediately from inception.

Our operations are conducted within two divisions:

● The vast majority of our business is derived from our security division which provides surveillance systems, digital video recording 
and services to businesses, organizations and law enforcement, and

● Our video conferencing division which is a full-service provider of teleconferencing products and services to businesses and 
organizations.

We operate our security division through DirectView Security where we provide a wide array of video and audio hardware and software 
options to create custom security and surveillance solutions for large and small businesses as well as residential customers. The Company 
currently services customers in transportation, hotel and hospitality, education, cannabis, food services, and real estate industries.

We provide our customers with the latest technologies in surveillance systems, digital video recording and services. The systems provide 
onsite and remote video and audio surveillance. We generate revenue through the sale and installation of surveillance systems and the sale 
of maintenance agreements. We source our products from a variety of different suppliers and our product and service offerings include:

DRV Recorders and Cameras Video Intercoms

NVR Recorders and IP Cameras Laser and Video Beam Perimeter Security

Motion Detection and Thermal Imagery Security Design and Consulting

Remote Control Device Management Equipment Maintenance Service Plans

Access Control Solutions
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We have also developed custom software programs and applications to work with the products we offer to customers to enhance their 
convenience and capability. We have developed a mobile application which we call the “DirectView Security App” to enable full remote 
management of deployed surveillance devices including positioning cameras, setting recording parameters, and replay of selected video. The 
DirectView Security App provides full encryption and is compatible with all Apple and Android based mobile devices. We are also in late 
stage development of a proprietary software platform targeted for educational institutions/daycare, aviation, and religious organizations. The 
platform will enable tiered database controlled access to multiple encrypted live streaming videos with audio with full scalability. The 
software will allow these businesses and organizations to provide parents, patrons or customers access to see to view a particular classroom, 
attend a religious service, or watch any activity permitted by the licensor of the software through any internet connected mobile device or 
computer.

We target businesses of various sizes ranging from residential to large scale businesses. Our main markets can be divided into five 
categories which include:

-Transportation (Airport, Heliport, and Bus Terminal)

-Hospitality (Hotel, Golf Course, Food Service and Bars/Restaurant)

-Industrial (Warehousing and Storage, Cannabis Grow House and Dispensary, and Manufacturing)

-Educational (Daycare, Private School, Learning Center/Religious Organization)

-Residential (Condo/Co-op, Property Management Company, and Private Home)

Beginning in 2014, we focused a significant amount of our business development and marketing efforts towards the legalized cannabis 
industry. We see this market as a strong growth area for the Company due to our belief that the political landscape will continue to move 
towards the legalization of marijuana for medical and recreational use across the country. By the middle of 2013, 18 states and the District 
of Columbia have already allowed the production and use of marijuana for medical purposes. Two states, Colorado and Washington, also 
have approved cannabis for recreational use. Additionally, many large security service providers have publicly avoided servicing businesses 
engaged in the sale or growing of marijuana which we believes lowers the competitive landscape.

In addition to conducting direct sales activities to businesses operating in this market, we also focus on partnerships with other service 
providers in the industry that are generally involved in the design and construction of facilities to grow and dispense marijuana. We have a 
preferred provider agreement with Legacy Construction Company of Colorado, LLC (“Legacy”). Under the terms of the preferred provider 
agreement, Legacy directs their retail and marijuana facility construction clients to DirectView for video surveillance and security needs. 
Legacy has over fifteen years of experience and expertise in commercial general contracting with specific experience in the retail and 
medical marijuana industry. Legacy holds a Class A general contractors license in six states including Colorado,Wyoming, Nevada, New 
Mexico, Utah, and Arizona. We also have a strategic partnership agreement with Cannamor, LLC (“Cannamor”), a privately held Colorado 
based consulting company focusing on legal cannabis growing and dispensing projects, where we are engaged as its exclusive security 
solutions provider. Under the terms of the agreement, Cannamor exclusively endorses and recommends DirectView as its vendor of choice 
for the planning and installation of video surveillance, video monitoring, video recording products and related services to its prospective 
clients. Both of these arrangements have led to sales and a number of large potential project leads within our sales pipeline. We continue to 
see this industry as a growing part of our security and surveillance business for the foreseeable future.

In an effort to further expand our market opportunities, in April 2015, we began preparations to develop a unique body-worn-camera 
solution to target law enforcement, business security and homeland security markets. We expect the solution to comprise of a line of body-
worn-cameras integrated with a suite of communications capabilities including high capacity streaming video, Bluetooth®, GPS, push to 
talk, WIFI/4G LTE, and imbedded biometric access. We are also working to integrate the video feeds with backend storage solutions for 
video/audio storage including playback and editing of stored evidence. We have received body-worn-camera prototypes that have been 
manufactured to our design specifications by a large third party manufacturer and we are currently beta testing those prototypes. We intend 
to have that manufacturer produce a finished product upon successful completion of product testing.
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In order to enhance the communications capability of the solution as well as our marketing capabilities, we entered into an agreement with 
xG Technology, Inc. (“xG”), a developer of wireless communications and spectrum sharing technologies, to integrate our body-worn-
camera device and related hardware with xG’s xMax private mobile broadband technology. The planned integration will consolidate the 
private, secure, high-performance communications capabilities of xMax with the features and functionality of our body-worn cameras.

We intend to offer our body-worn-cameras and the related suite of communications and storage solutions to our target customers through 
both direct sales and strategic partnerships with companies that sell complimentary products in the areas of law enforcement, homeland 
security and private security. In addition to our integration agreement with xG, we entered into a co-marketing agreement with PositiveID 
Corporation (“PSID”), a developer of diagnostic testing systems for use by first responders, to jointly market both companies’ products to 
homeland security and first responder markets. We believe that co-marketing and product integration agreements such as these will expand 
the breadth of our product offerings and enable us to leverage the marketing capabilities of our partners to increase sales opportunities upon 
product launch.

Our video conferencing products and services enable our clients to cost-effectively conduct remote meetings by linking participants in 
geographically dispersed locations. Our primary focus is to provide high value-added conferencing products and services to organizations 
such as commercial, government, medical and educational sectors. We generate revenue through the sale of conferencing services based 
upon usage, the sale and installation of video equipment and the sale of maintenance agreements.

Our Outlook

Our net sales are currently not sufficient to fund our operating expenses. We have relied upon funds from the issuance of notes, the sale of 
common stock and advances from our executive officers to provide working capital to our company. These funds, however, are not 
sufficient to pay all of our expenses nor to provide the additional capital we believe is necessary to permit us to properly market our 
company in an effort to increase our sales. We are always looking for opportunities with new dealers to expand our IP based surveillance 
products offerings and plan to evaluate the market for our products throughout 2016 to determine whether we should hire additional 
employees in our sales force. We seek to leverage our current customer base which includes major international hotel chains, well known 
real estate development companies, and respected educational facilities, to build our reputation as a trusted security provider and generate 
customer referrals. Beginning in 2014 we also began targeting our marketing efforts toward the cannabis industry. We see the specific 
security needs of this industry, representing a significant opportunity for sales growth. Each state has specific requirements for security 
which includes extensive video surveillance and perimeter security. Additionally, some larger security companies have been hesitant to enter 
this market up to this point, we believe this will help reduce competitive pressures. While we believe our strategy for growth will result in an 
increase demand for our products and service and generate revenues, no assurance can be provided that we will successfully implement our 
strategy. We are subject to significant business risks and may need to raise additional capital in order to realize and effectuate the above 
strategy.
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Results of Operations

Year Ended December 31, 2015 Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2014

Net Sales

Overall, our net sales for the year ended December 31, 2015 increased approximately 57% from the comparable period in 2014. The 
following table provides comparative data regarding the source of our net sales in each of these periods and the change from 2015 to 2014:

Year Ended December 31, 2015 Year Ended December 31, 2014

$ % of Total $ % of Total Variance

Sale of product 598,774 74% 316,140 62% 89%
Service 205,620 26% 194,704 38% 6%

Total 804,394 100% 510,844 100% 57%

Sales of product for the year ended December 31, 2015 increased approximately 89% as compared to the year ended December 31, 2014. 
Service revenue increased by approximately 6% due to customers increasing their service needs in 2015 compared to 2014.

Net sales increased due to customers’ needs and the Company responding effectively to their orders. In an effort to continue to increase our 
sales in future periods, we believe we need to hire additional sales staff to initiate a telemarketing campaign and to obtain leads from various 
lead sources such as lead generating telemarketing lists, email marketing campaigns and other sources. However, given our lack of working 
capital, we cannot assure that we will ever be able to successfully implement our current business strategy or increase our revenues in future 
periods. Although we recognized increased sales during the year ended December 31, 2015, there can be no assurances that we will continue 
to recognize similar revenues in the future.

Cost of Sales

Cost of product includes product and delivery costs relating to the sale of product revenue. Cost of services includes labor and installation 
for service revenue. Overall, cost of sales increased approximately 11% for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to December 31, 
2014. The following table provides comparative data regarding the breakdown of the cost of sales in each of these periods and the change 
from 2015 to 2014:

Year Ended December 31, 2015 Year Ended December 31, 2014

$ % of Total $ % of Total Variance

Cost of product 354,007 69% 279,766 60% 27%
Cost of service 159,887 31% 182,925 40% -13%

Total 513,894 100% 462,691 100% 11%

During the year ended December 31, 2015, our cost of product increased approximately 27% as compared to the year ended December 31, 
2014. Our cost of services for 2015 decreased 13% as compared to the year ended December 31, 2014.

Total operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2015 were $2,067,172, an increase of $613,887, or approximately 42%, from 
total operating expenses for the comparable year ended December 31, 2014 of $1,453,285. This increase is primarily attributable to an 
increase in rent expense, public company expenses, legal and accounting expenses, marketing and public relations, stock based 
compensation and a decrease in bad debt expense.

Loss from Operations

We reported a loss from operations of $1,776,672 for the year ended December 31, 2015, as compared to a loss from operations of 
$1,405,132 for the year ended December 31, 2014, an increase of $371,540 or 26% for the year ended December 31, 2015.
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Other Income (Expenses)

Total other income was $171,081 for the year ended December 31, 2014 as compared to total other expense of ($2,596,346) for the year 
ended December 31, 2015. An increase of other expense of $2,767,427, for the year ended December 31, 2015 which is primarily 
attributable to an increase in derivative expense, amortization of debt discount and an increase in interest expense.

Net income (loss)

We reported a net loss of $4,373,018 for the year ended December 31, 2015 as compared to a net loss of $1,234,051 for the year ended 
December 31, 2014.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity is the ability of a company to generate funds to support its current and future operations, satisfy its obligations, and otherwise 
operate on an ongoing basis. At December 31, 2015, we had a cash balance of $330,015. Our working capital deficit is $6,845,752 at 
December 31, 2015.

We reported a net increase in cash for the year ended December 31, 2015 of $316,857. While we currently have no material commitments 
for capital expenditures, at December 31, 2015 we owed approximately $126,692 under various notes payable. During the year ended 
December 31, 2015, we have raised $2,296,438 of net proceeds from convertible notes payable. 

Accrued liabilities were $2,024,457 as of December 31, 2015 consist of the following:

● Accrued salaries for certain employees amounting to $1,312,594

● Accrued commissions for certain employees amounting to $60,590

● Sales tax payable of $37,994

● Lease abandonment charges of $164,375

● Accrued interest of $276,791

● Accrued payroll liabilities and taxes of $84,703

● Other rent expenses of $9,000

● Other legal expenses of $66,710

● Other accrued expenses of $11,700

Our net sales are not sufficient to fund our operating expenses. We will need to raise significant additional capital to fund our operating 
expenses, pay our obligations, and grow our company. We reported a net loss of $4,373,018 during the year ended December 31, 2015. At 
December 31, 2015 we had a working capital deficit of $6,845,752. We do not anticipate we will be profitable in 2016. Therefore our 
operations will be dependent on our ability to secure additional financing. Financing transactions may include the issuance of equity or debt 
securities, obtaining credit facilities, or other financing mechanisms. The trading price of our common stock and a downturn in the U.S. 
equity and debt markets could make it more difficult to obtain financing through the issuance of equity or debt securities. Even if we are 
able to raise the funds required, it is possible that we incur unexpected costs and expenses, fail to collect significant amounts owed to us, or 
experience unexpected cash requirements that would force us to seek alternative financing. Furthermore, if we issue additional equity or 
debt securities, stockholders may experience additional dilution or the new equity securities may have rights, preferences or privileges 
senior to those of existing holders of our common stock. The inability to obtain additional capital may restrict our ability to grow and may 
reduce our ability to continue to conduct business operations. If we are unable to obtain additional financing, we will likely be required to 
curtail our marketing and development plans and possibly cease our operations. Furthermore we have debt obligations, which must be 
satisfied. If we are successful in securing additional working capital, we intend to increase our marketing efforts to grow our revenues. We 
do not presently have any firm commitments for any additional capital and our financial condition as well as the uncertainty in the capital 
markets may make our ability to secure this capital difficult. There are no assurances that we will be able to continue our business, and we 
may be forced to cease operations in which event investors could lose their entire investment in our company. Included in our Notes to the 
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2015 is a discussion regarding Going Concern.
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Operating activities

Net cash flows used in operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2015 amounted to $1,263,626 and was primarily attributable to 
our net loss of $4,373,018, offset by depreciation of $8,633, $343,860 of common stock issued for compensation and services, and net 
derivative expenses of $1,479,865, add back of amortization of debt issuance cost and debt discount of $919,034. Net cash flows used in 
operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2014 amounted to $453,155 and was primarily attributable to our net loss of 
$1,234,051, offset by depreciation of $3,112, $470,100 of common stock issued for compensation, and net derivative expenses of $329,535, 
add back of amortization of debt issuance cost and debt discount of $329,565.

Financing activities

Net cash flows provided by financing activities was $1,594,936 for the year ended December 31, 2015. We received proceeds from notes 
payable of $2,296,438 and proceeds due to related parties of $26,940. We made payments of $50,000 related to notes payable and $678,442 
to related parties. Net cash flows provided by financing activities was $455,292 for the year ended December 31, 2014. We received 
proceeds from notes payable of $521,796, proceeds from short term advances of $0 and net proceeds due to related parties of $29,745.

Contractual Obligations

We have certain fixed contractual obligations and commitments that include future estimated payments. Changes in our business needs, 
cancellation provisions, changing interest rates, and other factors may result in actual payments differing from the estimates. We cannot 
provide certainty regarding the timing and amounts of payments. We have presented below a summary of the most significant assumptions 
used in our determination of amounts presented in the tables, in order to assist in the review of this information within the context of our 
consolidated financial position, results of operations, and cash flows.

The following table summarizes our contractual obligations as of December 31, 2015, and the effect these obligations are expected to have 
on our liquidity and cash flows in future periods.

Payments Due by Period

Total
Less than 1 

year 1-3 Years 4-5 Years 5 Years +

Contractual Obligations:
Short term loans- unrelated party $ 146,015 146,015 — — —
Short term loans- related party $ 12,560 12,560 — — —
Operating Leases $ 164,375 164,375 — — —
Purchase Obligations $ — — — — —

Total Contractual Obligations: $ 322,950 322,950 — — —

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our financial statements and accompanying notes are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United 
States. Preparing financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities, revenue and expenses. These estimates and assumptions are affected by management’s applications of accounting policies. 
Critical accounting policies for our company include revenue recognition and accounting for stock based compensation, use of estimates, 
accounts receivable, property and equipment and income taxes.

Revenue Recognition

We follow the guidance of the Securities and Exchange Commission’s Staff Accounting Bulletin 104 for revenue recognition. In general, 
we record revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, services have been rendered or product delivery has occurred, the 
sales price to the customer is fixed or determinable, and collectibility is reasonably assured. When a customer order contains multiple items 
such as hardware, software, and services which are delivered at varying times, we determine whether the delivered items can be considered 
separate units of accounting. Delivered items should be considered separate units of accounting if delivered items have value to the customer 
on a standalone basis, there is objective and reliable evidence of the fair value of undelivered items, and if delivery of undelivered items is 
probable and substantially in our control. The following policies reflect specific criteria for our various revenues streams:
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● Revenue is recognized upon completion of conferencing services. We generally do not charge up-front fees and bill our customers 
based on usage.

● Revenue for video equipment sales and security surveillance equipment sales is recognized upon delivery and installation.

● Revenue from periodic maintenance agreements is generally recognized ratably over the respective maintenance periods provided no 
significant obligations remain and collectability of the related receivable is probable.

Stock Based Compensation

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, issued FASB ASC Topic 718: Compensation – Stock 
Compensation (“ASC 718”). Under ASC 718, companies are required to measure the compensation costs of share-based compensation 
arrangements based on the grant-date fair value and recognize the costs in the financial statements over the period during which employees 
are required to provide services. Share-based compensation arrangements include stock options, restricted share plans, performance-based 
awards, share appreciation rights and employee share purchase plans. Companies may elect to apply this statement either prospectively, or 
on a modified version of retrospective application under which financial statements for prior periods are adjusted on a basis consistent with 
the pro forma disclosures required for those periods under ASC 718. Upon adoption of ASC 718, the Company elected to value employee 
stock options using the Black-Scholes option valuation method that uses assumptions that relate to the expected volatility of the Company’s 
common stock, the expected dividend yield of our stock, the expected life of the options and the risk free interest rate. Such compensation 
amounts, if any, are amortized over the respective vesting periods or period of service of the option grant.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements as well as the reported net sales and 
expenses during the reporting periods. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates and assumptions. We base our estimates on historical 
experience and on various other factors that we believe are reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for 
making judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ 
from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

Account Receivable

We have a policy of reserving for uncollectible accounts based on our best estimate of the amount of probable credit losses in existing 
accounts receivable. We periodically review our accounts receivable to determine whether an allowance is necessary based on an analysis of 
past due accounts and other factors that may indicate that the realization of an account may be in doubt. Account balances deemed to be 
uncollectible are charged to the allowance after all means of collection have been exhausted and the potential for recovery is considered 
remote.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost. The cost of repairs and maintenance is expensed as incurred; major replacements and 
improvements are capitalized. When assets are retired or disposed of, the cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts, 
and any resulting gains or losses are included in income in the year of disposition. The Company examines the possibility of decreases in the 
value of fixed assets when events or changes in circumstances reflect the fact that their recorded value may not be recoverable. Depreciation 
is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the assets.
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Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method as prescribed by ASC Topic 740: Income Taxes (“ASC 740”). It 
requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of events that have been recognized in 
our financial statements or tax returns. The charge for taxation is based on the results for the year as adjusted for items, which are non-
assessable or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary differences arising from differences between 
the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax basis used in the computation of assessable 
tax profit. In principle, deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are recognized to 
the extent that it is probably that taxable profit will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated using tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled. Deferred 
tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except when it is related to items credited or charged directly to equity, in which case the 
deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and we intend to settle 
our current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Pursuant to accounting standards related to the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes, a tax position is recognized as a benefit only if it 
is “more likely than not” that the tax position would be sustained in a tax examination, with a tax examination being presumed to occur. The 
amount recognized is the largest amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being realized on examination. For tax positions not 
meeting the “more likely than not” test, no tax benefit is recorded. The adoption had no effect on our financial statements.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements and Adoption of New Accounting Principles

There are no recent accounting pronouncements or new accounting principles that have an effect on the Company’s financial statements.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have not entered into any other financial guarantees or other commitments to guarantee the payment obligations of any third parties. We 
have not entered into any derivative contracts that are indexed to our shares and classified as stockholder’s equity or that are not reflected in 
our consolidated financial statements. Furthermore, we do not have any retained or contingent interest in assets transferred to an 
unconsolidated entity that serves as credit, liquidity or market risk support to such entity.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

Not applicable to smaller reporting companies.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

See our Financial Statements beginning on page F-1 of this annual report.

Item 9. Changes In and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

Not applicable.
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Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As required by Rule 13a-15 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as of December 31, 2015, the end of the year covered by this report, 
our management concluded its evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures.

Disclosure controls and procedures refer to controls and other procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the 
reports we file or submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time 
periods specified in the rules and forms of the SEC and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, 
including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. 
In designing and evaluating our disclosure controls and procedures, management recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter 
how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives, and management is 
required to apply its judgment in evaluating and implementing possible controls and procedures.

Our management does not expect that our disclosure controls and procedures will prevent all error and all fraud. A control system, no matter 
how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the control system’s objectives will be met. 
Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be 
considered relative to their costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute 
assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, have been detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that 
judgments in decision-making can be faulty, and that breakdowns can occur because of simple error or mistake. The design of any system of 
controls is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any design will 
succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions.

Management conducted its evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures under the supervision of our Chief Executive Officer and our 
Chief Financial Officer. Based on that evaluation, Roger Ralston, our Chief Executive Officer, and Michele Ralston, our Chief Financial 
Officer concluded that because of the material weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting described below, our disclosure 
controls and procedures were not effective as of December 31, 2015.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act. Our management is also required to assess and report on the effectiveness of our 
internal control over financial reporting in accordance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (“Section 404”). Management 
assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2015. In making this assessment, we used the 
criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control - Integrated 
Framework. During our assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2015, management 
identified material weaknesses related to (i) our internal audit functions and (ii) the absence of an Audit Committee as of December 31, 
2015, (iii) a lack of segregation of duties within accounting functions, (iv) insufficient written policies and procedures for accounting and 
financial reporting with respect to the requirements and application of US GAAP and SEC disclosure requirements; and (v) ineffective 
controls over period end financial close and reporting processes. Therefore, our internal controls over financial reporting were not effective 
as of December 31, 2015.
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Management has determined that our internal audit function is significantly deficient due to insufficient qualified resources to perform 
internal audit functions. Finally, management determined that the lack of an Audit Committee of our Board of Directors also contributed to 
insufficient oversight of our accounting and audit functions.

Due to our size and nature, segregation of all conflicting duties may not always be possible and may not be economically feasible. However, 
to the extent possible, we will implement procedures to assure that the initiation of transactions, the custody of assets and the recording of 
transactions will be performed by separate individuals.

We believe that the foregoing steps will remediate the material weaknesses identified above, and we will continue to monitor the 
effectiveness of these steps and make any changes that our management deems appropriate. Due to the nature of these material weaknesses 
in our internal control over financial reporting, there is more than a remote likelihood that misstatements which could be material to our 
annual or interim financial statements could occur that would not be prevented or detected.

A material weakness (within the meaning of PCAOB Auditing Standard No. 5) is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of our annual or interim financial 
statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control over financial reporting that is less severe than a material weakness yet important enough to merit attention by those 
responsible for oversight of the company’s financial reporting.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Projections of any 
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 
that the degree of compliance with the policies and procedures may deteriorate.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during our fiscal year 2015 that has materially affected, or is 
reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information.

None.

PART III

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

Set forth below is information concerning our executive officers and directors:

Name Age Position

Roger Ralston 47 Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of Directors

Michele Ralston 46 Chief Financial Officer, Secretary, Treasurer and Director

Roger Ralston has served as our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer since our inception in October 2006. He has also served as Chief 
Executive Officer of DirectView Video since March 2003, Chief Executive Officer of DirectView Security since July 2007 and Chief 
Executive Officer of Ralston Communications since December 2002. Mr. Ralston is the spouse of Michele Ralston.

In evaluating Mr. Ralston’s specific experience, qualifications, attributes and skills in connection with his appointment to our board, we took 
into account his experience in the technology industry and his knowledge of publicly traded companies.
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Michele Ralston has served as our Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Treasurer and a member of our Board of Directors since inception 
in October 2006. From May 2003 until October 2006 she served as our Chairman of the Board, Secretary and Treasurer of DirectView, Inc., 
a predecessor company. Ms. Ralston is the spouse of Mr. Ralston.

In evaluating Mrs. Ralston’s specific experience, qualifications, attributes and skills in connection with her appointment to our board, we 
took into account her experience in the technology industry and her knowledge of accounting matters.

There are no family relationships between any of the executive officers and directors, except as set forth above. Each director is elected at 
our annual meeting of stockholders and holds office until the next annual meeting of stockholders, or until his successor is elected and 
qualified.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, requires our executive officers and directors, and persons who 
beneficially own more than 10% of a registered class of our equity securities to file with the Securities and Exchange Commission initial 
statements of beneficial ownership, reports of changes in ownership and annual reports concerning their ownership of our common shares 
and other equity securities, on Forms 3, 4 and 5 respectively. Executive officers, directors and greater than 10% stockholders are required by 
the Securities and Exchange Commission regulations to furnish us with copies of all Section 16(a) reports they file. Based solely on our 
review of the copies of such forms furnished to us during the year ended December 31, 2015, none of our executive officers, directors and 
persons holding greater than 10% of our issued and outstanding stock have failed to file the required reports in a timely manner.

Code of Ethics

In July 2009 our Board of Directors adopted a Code of Ethics which applies to our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, 
directors and employees of the Company. We have filed a copy of the Financial Code of Ethics with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission as an exhibit to this report.

Committees of our Board of Directors

Our Board of Directors has not established any committees, including an Audit Committee, a Compensation Committee or a Nominating 
Committee, any committee performing a similar function. The functions of those committees are being undertaken by the entire board as a 
whole.

We do not have a policy regarding the consideration of any director candidates which may be recommended by our stockholders, including 
the minimum qualifications for director candidates, nor has our Board of Directors established a process for identifying and evaluating 
director nominees. We have not adopted a policy regarding the handling of any potential recommendation of director candidates by our 
stockholders, including the procedures to be followed. Our Board has not considered or adopted any of these policies as we have never 
received a recommendation from any stockholder for any candidate to serve on our Board of Directors. Given our relative size and lack of 
directors and officers insurance coverage, we do not anticipate that any of our stockholders will make such a recommendation in the near 
future. While there have been no nominations of additional directors proposed, in the event such a proposal is made, all members of our 
Board will participate in the consideration of director nominees.

None of our directors is an “audit committee financial expert” within the meaning of Item 401(e) of Regulation S-X. In general, an “audit 
committee financial expert” is an individual member of the audit committee or Board of Directors who:

● understands generally accepted accounting principles and financial statements,

● is able to assess the general application of such principles in connection with accounting for estimates, accruals and reserves,

● has experience preparing, auditing, analyzing or evaluating financial statements comparable to the breadth and complexity to 
our financial statements,

● understands internal controls over financial reporting, and

● understands audit committee functions.
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It is our desire to expand our Board of Directors during 2016 to include additional independent directors as well as one or more directors 
who are considered audit committee financial experts. At that time, we intend to establish an Audit Committee of our Board of Directors. 
Our securities are not quoted on an exchange, however, that has requirements that a majority of our Board members be independent and we 
are not currently otherwise subject to any law, rule or regulation requiring that all or any portion of our Board of Directors include 
“independent” directors, nor are we required to establish or maintain an Audit Committee or other committee of our Board of Directors. We 
are uncertain, however, as to our ability to attract qualified independent director candidates to serve on our Board of Directors given that we 
do not maintain directors and officers’ liability insurance.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

Summary Compensation Table

The following table summarizes all compensation recorded by us in each of the last two completed fiscal years for our principal executive 
officer, each other executive officer serving as such whose annual compensation exceeded $100,000 and up to two additional individuals for 
whom disclosure would have been made in this table but for the fact that the individual was not serving as an executive officer of our 
company at December 31, 2015.

Name and principal position
(a)

Year 
(b)

Salary
($)
(c)

Bonus
($)
(d)

Stock 
Awards

($)
(e)

Option 
Awards 

($) 
(f)

Non-
Equity 

Incentive 
Plan 

Compen-
sation 

($)
(g)

Non-
qualified 
Deferred 
Compen-

sation 
Earnings 

($)
(h)

All 
Other 

Compen-
sation

($)
(i)

Total 
($) 
(j)

Roger Ralston (1) 2015 276,924 - - - - -  300,000 (4) 576,924
2014 276,924 - - - - -  387,500 (3) 664,424

Michele Ralston (2) 2015 72,000 - - - - - - 72,000
2014 72,000 - - - - - - 72,000

(1) Accrued but unpaid compensation due to Mr. Ralston during fiscal 2015 and 2014 amounted to approximately $277,000.

(2) Accrued but unpaid compensation due to Mrs. Ralston during fiscal 2015 and 2014 amounted to approximately $72,000.

(3) Represents compensation of 25,000,000 shares of common stock issued at $0.0155.

(4) Represents compensation of 100,000,000 shares of common stock issued at $0.003 for retirement of loans payable.

Employment Agreement with Mr. Ralston

On September 1, 2009, we entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Ralston to serve as our CEO and President. The term of this 
agreement shall be for a sixty-three month period. Mr. Ralston’s present base salary is $150,000 per year, which increases by $50,000 each 
beginning of the year commencing on January 1, 2010 until the term of this agreement expires. During the Employment Term, Mr. Ralston 
shall be entitled to (i) four (4) weeks paid vacation per annum, (ii) an automobile allowance of $750 per month (pro rated) which shall 
increase at five percent (5%) per annum beginning on January 1, 2010 and each year thereafter, and (iii) receive a mobile phone allowance 
of $500 per month (pro rated) which shall increase five percent (5%) per annum beginning on January 1, 2010 and each year thereafter. Mr. 
Ralston is entitled to receive discretionary bonus compensation as determined by the board of directors from time to time. In addition, Mr. 
Ralston shall receive incentive compensation, as defined, computed on a calendar year beginning September 1, 2009. If Mr. Ralston’s 
employment is terminated without cause, upon death or should he become disabled, Mr. Ralston will be entitled to all of his compensation, 
benefits and severance until the date of termination. As defined in the agreement, Mr. Ralston is restricted from competing with us for 1 year 
following such termination.

Mr. Ralston, who has served as our CEO since October 2006, entered into an employment agreement with our company on September 1, 
2009. His compensation is arbitrarily determined by our Board of Directors of which he is a member. The Board considers revenues, net 
income as well as general performance in determining the compensation due Mr. Ralston. The Board of Directors did not consult with any 
experts or other third parties in fixing the amount of Mr. Ralston’s compensation. Effective on September 1, 2010, Mr. Ralston’s 
compensation package included a base salary of $200,000 and company provided for automobile expense and health care benefits. During 
fiscal 2013, Mr. Ralston’s compensation package included a base salary of $276,924 and company provided for automobile expense and 
health care benefits. The amount of compensation payable to Mr. Ralston can be increased at any time upon the determination of the Board 
of Directors.
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OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAR END

OPTION AWARDS STOCK AWARDS

Name
(a)

Number of 
Securities 

Underlying 
Unexercised 

Options
(#) 

Exercisable
(b)

Number of 
Securities 

Underlying 
Unexercised 

Options
(#) 

Unexercisable
(c)

Equity 
Incentive 

Plan 
Awards: 

Number of 
Securities 

Underlying 
Unexercised 
Unearned 
Options

(#)
(d)

Option 
Exercise 

Price
($)
(e)

Option 
Expiration 

Date
(f)

Number of 
Shares or 
Units of 

Stock That 
Have Not 
Vested (#)

(g)

Market 
Value of 
Shares or 
Units of 

Stock That 
Have Not 
Vested ($)

(h)

Equity 
Incentive 

Plan 
Awards: 

Number of 
Unearned 

Shares, 
Units or 
Other 

Rights that 
Have Not 
Vested (#)

(i)

Equity 
Incentive 

Plan 
Awards: 

Market or 
Payout 

Value of 
Unearned 

Shares, 
Units or 
Other 
Rights 

That Have 
Not Vested 

(#)
(j)

Roger 
Ralston 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Michele 
Ralston 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Director Compensation

We have not established standard compensation arrangements for our directors and the compensation, if any payable to each individual for 
their service on our Board will be determined from time to time by our Board of Directors based upon the amount of time expended by each 
of the directors on our behalf. No member of our Board of Directors received compensation for their services for the fiscal year ended 
December 31, 2015.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

At April 14, 2016, we had 617,104,759 shares of our common stock issued and outstanding and 51 shares of Series A Preferred Stock issued 
and outstanding. The following table sets forth information regarding the beneficial ownership of our common stock as of April 14, 2016 
by:

● each person known by us to be the beneficial owner of more than 5% of our common stock;

● each of our directors;

● each of our named executive officers; and

● our named executive officers, directors and director nominees as a group.

Unless otherwise indicated, the business address of each person listed is in care of 21218 Saint Andrews Blvd., suite 323, Boca Raton, FL 
33433. The percentages in the table have been calculated on the basis of treating as outstanding for a particular person, all shares of our 
common stock outstanding on that date and all shares of our common stock issuable to that holder in the event of exercise of outstanding 
options, warrants, rights or conversion privileges owned by that person at that date which are exercisable within 60 days of that date. Except 
as otherwise indicated, the persons listed below have sole voting and investment power with respect to all shares of our common stock 
owned by them, except to the extent that power may be shared with a spouse.
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Name of Beneficial Owner (1)
Shares of Series 

A Preferred
Percent of Series 
A Preferred (2)

Shares of 
Common Stock

Percent of 
Common Stock 

(2)

Roger Ralston 51 100% 102,910,002 16.67%
Chief Executive Officer, President, Chairman

Michele Ralston 0 0% 8,334 *%
Chief Financial Officer, Secretary, Treasurer and 
Director

All officers and directors as a group (2 persons) 51 100% 102,918,336 16.67%

All officers, directors and 5% holders as a group 
(2 persons) 51 100% 102,918,336 16.67%

*represents less than 1%

Description of Securities

General

Our authorized capital stock consists of 1,000,000,000 shares of common stock, par value of $0.0001 per share, and 5,000,000 shares of 
blank check preferred stock, par value of $0.0001 per share, of which 51 shares are authorized as Series A Preferred Stock and 51 shares of 
Series A Preferred Stock are issued and outstanding. As of April 14, 2016 there were 617,104,759 shares of our common stock issued and 
outstanding held by 192 holders of record of our common stock.

Common Stock

Each share of our common stock entitles its holder to one vote in the election of each director and on all other matters voted on generally by 
our stockholders. No share of our common stock affords any cumulative voting rights. This means that the holders of a majority of the 
voting power of the shares voting for the election of directors can elect all directors to be elected if they choose to do so.

Holders of our common stock will be entitled to dividends in such amounts and at such times as our Board of Directors in its discretion may 
declare out of funds legally available for the payment of dividends. We currently intend to retain our entire available discretionary cash flow 
to finance the growth, development and expansion of our business and do not anticipate paying any cash dividends on the common stock in 
the foreseeable future. Any future dividends will be paid at the discretion of our Board of Directors after taking into account various factors, 
including:

● general business conditions;

● industry practice;

● our financial condition and performance;

● our future prospects;

● our cash needs and capital investment plans;

● our obligations to holders of any preferred stock we may issue;

● income tax consequences; and

● the restrictions Nevada and other applicable laws and our credit arrangements then impose.

If we liquidate or dissolve our business, the holders of our common stock will share ratably in all our assets that are available for distribution 
to our stockholders after our creditors are paid in full and the holders of all series of our outstanding preferred stock, if any, receive their 
liquidation preferences in full.

Our common stock has no preemptive rights and is not convertible or redeemable or entitled to the benefits of any sinking or repurchase 
fund.
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Preferred Stock

Our Board has the authority, within the limitations and restrictions in our certificate of incorporation, to issue 5,000 shares of preferred stock 
in one or more series and to fix the rights, preferences, privileges and restrictions thereof, including dividend rights, dividend rates, 
conversion rights, voting rights, terms of redemption, redemption prices, liquidation preferences and the number of shares constituting any 
series or the designation of any series, without further vote or action by the stockholders. The issuance of shares of preferred stock may have 
the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a change in our control without further action by the stockholders. The issuance of shares of 
preferred stock with voting and conversion rights may adversely affect the voting power of the holders of our common stock, including 
voting rights, of the holders of our common stock. In some circumstances, this issuance could have the effect of decreasing the market price 
of our common stock.

Undesignated preferred stock may enable our Board to render more difficult or to discourage an attempt to obtain control of our company by 
means of a tender offer, proxy contest, merger or otherwise, and thereby to protect the continuity of our management. The issuance of shares 
of preferred stock may adversely affect the rights of our common stockholders. For example, any shares of preferred stock issued may rank 
prior to the common stock as to dividend rights, liquidation preference or both, may have full or limited voting rights and may be 
convertible into shares of common stock. As a result, the issuance of shares of preferred stock, or the issuance of rights to purchase shares of 
preferred stock, may discourage an unsolicited acquisition proposal or bids for our common stock or may otherwise adversely affect the 
market price of our common stock or any existing preferred stock.

On January 6, 2016, the Company filed an amendment to its articles of incorporation (the “Amendment”) with the Secretary of State of the 
State of Nevada, which, among other things, established the designation, powers, rights, privileges, preferences and restrictions of the Series 
A Preferred Stock, $0.001 par value per share (the “Series A Preferred Stock”).

Among other provisions, each one (1) share of the Series A Preferred Stock shall have voting rights equal to (x) 0.019607 multiplied by the 
total issued and outstanding shares of common stock of the Company eligible to vote at the time of the respective vote (the 
“Numerator”), divided by (y) 0.49, minus (z) the Numerator. For purposes of illustration only, if the total issued and outstanding shares of 
common stock of the Company eligible to vote at the time of the respective vote is 5,000,000, the voting rights of one share of the Series A 
Preferred Stock shall be equal to 102,036 (0.019607 x 5,000,000) / 0.49) – (0.019607 x 5,000,000) = 102,036).

Fifty-one (51) shares of Series A Preferred Stock were authorized and fifty-one (51) shares of Series A Preferred Stock were issued to Roger 
Ralston, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and a director of the Company.

The Series A Preferred Stock has no dividend rights, no liquidation rights and no redemption rights, and was created primarily to be able to 
obtain a quorum and conduct business at shareholder meetings. All shares of the Series A Preferred Stock shall rank (i) senior to the 
Company’s common stock and any other class or series of capital stock of the Company hereafter created, (ii) pari passu with any class or 
series of capital stock of the Company hereafter created and specifically ranking, by its terms, on par with the Series A Preferred Stock and 
(iii) junior to any class or series of capital stock of the Company hereafter created specifically ranking, by its terms, senior to the Series A 
Preferred Stock, in each case as to distribution of assets upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, whether voluntary or 
involuntary.

The foregoing descriptions of the Amendment and the Series A Preferred Stock designations does not purport to be complete and is subject 
to, and qualified in its entirety by, the Amendment, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit 3.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with 
the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission on January 19, 2016, and incorporated herein by reference.

Anti-Takeover Provisions

Our Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws contain provisions that may make it more difficult for a third party to acquire or may discourage 
acquisition bids for us. Our Board of Directors may, without action of our stockholders, issue authorized but unissued common stock and 
preferred stock. The Series A Preferred Stock and the issuance of additional shares to certain persons allied with our management could 
have the effect of making it more difficult to remove our current management by diluting the stock ownership or voting rights of persons 
seeking to cause such removal. The existence of unissued preferred stock may enable the Board of Directors, without further action by the 
stockholders, to issue such stock to persons friendly to current management or to issue such stock with terms that could render more difficult 
or discourage an attempt to obtain control of us, thereby protecting the continuity of our management. Our shares of preferred stock could 
therefore be issued quickly with terms that could delay, defer, or prevent a change in control of us, or make removal of management more 
difficult.

Disclosure of Commission Position on Indemnification for Securities Act Liabilities

The Articles of Incorporation provide for indemnification of directors and officers against certain liabilities. Officers and directors of the 
Company are indemnified generally for any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, 
administrative or investigative, except an action by or in the right of the corporation, against expenses, including attorneys’ fees, judgments, 
fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by him in connection with the action, suit or proceeding if he acted in 
good faith and in a manner which he reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the corporation, and, with respect to 
any criminal action or proceeding, has no reasonable cause to believe his conduct was unlawful.
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Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act may be permitted to directors, officers and controlling persons of 
the Company pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, the Company has been advised that in the opinion of the SEC such 
indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim for 
indemnification against such liabilities (other than the payment by us of expenses incurred or paid by our directors, officers or controlling 
persons in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceedings) is asserted by such director, officer, or controlling person in connection 
with any securities being registered, we will, unless in the opinion of our counsel the matter has been settled by controlling precedent, 
submit to court of appropriate jurisdiction the question whether such indemnification by us is against public policy as expressed in the 
Securities Act and will be governed by the final adjudication of such issues.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

During 2007 and 2006, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer loaned $39,436 and $14,400, respectively to the Company for working 
capital purposes. This debt carries 3% interest per annum and matures in July 2010. In March 2012, the Company and the principal officer 
of the Company agreed to change the term of this promissory note into a demand note. The amount due to such related party including 
accrued interest at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 was $57,065 and $55,495 respectively. As of December 31, 2014 and 
December 31, 2013, this note was reflected as due to related party.

In June 2009, the Company issued a promissory note amounting $22,000 to the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. This note is 
payable either in cash or security equivalent at the option of the note holder. The note payable bears 12% interest per annum and shall be 
payable in June 2010. During 2012, the Company repaid the Chief Executive Officer $11,157 related to this note leaving the balance of the 
note at $10,843 as of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2014.

Accrued interest on the notes payable to the Chief Executive Officer of the Company amounted to $22,000 and $22,000 as of December 31, 
2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively and is included in accrued expenses in the Company’s balance sheet.

The Chief Executive Officer of the Company, from time to time, provided advances to the Company for operating expenses. At December 
31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the Company had a payable to the Chief Executive Officer of the Company amounting to $163,320 and 
$193,065, respectively. These advances are short-term in nature and non-interest bearing.

The Chief Financial Officer of the Company, from time to time, provided advances to the Company for operating expenses. At December 
31, 2014 and 2013, the Company had a payable to the Chief Financial Officer of the Company amounting to $8,119 and $8,119, 
respectively. These advances are short-term in nature and non-interest bearing.

During the quarter ended June 30, 2012, the Company issued notes payable to the CFO amounting to $429,439 related to the accrued 
salaries. As of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 the balance on the notes payable related to the accrued salaries remained at 
$429,439 for both year ends.

Below is a summary of the accrued salaries due to our executive officers:

Name December 31, 2015

Roger Ralston $ 998,150
Michele Ralston 261,000
Total $ 1,259,150
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Director Independence

The common stock of the Company is currently quoted on the OTC Pink which currently do not have director independence requirements. 
On an annual basis, each director and executive officer will be obligated to disclose any transactions with the Company in which a director 
or executive officer, or any member of his or her immediate family, have a direct or indirect material interest in accordance with Item 407(a) 
of Regulation S-K. Following completion of these disclosures, the Board will make an annual determination as to the independence of each 
director using the current standards for “independence” that satisfy the criteria for the Nasdaq.

For purposes of determining independence, the Company has adopted the definition of independence as contained in Nasdaq Market Place 
Rules 4200.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

The following table sets forth the fees billed by our principal independent accountants for each of our last two fiscal years for the categories 
of services indicated.

Year Ended 
December 31,

Category 2015 2014

Audit Fees(1) $ 20,000 $ 20,000
Audit Related Fees(2) $ 15,000 $ 15,000
Tax Fees(3) - -
All Other Fees(4) - -

(1) Consists of fees billed for the audit of our annual financial statements, review of our Form 10-K and services that are normally 
provided by the accountant in connection with year end statutory and regulatory filings or engagements.

(2) Consists of fees billed for the review of our quarterly financial statements, review of our forms 10-Q and 8-K and services that are 
normally provided by the accountant in connection with non year end statutory and regulatory filings on engagements.

(3) Consists of professional services rendered by a company aligned with our principal accountant for tax compliance, tax advice and tax 
planning.

(4) The services provided by our accountants within this category consisted of advice and other services relating to SEC matters, 
registration statement review, accounting issues and client conferences.

Our Board of Directors has adopted a procedure for pre-approval of all fees charged by our independent auditors. Under the procedure, the 
Board approves the engagement letter with respect to audit, tax and review services. Other fees are subject to pre-approval by the Board, or, 
in the period between meetings, by a designated member of Board. Any such approval by the designated member is disclosed to the entire 
Board at the next meeting.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.

Exhibit
Number Description

3.1 Delaware Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Registration Statement on Form 
10 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 27, 2009)

3.2 Delaware Amended Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Registration Statement 
on Form 10 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 27, 2009)

3.3 Delaware Bylaws (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to the Registration Statement on Form 10 filed with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission on July 27, 2009)

3.4 Plan  of Conversion (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission on July 11, 2014)

3.5 Delaware Certificate of Conversion (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed 
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 11, 2014)

3.6 Nevada Articles of Incorporation (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed 
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 11, 2014)

3.7 Nevada Bylaws (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission on July 11, 2014)

3.8 Nevada Certificate of Amendment (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed 
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 11, 2014)

3.9 Nevada Certificate of Amendment (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K with 
the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 19, 2016)

4.1 Form of Common Stock Certificate (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registration Statement on Form 10 
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 27, 2009)

4.2 Promissory Note (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Registration Statement on Form 10 filed with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission on July 27, 2009)

4.3 Promissory Note (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Registration Statement on Form 10 filed with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission on July 27, 2009)

4.4 Promissory Note (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to the Registration Statement on Form 10 filed with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission on July 27, 2009)

10.1 Subsidiary Stock Purchase Agreement dated August 31, 2006 between DirectView, Inc. and DirectView Holdings, Inc. 
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registration Statement on Form 10 filed with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission on July 27, 2009)

10.2 Lease for Principal Executive Offices (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registration Statement on Form 
10 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 27, 2009)

10.3 Employment Agreement with Roger Ralston (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registration Statement 
on Form 10 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 22, 2009)

10.4 DirectView Holdings, Inc. 2014 Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registration Statement 
on Form S-8 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 13, 2014)
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10.5 Form of Securities Purchase Agreement*

10.6 Form of Convertible Promissory Note* 

10.7 Form of Securities Purchase Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K 
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 17, 2015)

10.8 Senior Secured Convertible Promissory Note(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on Form 
8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 17, 2015)

10.9 Guaranty and Pledge Agreement(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed 
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 17, 2015)

10.10 Security Agreement(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission on April 17, 2015)

10.11 Subsidiary Agreement(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission on April 17, 2015)

14 Code of Ethics (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 14 to the Registration Statement on Form 10 filed with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission on July 27, 2009)

21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 21 to the Registration Statement on Form 10 filed 
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 27, 2009)

31.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 *

31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 *

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002*

32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002*

101.INS XBRL Instance Document*

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document*

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document*

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document*

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document*

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document*

*Filed herein
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be 
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

DIRECTVIEW HOLDINGS, INC.

April 14, 2016 By: /s/ Roger Ralston  

Roger Ralston  
Chief Executive Officer and Director  
(Principal Executive Officer)  

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf 
of the registrant in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s/ Roger Ralston Chief Executive Officer and Director April 14, 2016

Roger Ralston (Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Michele Ralston Chief Financial Officer and Director April 14, 2016

Michele Ralston (Principal Financial Officer)
(Principal Accounting Officer)
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors
DirectView Holdings, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of DirectView Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2015 and 
2014 and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in stockholders’ deficit, and cash flows for each of the two years in the 
period ended December 31, 2015. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are 
free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over 
financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal 
control over financial reporting. Accordingly we express no such opinion. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting 
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall consolidated financial statement presentation. We believe that 
our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
DirectView Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of 
the two years in the period ended December 31, 2015 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America.

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming the Company will continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note 
2 to the financial statements, the Company had a net loss of approximately $4,373,000 and cash used in operations of approximately 
$1,264,000 for the year ended December 31, 2015, and an accumulated deficit of approximately $23,082,000 and a working capital 
deficiency of approximately $6,846,000 at December 31, 2105. These conditions raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. Management’s plans in regards to these matters are also described in Note 2. The financial statements do not 
include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

/s/ D’Arelli Pruzansky, P.A.

Certified Public Accountants

Coconut Creek, Florida
April 13, 2016
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DIRECTVIEW HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash $ 330,015 $ 13,158
Accounts Receivable - net 187,677 60,014
Other Current Assets 47,489 1,659

Total Current Assets 565,181 74,831

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - Net 15,156 9,336
OTHER ASSETS 7,582 796

Total Assets $ 587,919 $ 84,963

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Convertible Promissory Notes, net of debt discounts $ 1,224,309 $ 559,029
Short Term Advances 146,015 146,015
Notes Payable 126,692 176,692
Accounts Payable 158,658 131,020
Accrued Expenses 2,024,457 1,565,139
Due to Related Parties 12,560 664,068

Derivative Liability 3,718,242 1,462,984

Total Current Liabilities 7,410,933 4,704,947

Total Liabilities 7,410,933 4,704,947

STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT:
Preferred Stock ($0.0001 Par Value; 5,000,000 Shares Authorized; None Issued and 
Outstanding) - -
Common Stock ($0.0001 Par Value; 1,000,000,000 Shares Authorized; 456,245,339 
and 14,440,933 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 
2014, respectively) 45,625 1,444
Additional Paid-in Capital 16,180,586 14,054,779
Accumulated Deficit (23,081,557) (18,645,772)

Total DirectView Holdings, Inc. Stockholders' Deficit (6,855,346) (4,589,549)

Non-Controlling Interest in Subsidiary 32,332 (30,435)

Total Stockholders' Deficit (6,823,014) (4,619,984)

Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Deficit $ 587,919 $ 84,963

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTVIEW HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the Years Ended December 31,
2015 2014

NET SALES:
Sales of Product $ 598,774 $ 316,140
Services 205,620 194,704

Total Net Sales 804,394 510,844

COST OF SALES:
Cost of Product 354,007 279,766
Cost of Services 159,887 182,925

Total Cost of Sales 513,894 462,691

GROSS PROFIT (LOSS) 290,500 48,153

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Marketing and Public Relations 443,015 100,975
Rent 97,203 -
Depreciation 8,632 3,112
Bad Debt Expense 627 20,500
Research and Development 21,019 -
Compensation and Related Taxes 790,336 845,799
Other Selling, General and Administrative 706,340 482,899

Total Operating Expenses 2,067,172 1,453,285

LOSS FROM OPERATIONS (1,776,672) (1,405,132)

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES):
Other Income 23,696 170,057
Gain on Extinguishment of Derivative Liabilities - 10,995,882
Change in Fair Value of Derivative Liabilities 40,404 (10,236,272)
Derivative Expense (1,479,865) (329,535)
Amortization of Debt Discount (919,034) (329,565)
Interest Expense (261,547) (99,486)

Total Other Income (Expense) (2,596,346) 171,081

NET INCOME (LOSS) (4,373,018) (1,234,051)

Less: Net (Income) Loss Attributable to Non-Controlling Interest (62,767) 10,087

Net Income (Loss) Attributable to DirectView Holdings, Inc. $ (4,435,785) $ (1,223,964)

NET LOSS PER COMMON SHARE:
Basic and Diluted $ (0.02) $ (0.11)

WEIGHTED AVERAGE COMMON SHARES
OUTSTANDING - Basic and Diluted 257,604,137 11,341,460

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTVIEW HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended December 31,
2015 2014

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss $ (4,373,018) $ (1,234,051)
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Loss to Net Cash Used in Operating Activities:

Depreciation 8,633 3,112
Common stock issued for compensation and services 343,860 470,100
Change in fair value of derivative liabilities (40,404) 10,236,272
Gain on extinguishment of derivative liabilities - (10,995,882)
Derivative liability expense 1,479,865 329,535
Amortization of debt discount 919,034 329,565
Amortization of deferred financing costs 32,729 19,583
Bad debt expenses 627 20,500
Amortization of original issue discount 51,629 -
Non cash interest charges - 23,246
(Increase) Decrease in:

Accounts receivable (128,290) (40,448)
Other current assets (52,616) (1,276)
Other assets - 2,358

Increase (Decrease) in:
Accounts payable 3,943 27,519

Accrued expenses 490,382 356,712

Net Cash (Used in) Operating Activities (1,263,626) (453,155)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of leasehold improvements (14,453) (12,448)

Net Cash (Used in) Investing Activities (14,453) (12,448)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net proceeds from convertible notes payable 2,296,438 521,796
Payments of convertible notes payable (50,000) (36,759)
Proceeds from related parties 26,940 -
Payments to related parties (678,442) (29,745)

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 1,594,936 455,292

Net Increase in Cash 316,857 (10,311)

Cash - Beginning of Period 13,158 23,469

Cash - End of Period $ 330,015 $ 13,158

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

Cash paid during the period for:
Interest $ - $ 12,953

Income Taxes $ - $ -

NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Issuance of common stock in connection with conversion of convertible promissory notes and 
accrued interest $ 619,287 $ 111,710

Beneficial conversion and derivative liabilities on convertible notes payable $ - $ 25,000

Issuance of Common Stock in satisfaction of amount due to related party $ 10,000 $ -

Initial recognition of derivative liability as debt discount $ 1,101,046 $ 719,063

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTVIEW HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT

For the Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

Common Stock Additional Total

$0.0001 Par Value Paid-in Accumulated
Non-

Controlling Stockholders'

Shares Amount Capital Deficit Interest Deficit

Balance at December 31, 2013 7,615,971 762 13,473,651 (17,421,808) (20,347) (3,967,742)

Issuance of Common Stock in connection with the 
conversion of promissory notes and accrued interest 5,516,626 551 111,159 111,710

Issuance of Common Stock for Compensation and Services 1,308,333 131 469,969 470,100

Net loss for the year (1,223,964) (10,087) (1,234,051)

Balance at December 31, 2014 14,440,930 1,444 14,054,779 (18,645,772) (30,435) (4,619,984)

Issuance of Common Stock in connection with the 
conversion of promissory notes and accrued interest 338,687,742 33,869 585,418 619,287

Issuance of Common Stock for Compensation and Services 99,783,334 9,979 333,881 343,860

Issuance of Common Stock in satisfaction of amount due to 
related party 3,333,333 333 9,667 10,000

Adjustment to APIC to reflect change in fair value of 
derivative liabilities upon conversion of promissory notes 1,196,841 1,196,841

Net loss for the year (4,435,785) 62,767 (4,373,018)

Balance at December 31, 2015 456,245,339 45,625 16,180,586 (23,081,557) 32,332 (6,823,014)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTVIEW HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 – BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization

DirectView Holdings, Inc., (the “Company”), was incorporated in the State of Delaware on October 2, 2006. On July 6, 2012 the Company 
changed its domicile from Delaware and incorporated in the State of Nevada.

The Company has the following four subsidiaries: DirectView Video Technologies Inc., DirectView Security Systems Inc., Ralston 
Communication Services Inc., and Meeting Technologies Inc.

The Company is a full-service provider of teleconferencing services to businesses and organizations. The Company’s conferencing services 
enable its clients to cost-effectively conduct remote meetings by linking participants in geographically dispersed locations. The Company’s 
primary focus is to provide high value-added conferencing services to organizations such as professional service firms, investment banks, 
high tech companies, law firms, investor relations firms, and other domestic and multinational companies. The Company is also a provider 
of the latest technologies in surveillance systems, digital video recording and services. The systems provide onsite and remote video and 
audio surveillance.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company, three wholly-owned subsidiaries, and a subsidiary with which 
the Company has a majority voting interest of approximately 58% (the other 42% is owned by non-controlling interests, including 23% 
which is owned by the Company’s CEO who is a majority shareholder of the Parent Company) as of December 31, 2015. In the preparation 
of consolidated financial statements of the Company, intercompany transactions and balances are eliminated and net earnings are reduced by 
the portion of the net earnings of subsidiaries applicable to non-controlling interests.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the 
United States of America (“US GAAP”).

All share and per share amounts have been presented to give retroactive effect to a 1 for 30 reverse stock split that occurred in March 2015.

Use of Estimates

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities as of the dates of the statements of financial condition, and revenues and expenses for the years then ended. 
Actual results may differ significantly from those estimates. Significant estimates made by management include, but are not limited to, the 
allowance for doubtful accounts, deferred tax asset valuation allowance, valuation of stock-based compensation, the useful life of property 
and equipment, valuation of beneficial conversion features on convertible debt and the assumptions used to calculate derivative liabilities.

Non-controlling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company follows ASC 810-10-65, “Non-controlling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements.” This statement clarifies that a 
non-controlling (minority) interest in a subsidiary is an ownership interest in the entity that should be reported as equity in the consolidated 
financial statements. It also requires consolidated net income to include the amounts attributable to both the parent and non-controlling 
interest, with disclosure on the face of the consolidated income statement of the amounts attributed to the parent and to the non-controlling 
interest. In accordance with ASC 810-10-45-21, the losses attributable to the parent and the non-controlling interest in subsidiary may 
exceed their interests in the subsidiary’s equity. The excess and any further losses attributable to the parent and the non-controlling interest 
shall be attributed to those interests even if that attribution results in a deficit non-controlling interest balance. As of December 31, 2015, the 
Company reflected a non-controlling interest of $32,333 in connection with our majority-owned subsidiary, DirectView Security Systems 
Inc. as reflected in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
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DIRECTVIEW HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 – BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The 
Company places its cash with a high credit quality financial institution. The Company’s account at this institution is insured by the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) up to $250,000. For the year ended December 31, 2015 the Company was over the insured limit by 
$58,390. For the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company had not reached bank balances exceeding the FDIC insurance limit. To 
reduce its risk associated with the failure of such financial institution, the Company evaluates at least annually the rating of the financial 
institution in which it holds deposits.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company follows FASB ASC 820, “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures” (“ASC 820”), for assets and liabilities measured at fair 
value on a recurring basis. ASC 820 establishes a common definition for fair value to be applied to existing generally accepted accounting 
principles that require the use of fair value measurements establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosure about 
such fair value measurements.

ASC 820 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date. Additionally, ASC 820 requires the use of valuation techniques that maximize the use of 
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. These inputs are prioritized below:

Level 1: Observable inputs such as quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: Observable market-based inputs or unobservable inputs that are corroborated by market data

Level 3: Unobservable inputs for which there is little or no market data, which require the use of the reporting entity’s own 
assumptions.

Cash and cash equivalents include money market securities that are considered to be highly liquid and easily tradable as of December 31, 
2015 and December 31, 2014. These securities are valued using inputs observable in active markets for identical securities and are therefore 
classified as Level 1 within our fair value hierarchy.

In addition, FASB ASC 825-10-25 Fair Value Option expands opportunities to use fair value measurements in financial reporting and 
permits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value. The Company did not elect the fair 
value options for any of its qualifying financial instruments.

The carrying amounts reported in the balance sheet for cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable, accrued expenses, notes payable and 
due to related parties approximate their estimated fair market value based on the short-term maturity of these instruments. The carrying 
amount of the notes and convertible promissory notes approximates the estimated fair value for these financial instruments as management 
believes that such notes constitute substantially all of the Company’s debt and the interest payable on the notes approximates the Company’s 
incremental borrowing rate.

Accounts Receivable

The Company has a policy of reserving for questionable accounts based on its best estimate of the amount of probable credit losses in its 
existing accounts receivable. The Company uses specific identification of accounts to reserve possible uncollectible receivables. The 
Company periodically reviews its accounts receivable to determine whether an allowance is necessary based on an analysis of past due 
accounts and other factors that may indicate that the realization of an account may be in doubt. Account balances deemed to be uncollectible 
are charged to the bad debt expense after all means of collection have been exhausted and the potential for recovery is considered remote. At 
December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, management determined that an allowance is necessary which amounted to $38,000 at both 
dates. During the year ended December 31, 2015 and the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company recognized $627 and $20,500 
respectively of expenses related to uncollectible accounts receivable.
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DIRECTVIEW HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 – BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Advertising

Advertising, marketing and public relations are expensed as incurred. Advertising, marketing and public relations expenses for the years 
ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 were $443,015 and $100,975, respectively.

Shipping costs

Shipping costs are included in other selling, general and administrative expenses and was deemed to be not material for the years ended 
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Inventories

Inventories, consisting of finished goods related to our products are stated at the lower of cost or market utilizing the first-in, first-out 
method. The Company acquires inventory for specific installation jobs. As a result, the Company orders inventory only as needed for 
installations and there was an insignificant amount of inventory on hand at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014.

Property and equipment and Leasehold Improvements

Property and equipment and leasehold improvements are carried at cost. The cost of repairs and maintenance is expensed as incurred; major 
replacements and improvements are capitalized. When assets are retired or disposed of, the cost and accumulated depreciation are removed 
from the accounts, and any resulting gains or losses are included in income in the year of disposition. The Company examines the possibility 
of decreases in the value of fixed assets when events or changes in circumstances reflect the fact that their recorded value may not be 
recoverable. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the assets. Leasehold improvements are 
amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-Lived Assets of the Company are reviewed for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of 
assets may not be recoverable, pursuant to guidance established in ASC 360-10-35-15, “Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”. The 
Company recognizes an impairment loss when the sum of expected undiscounted future cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the 
asset. The amount of impairment is measured as the difference between the asset’s estimated fair value and its book value. The Company 
did not consider it necessary to record any impairment charges during the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method as prescribed by ASC Topic 740: Income Taxes (“ASC 740”). Deferred 
tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying 
amounts of existing assets and liabilities, and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets 
and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences 
are expected to be recovered or settled. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance, when in the Company’s opinion it is likely 
that some portion or the entire deferred tax asset will not be realized.
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DIRECTVIEW HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 – BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Pursuant to ASC Topic 740-10: Income Taxes related to the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes, the evaluation of a tax position is a 
two-step process. The first step is to determine whether it is more likely than not that a tax position will be sustained upon examination, 
including the resolution of any related appeals or litigation based on the technical merits of that position. The second step is to measure a tax 
position that meets the more-likely-than-not threshold to determine the amount of benefit to be recognized in the financial statements. A tax 
position is measured at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement. Tax 
positions that previously failed to meet the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold should be recognized in the first subsequent period in 
which the threshold is met. Previously recognized tax positions that no longer meet the more-likely-than-not criteria should be de-
recognized in the first subsequent financial reporting period in which the threshold is no longer met. The accounting standard also provides 
guidance on de-recognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosures, and transition. The adoption had 
no effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Stock Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation is accounted for based on the requirements of the Share-Based Payment Topic of ASC 718 which requires 
recognition in the consolidated financial statements of the cost of employee and director services received in exchange for an award of 
equity instruments over the period the employee or director is required to perform the services in exchange for the award (presumptively, the 
vesting period). The ASC also requires measurement of the cost of employee and director services received in exchange for an award based 
on the grant-date fair value of the award.

Pursuant to ASC Topic 505-50, for share-based payments to consultants and other third-parties, compensation expense is determined at the 
“measurement date.” The expense is recognized over the service period of the award. Until the measurement date is reached, the total 
amount of compensation expense remains uncertain. The Company initially records compensation expense based on the fair value of the 
award at the reporting date. The Company recorded stock based compensation expense of $334,100 and $470,100 during the years ended 
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Revenue recognition

The Company follows the guidance of the FASB ASC 605-10-S99 “Revenue Recognition Overall – SEC Materials. The Company records 
revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, services have been rendered or product delivery has occurred, the sales price to 
the customer is fixed or determinable, and collectibility is reasonably assured. When a customer order contains multiple items such as 
hardware, software, and services which are delivered at varying times, the Company determines whether the delivered items can be 
considered separate units of accounting. Delivered items should be considered separate units of accounting if delivered items have value to 
the customer on a standalone basis, there is objective and reliable evidence of the fair value of undelivered items, and if delivery of 
undelivered items is probable and substantially in the Company’s control.

Sales are recorded net of discounts and discounts are determined to be immaterial.

The following policies reflect specific criteria for the various revenue streams of the Company:

Revenue is recognized upon completion of conferencing services. The Company generally does not charge up-front fees and bills its 
customers based on usage.

Revenue for video equipment sales and security surveillance equipment sales is recognized upon delivery and installation. Due to the nature 
of the Company’s business it is not practicable to return products therefore the Company has determined that it is not necessary to provide a 
provision for sales returns and allowances. The Company’s manufacturers provide the highest quality products available. If there is a defect 
in a product related to materials or workmanship the Company extends the manufacturer’s warranty to its customers. To date this process 
has never occurred. Therefore no warranty liability is recorded.

Revenue from periodic maintenance agreements is generally recognized ratably over the respective maintenance periods provided no 
significant obligations remain and collectibility of the related receivable is probable.

Cost of sales includes cost of products and cost of service. Product cost includes the cost of products and freight costs. Cost of services 
includes labor and fuel expenses.
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DIRECTVIEW HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 – BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Concentrations of Credit Risk and Major Customers

Financial instruments which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash and trade accounts 
receivable. The Company places its cash with high credit quality financial institutions. Almost all of the Company’s sales are credit sales 
which are primarily to customers whose ability to pay is dependent upon the industry economics prevailing in these areas; however, 
concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade accounts receivables is limited due to generally short payment terms. The Company also 
performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers to help further reduce credit risk.

During the year ended December 31, 2015, two customers accounted for 52% of revenues. The following is a list of percentage of revenue 
generated by the two customers:

Customer 1 16%
Customer 2 36%

Total 52%

During the year ended December 31, 2014, one customer accounted for 50% of revenues.

As of December 31, 2015, three customers accounted for 65% of total accounts receivable. The following is a list of percentage of accounts 
receivable owed by the three customers:

Customer 1 14%
Customer 2 16%
Customer 3 35%
Total 65%

As of December 31, 2014, three customers accounted for 73% of total accounts receivable. The following is a list of percentage of accounts 
receivable owed by the three customers:

Customer 1 16%
Customer 2 26%
Customer 3 31%
Total 73%

Research and Development

Research is planned search or critical investigation aimed at discovery of new knowledge with the hope that such knowledge will be useful 
in developing a new product or service (hereinafter “product”) or a new process or technique (hereinafter “process”) or in bringing about a 
significant improvement to an existing product or process. b. Development is the translation of research findings or other knowledge into a 
plan or design for a new product or process or for a significant improvement to an existing product or process whether intended for sale or 
use. It includes the conceptual formulation, design, and testing of product alternatives, construction of prototypes, and operation of pilot 
plants. It does not include routine or periodic alterations to existing products, production lines, manufacturing processes, and other on-going 
operations even though those alterations may represent improvements and it does not include market research or market testing activities. 
Per Statement of Financial Account Standards Number 2, the Company expenses research and development cost as incurred.
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DIRECTVIEW HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 – BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related Parties

Parties are considered to be related to the Company if the parties that, directly or indirectly, through one or more intermediaries, control, are 
controlled by, or are under common control with the Company. Related parties also include principal owners of the Company, its 
management, members of the immediate families of principal owners of the Company and its management and other parties with which the 
Company may deal if one party controls or can significantly influence the management or operating policies of the other to an extent that 
one of the transacting parties might be prevented from fully pursuing its own separate interests. The Company discloses all related party 
transactions. All transactions shall be recorded at fair value of the goods or services exchanged. Property purchased from a related party is 
recorded at the cost to the related party and any payment to or on behalf of the related party in excess of the cost is reflected as a distribution 
to related party.

Net Loss per Common Share

Net loss per common share is calculated in accordance with ASC Topic 260: Earnings Per Share (“ASC 260”). Basic loss per share is 
computed by dividing net loss by the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period. The computation 
of diluted net earnings per share does not include dilutive common stock equivalents in the weighted average shares outstanding as they 
would be anti-dilutive. At December 31, 2015 the Company had 1,240,096,048 share equivalents issuable pursuant to embedded conversion 
features. At December 31, 2014, the Company had 69,694,188 share equivalents issuable pursuant to embedded conversion features.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

The Company has reviewed all recently issued, but not yet effective, accounting pronouncements and does not expect the future adoption of 
any such pronouncements to have a significant impact on the results of operations, financial condition or cash flow.

NOTE 2 – GOING CONCERN CONSIDERATIONS

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are prepared assuming the Company will continue as a going concern.  At December 
31, 2015, the Company had an accumulated deficit of approximately $23 million, a stockholders’ deficit of approximately $7 million and a 
working capital deficiency of $6,845,752. For the year ended December 31, 2015 the net loss totaled $4,373,018. The net cash used in 
operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2015 totaled $1,263,626. These matters raise substantial doubt about the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. The ability of the Company to continue as a going concern is dependent upon increasing sales and 
obtaining additional capital and financing. Management intends to attempt to raise funds by way of a public or private offering.  While the 
Company believes in the viability of its strategy to increase sales volume and in its ability to raise additional funds, there can be no 
assurances to that effect. The Company’s limited financial resources have prevented the Company from aggressively advertising its products 
and services to achieve consumer recognition. The consolidated financial statements do not include adjustments to reflect the possible 
effects on the recoverability and classification of assets or the amounts and classification of liabilities that may result from the outcome of 
this uncertainty.
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DIRECTVIEW HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 3 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consisted of the following:

Estimated life December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

Leasehold Improvements 2 years $ 26,901 $ 12,448
Less: Accumulated amortization (11,745) (3,112)
Furniture and fixtures 3 years 2,771 2,771
Less: Accumulated depreciation (2,771) (2,771)

$ 15,156 $ 9,336

For the year ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, depreciation and amortization expense amounted to $8,633 and $3,112 respectively.

In June 2014 the Company negotiated to lease office space and made leasehold improvements totaling $12,448. In August 2015 the 
Company made leasehold improvements totaling $14,453. The Company will amortize the balance on a straight-line basis for the term of 2 
years commencing in July 2014 and August 2015.

In 2014 the Company took occupancy of approximately 3,000 square feet of office space in New York city. The Company negotiated lease 
terms and has recorded rent expense of $5,500 per month for the period of September 1, 2014 through October 31, 2015. In November 2015 
the monthly rent expense increased to $6,460 per month.

NOTE 4 – NOTES PAYABLE

In November 2009, the Company issued unsecured notes payable of $20,000. The note is payable either in cash or security equivalent at the 
option of the Company. In the event the Company repays this note in shares of the Company’s common stock the rate is $0.05 per share. 
The note payable bears 6% interest per annum and matured in May 2010. In January 2010, this note was satisfied by issuing a note payable 
to another unrelated party with the same terms and conditions except for its maturity date changed to January 2011. The note is in default as 
of June 30, 2015 and as of December 31, 2014. In October 2013 $10,100 was assigned to a different note holder. The new note is included 
in Notes Payable. The remaining balance of this note is $9,900 as of December 31, 2015 and as of December 31, 2014.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company entered into demand notes with Regal Capital (formerly a related party) totaling 
$116,792 bearing interest at 12% per annum. As of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 the notes amounted to $116,792 and 
$116,792 respectively.

In November 2014, the Company issued a Demand Promissory Note of $50,000 due December 22, 2014. The interest rate is 10% with a 
minimum guaranteed interest amount of $5,000. The Note Holder granted the Company an extension of due date making the note due 
January 22, 2015. The note was satisfied in March 2015. As of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 the notes amounted to $0 and 
$50,000 respectively.

As of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, notes payable amounted to $126,692 and $176,692, respectively.

Accrued interest on the notes payable amounted to approximately $64,200 and $43,900 as of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, 
respectively and is included in accrued expenses.
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DIRECTVIEW HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 5 – SHORT TERM ADVANCES

During the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 an unrelated party advanced funds to the Company used for operating expenses. 
The advances are payable in cash and are non interest bearing and due on demand. The balance of these short term advances was $146,015 
and $146,015 as of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014.

NOTE 6 – ACCRUED EXPENSES

As of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 the Company had accrued expenses of $2,024,456 and $1,565,139 respectively. The 
following table displays the accrued expenses by category.

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

Operating Expenses $ 87,410 $ 8,700
Lease Abandonment 164,375 164,375
Employee Commissions 60,590 60,590
Interest 276,791 213,473
Salaries 1,312,594 981,908
Sales Tax Payable 37,994 25,674
Payroll Liabilities 84,703 110,419

$ 2,024,457 $ 1,565,139

NOTE 7 – CONVERTIBLE PROMISSORY NOTES

Convertible promissory notes consisted of the following:

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

Secured convertible promissory notes $ 2,507,356 $ 720,269

debt discount liability (1,221,506) (124,527)

debt discount original issue discount (57,352) (16,296)

debt discount deferred financing (4,189) (20,417)

Secured convertible promissory notes– net $ 1,224,309 $ 559,029

During fiscal 2009, the Company reclassified $45,000 3% unsecured notes payable from long-term to short-term. The maturity of these 
notes payable ranged from January 2010 to April 2010 and the notes are in default at December 31, 2012. The Company negotiated with the 
note holder to extend the maturity date and has accrued 12% interest per annum based on the default provision until such time this note is 
extended or settled. In May 2013 the Company and the note holder renegotiated the terms of the note to include features that allow the note 
holder to convert the principal balance of the note into common shares at the conversion price of $ .0001. This note included down round 
(“ratchet”) provisions that resulted in derivative accounting treatment for this note (See note 8). At issuance of the renegotiated note the 
Company recorded a debt discount in the amount of $45,000 which has been fully amortized as of December 31, 2013. In June 2013 the 
note holder converted $764 into common shares at the contractual rate of $.0001per share. In March 2014 the note holder converted an 
additional $990 into common shares at the contractual rate of $.0001 per share. In October 2014 the note holder assigned $20,000 of the 
note balance to a third party. The balance of the unsecured note payable amounted to $23,246 as of December 31, 2015 and $43,246 as of 
December 31, 2014.
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DIRECTVIEW HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 7 – CONVERTIBLE PROMISSORY NOTES (continued)

Senior secured promissory notes aggregating an original principal of $85,500 were issued in 2008. These notes are payable either in cash or 
security equivalent at the option of the Company. The notes payable bear 8% interest per annum and are payable on April 1, 2011. The 
principal and accrued interest is convertible at the option of the note holder into shares of our common stock at a conversion price of $0.50 
per share. In July 2013, the Company reclassified the balance of these notes totaling $17,000 to Convertible Promissory Notes from Notes 
Payable. In May 2013 the Company and the note holder renegotiated the terms of the note to include features that allow the note holder to 
convert the principal balance of the note into common shares at the conversion price of $.0001.

This note included down round “Ratchet” provisions that resulted in derivative accounting treatment for this note (See note 8). At issuance 
of the renegotiated note the Company recorded a debt discount in the amount of $17,000 which has been fully amortized as of December 31, 
2013. In July 2013 the note holder converted $764 into 254,667 common shares. In March 2014 the note holder converted an additional 
$990 into common shares at the contractual rate of $.003 per share. In May 2015 the note holder converted the remaining balance of 
$15,246 into common shares at the contractual rate of $.003 per share. The balance of the unsecured note payable amounted to $0 as of 
December 31, 2015 and $15,246 as of December 31, 2014.

August 30, 2013 the Company issued an $8,000 6% convertible debenture with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture 
converts at $.0001. The debt discount was amortized over the term of the note. This note included down round (“Ratchet”) provisions that 
resulted in derivative accounting treatment for this note (See note 8). In April 2014 the note holder converted $1,500 into common shares at 
the contractual rate of $.0001 per share. In June 2015 the note holder converted the remaining balance of $6,500 into common shares at the 
contractual rate of $.00096 per share. The balance of the convertible debenture is $0 as of December 31, 2015 and as of December 31, 2014.

On October 10, 2013 the Company issued a $10,000 6% convertible debenture with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture 
converts at $.00075. The Company recorded a debt discount of $8,333 upon issuance of this note. The debt discount was amortized over the 
term of the note. This note included down round (“Ratchet”) provisions that resulted in derivative accounting treatment for this note (See 
note 7). The balance of the convertible debenture is $10,000 as of December 31, 2015 and as of December 31, 2014. In connection herewith, 
the Company recorded a derivative liability and an offsetting debt discount of $8,333 (see Note 8).

On December 11, 2013 the Company issued a $25,000 6% convertible debenture with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture 
converts at $.0008. The debt discount was amortized over the term of the note. This note included down round (“Ratchet”) provisions that 
resulted in derivative accounting treatment for this note (See note 8). In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability 
and an offsetting debt discount of $23,958 (see Note 8). The balance of this convertible debenture is $25,000 as of December 31, 2015 and 
as of December 31, 2014.

On January 16, 2014 the Company issued a $25,000 6% convertible debenture with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture 
converts at 50% of the lowest trading price during the ten trading days prior to the conversion date. The Company recorded a debt discount 
of $25,000 with the difference of $26,848 recorded as a derivative expense. The debt discount was amortized over the term of the note. This 
note included down round (“Ratchet”) provisions that resulted in derivative accounting treatment for this note (See note 8). In connection 
herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability and an offsetting debt discount of $51,848 (see Note 8). The balance of this 
convertible debenture is $25,000 as of December 31, 2015 and as of December 31, 2014.

In March 2014 the Company issued three $50,000 8% convertible debentures with a one year maturity date. Each note is convertible at a 
contractual rate of $.0175 which exceeded the quoted stock price on the date of the issuance of the convertible debentures. The balance of 
these three notes was $150,000 as of December 31, 2015 and as of December 31, 2014.

On April 11, 2014 the Company issued an 8% original issue discount (OID) senior secured convertible promissory note with a principal 
balance of $367,754 with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at $.0175. Due to certain ratchet provisions 
contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection 
herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of $266,285 and a debt discount of $271,285 (see Note 8). The Company also 
recorded OID of $28,965. The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the term of the note. This note included down round 
(“Ratchet”) provisions that resulted in derivative accounting treatment for this note (See note 8). In December 2014 the note holder assigned 
$25,000 of the principal balance of the note to a third party. In February 2015 the note holder assigned $25,000 and $50,000 of the principal 
balance of the note to two different third party entities. In the period of January through March 2015 the note holder converted $47,651 into 
4,918,166 common shares at the contractual rate ranging from $.0072 to $.027 per share.
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DIRECTVIEW HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 7 – CONVERTIBLE PROMISSORY NOTES (continued)

In the period of April through June 2015 the note holder converted $171,961 into 104,386,160 common shares at the contractual rate 
ranging from $.00186 to $.00216 per share. After assignment of $75,000 and the conversions into common shares the balance of this 
convertible debenture as of June 30, 2015 is $6,142. The balance of the convertible debenture as of December 31, 2014 is $300,754. The 
balance net of debt discount and deferred financing is $0 and $240,820 as of June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively.

On October 8, 2014 the Company issued an 8% original issue discount (OID) senior secured convertible promissory note with a principal 
balance of $81,522 with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at the lower of $.0025 or 60% of the lowest trading 
price during the 25 days prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company 
accounted for this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of 
$84,250 and a debt discount of $75,000 (see Note 8). The Company also recorded OID of $6,522. The OID and debt discount are being 
amortized over the term of the note. In April 2015 the note holder assigned $15,000 of the principal balance of the note to a third party. In 
July 2015 the note holder converted $66,522 into 26,373,441 common shares at the contractual rate of $.00258 per share. The balance of 
this convertible debenture as of September 30, 2015 is $0 and $81,522 as of December 31, 2014. The balance net of debt discount and 
deferred financing is $0 and $3,130 as of September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively.

In May 2015 a note holder converted a $15,000 assigned note balance into 9,722,222 common shares at a contractual rate ranging from 
$.0012 to $.00216 leaving the note balance at $0 as of September 30, 2015.

On October 27, 2014 the Company issued an 8% original issue discount (OID) senior secured convertible promissory note with a principal 
balance of $21,600 with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at the lower of $.0025 or 60% of the lowest trading 
price during the 25 days prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company 
accounted for this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of 
$311,662 and a debt discount of $18,400 (see Note 8). The Company also recorded OID of $1,600. The OID and debt discount are being 
amortized over the term of the note. The balance of this convertible debenture as of December 31, 2015 and as of December 31, 2014 is 
$21,600. The balance net of debt discount and deferred financing is $21,600 and $4,934 as of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, 
respectively.

On December 19, 2014 the Company issued an 8% original issue discount (OID) senior secured convertible promissory note with a 
principal balance of $27,174 with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at the lower of $.0025 or 60% of the lowest 
trading price during the 25 days prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the 
Company accounted for this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability 
of $5,017 and a debt discount of $5,017 (see Note 8). The Company also recorded OID of $2,000. The OID and debt discount are being 
amortized over the term of the note. The balance of this convertible debenture as of December 31, 2015 and as of December 31, 2014 is 
$27,174. The balance net of debt discount and deferred financing is $27,174 and $20,926 as of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, 
respectively.

On December 19, 2014 a note holder assigned $25,000 to another note holder. On December 29, 2014 $10,773 was converted into 664,973 
shares of common stock at a contractual rate of $.0162. In February 2015 a note holder assigned an additional $25,000 to the same assignee. 
The note holder converted $13,831 into 4,619,339 common shares at the contractual rate ranging from $.0054 to $.027 per share. In 
September 2015 the balance of the convertible debenture was written off leaving a balance of $0 and $14,227 as of September 30, 2015 and 
December 31, 2014, respectively.

In October 2014 a note holder assigned $20,000 of principal balance and $4,489 of an accrued interest balance to a third party. In January 
2015 the note holder converted $1,000 into 333,333 common shares at the contractual rate of $.003. In March 2015 the note holder 
converted $1,300 into 1,300,000 common shares at the contractual rate of $.001. In April and May 2015 the note holder converted $17,200 
into 13,900,000 common shares at the contractual rate ranging from $.0008 to $.00156 per share. The balance of the unsecured note payable 
amounted to $4,989 and $24,489 as of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively.
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DIRECTVIEW HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 7 – CONVERTIBLE PROMISSORY NOTES (continued)

In February 2015 a note holder assigned $50,000 of principal balance of a convertible debenture to a third party. In March 2015 the note 
holder converted $4,125 of principal balance, $3,375 of accrued interest and $1,220 of fees into 4,844,633 common shares at the contractual 
rate of $.0072. In the period of April through May 2015 the note holder converted $38,250 of principal balance, $909 of accrued interest and 
$7,320 of fees into 37,148,448 common shares at the contractual rate ranging from $.00096 to $.075 per share. In August 2015 the note 
holder converted $7,625 of principle balance, $50 of accrued interest and $156 of fees into 2,900,325 common shares at the contractual rate 
of $.0027per share. The balance of the unsecured note payable amounted to $0 as of September 30, 2015.

On February 11, 2015 the Company issued an 8% original issue discount (OID) senior secured convertible promissory note with a principal 
balance of $54,348 with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at the lower of $.0025 or 60% of the lowest trading 
price during the 25 days prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory the Company 
accounted for this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of 
$119,940, a debt discount of $50,348 (see Note 8), and derivative expense of $69,940. The Company also recorded OID of $4,000. The OID 
and debt discount are being amortized over the term of the note. In June 2015 the note holder assigned the balance of the note and accrued 
interest of $4,348 to a third party totaling a new note balance of $58,696 as of June 30, 2015. In August 2015 the note holder converted 
$10,000 of principle balance into 7,246,377 common shares at the contractual rate of $.00138 per share. In September 2015 the note holder 
converted $24,000 of principle balance into 17,391,304 common shares at the contractual rate of $.00138 per share. In October 2015 the 
note holder converted an additional $10,000 of principle balance into 7,936,508 common shares at the contractual rate of $.00126 per share. 
The balance of the unsecured note payable amounted to $14,696 as of December 31, 2015.

On April 8, 2015 the Company issued a 5% original issue discount (OID) senior secured convertible promissory note with a principal 
balance of $52,500 with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 55% of the lowest trading price during the 25 days 
prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this 
conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of $86,506, a debt discount 
of $50,000 (see Note 8), and derivative expense of $36,506. The Company also recorded OID of $2,500 and deferred financing of $5,000. 
The OID, deferred financing and debt discount are being amortized over the term of the note. In October 2015 the note holder converted 
$26,250 of principle balance into 23,494,259 common shares at contractual rates ranging from $.00116 to $.0023 per share. In November 
the note holder converted $10,000 of principle balance into 8,658,009 common shares at the contractual rate of $.00116 per share. In 
December 2015 the note holder converted the remaining principle balance of $16,250 into 14,628,623 common shares at contractual rates 
ranging from $.00127 to $.00132 per share. The balance of the senior secured convertible promissory note amounted to $0 as of December 
31, 2015.

On May 5, 2015 the Company issued a 5% original issue discount (OID) convertible promissory note with a principal balance of $115,789 
with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 70% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. 
Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a 
derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of $147,775, a debt discount of $110,000 (see Note 
8), and derivative expense of $37,775. The Company also recorded OID of $5,789 and deferred financing of $10,000. The OID, deferred 
financing and debt discount are being amortized over the term of the note. In December 2015 the note holder converted $23,000 of principle 
balance into 14,285,174 common shares at the contractual rate of $.00161 per share. The balance of the convertible promissory note 
amounted to $92,789 as of December 31, 2015. The balance of the convertible promissory note net of debt discount, deferred financing and 
OID as of December 31, 2015 amounted to $45,619.

On May 15, 2015 the Company issued a 5% original issue discount (OID) convertible promissory note with a principal balance of $52,632 
with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 70% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. 
Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a 
derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of $67,171, a debt discount of $50,000 (see Note 8), 
and derivative expense of $17,171. The Company also recorded OID of $2,632. The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the 
term of the note. The balance of the convertible promissory note amounted to $52,632 as of December 31, 2015. The balance of the 
convertible promissory note net of debt discount and OID as of December 31, 2015 amounted to $32,895.
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DIRECTVIEW HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 7 – CONVERTIBLE PROMISSORY NOTES (continued)

On May 27, 2015 the Company issued a 5% original issue discount (OID) convertible promissory note with a principal balance of $52,632 
with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 70% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. 
Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a 
derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of $67,171, a debt discount of $50,000 (see Note 8), 
and derivative expense of $17,171. The Company also recorded OID of $2,632. The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the 
term of the note. The balance of the convertible promissory note amounted to $52,632 as of December 31, 2015. The balance of the 
convertible promissory note net of debt discount and OID as of December 31, 2015 amounted to $31,433.

On June 5, 2015 the Company issued a 5% original issue discount (OID) convertible promissory note with a principal balance of $52,632 
with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 70% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. 
Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a 
derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of $67,171, a debt discount of $50,000 (see Note 8), 
and derivative expense of $17,171. The Company also recorded OID of $2,632. The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the 
term of the note. The balance of the convertible promissory note amounted to $52,632 as of December 31, 2015. The balance of the 
convertible promissory note net of debt discount and OID as of December 31, 2015 amounted to $29,386.

On June 15, 2015 the Company issued a 5% original issue discount (OID) convertible promissory note with a principal balance of $157,895 
with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 70% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. 
Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a 
derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of $201,512, a debt discount of $142,500 (see Note 
8), and derivative expense of $59,406. The Company also recorded OID of $7,500 and deferred financing of $1,500. The OID, deferred 
financing and debt discount are being amortized over the term of the note. The balance of the convertible promissory note amounted to 
$157,895 as of December 31, 2015. The balance of the convertible promissory note net of debt discount, deferred financing and OID as of 
December 31, 2015 amounted to $113,707.

On July 1, 2015 the Company issued a 5% original issue discount (OID) convertible promissory note with a principal balance of $157,895 
with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 70% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. 
Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a 
derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of $201,512, a debt discount of $142,500 (see Note 
8), and derivative expense of $59,406. The Company also recorded OID of $7,500. The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the 
term of the note. The balance of the convertible promissory note amounted to $157,895 as of December 31, 2015. The balance of the 
convertible promissory note net of debt discount and OID as of December 31, 2015 amounted to $82,895.

On July 15, 2015 the Company issued a 5% original issue discount (OID) convertible promissory note with a principal balance of $157,895 
with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 70% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. 
Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a 
derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of $201,512, a debt discount of $142,500 (see Note 
8), and derivative expense of $59,406. The Company also recorded OID of $7,500. The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the 
term of the note. The balance of the convertible promissory note amounted to $157,895 as of December 31, 2015. The balance of the 
convertible promissory note net of debt discount and OID as of December 31, 2015 amounted to $76,645.

On July 23, 2015 the Company issued a convertible promissory note with a principal balance of $429,439 with a one year maturity date. 
This convertible debenture converts at 55% of the two lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to conversion. Due to certain ratchet 
provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In 
connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of $707,603, a debt discount of $429,439 (see Note 8), and derivative 
expense of $278,164. The debt discount is being amortized over the term of the note. The balance of the convertible promissory note 
amounted to $429,439 as of December 31, 2015. The balance of the convertible promissory note net of debt discount as of December 31, 
2015 amounted to $278,767.
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DIRECTVIEW HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 7 – CONVERTIBLE PROMISSORY NOTES (continued)

On August 12, 2015 the Company issued a 5% original issue discount (OID) convertible promissory note with a principal balance of 
$157,895 with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 60% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to 
conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion 
feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of $237,303, a debt discount of 
$142,500 (see Note 8), and derivative expense of $95,197. The Company also recorded OID of $7,500. The OID and debt discount are being 
amortized over the term of the note. This note was assigned to a third party in October 2015 leaving the balance of the convertible 
promissory note at $0 as of December 31, 2015.

On September 11, 2015 the Company issued a 5% original issue discount (OID) convertible promissory note with a principal balance of 
$157,895 with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 60% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to 
conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion 
feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of $286,284, a debt discount of 
$142,500 (see Note 8), and derivative expense of $144,179. The Company also recorded OID of $7,500. The OID and debt discount are 
being amortized over the term of the note. The balance of the convertible promissory note amounted to $157,895 as of September 30, 2015. 
This note was assigned to a third party in October 2015 leaving the balance of the convertible promissory note at $0 as of December 31, 
2015.

On October 7, 2015 the Company issued a 5% original issue discount (OID) convertible promissory note with a principal balance of 
$157,895 with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 60% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to 
conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion 
feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of $245,920, a debt discount of 
$142,500 (see Note 8), and derivative expense of $103,814. The Company also recorded OID of $7,500. The OID and debt discount are 
being amortized over the term of the note. This note was assigned to a third party in October 2015 leaving the balance of the convertible 
promissory note at $0 as of December 31, 2015.

On October 9, 2015 the three convertible promissory notes mentioned above were assigned to a third party note holder with the same terms 
and balances. The balance of the convertible promissory note amounted to $473,684 as of December 31, 2015. The balance of the 
convertible promissory note net of debt discount as of December 31, 2015 amounted to $159,101.

On October 19, 2015 the Company issued a 5% original issue discount (OID) convertible promissory note with a principal balance of 
$157,500 with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 55% of the average of the two lowest traded prices in the 
prior 30 days before conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for 
this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of $259,764, a debt 
discount of $142,500 (see Note 8), and derivative expense of $117,264. The Company also recorded OID of $7,500. The OID and debt 
discount are being amortized over the term of the note. The balance of the convertible promissory note amounted to $157,500 as of 
December 31, 2015. The balance of the convertible promissory note net of debt discount and OID as of December 31, 2015 amounted to 
$38,750.

On November 18, 2015 the Company issued a 5% original issue discount (OID) convertible promissory note with a principal balance of 
$157,500 with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 55% of the average of the two lowest traded prices in the 
prior 30 days before conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for 
this conversion feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of $259,764, a debt 
discount of $142,500 (see Note 8), and derivative expense of $117,264. The Company also recorded OID of $7,500. The OID and debt 
discount are being amortized over the term of the note. The balance of the convertible promissory note amounted to $157,500 as of 
December 31, 2015. The balance of the convertible promissory note net of debt discount and OID as of December 31, 2015 amounted to 
$26,250.
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DIRECTVIEW HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 7 – CONVERTIBLE PROMISSORY NOTES (continued)

On December 18, 2015 the Company issued a 5% original issue discount (OID) convertible promissory note with a principal balance of 
$263,158 with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 70% of the lowest trading price during the 30 days prior to 
conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion 
feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of $335,598, a debt discount of 
$237,500 (see Note 8), and derivative expense of $98,756. The Company also recorded OID of $12,500. The OID and debt discount are 
being amortized over the term of the note. The balance of the convertible promissory note amounted to $263,158 as of December 31, 2015. 
The balance of the convertible promissory note net of debt discount and OID as of December 31, 2015 amounted to $23,575.

During the twelve months ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, amortization of debt discount amounted to $919,034 and $329,565, 
respectively.

NOTE 8 – DERIVATIVE LIABILITY

The Company enters into financing arrangements that contain embedded derivative features due to down round (“Ratchet”) provisions or 
conversion formulas that cause derivative treatment. The Company accounts for these arrangements in accordance with Accounting 
Standards Codification topic 815, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities (“ASC 815”) as well as related 
interpretation of this standard. In accordance with this standard, derivative instruments are recognized as either assets or liabilities in the 
balance sheet and are measured at fair values with gains or losses recognized in earnings. The Company determines the fair value of 
derivative instruments based on available market data using appropriate valuation models, considering all of the rights and obligations of 
each instrument.

We estimate fair values of derivative financial instruments using various techniques (and combinations thereof) that are considered 
consistent with the objective measuring fair values. In selecting the appropriate technique, we consider, among other factors, the nature of 
the instrument, the market risks that it embodies and the expected means of settlement. For less complex derivative instruments we generally 
use the Black-Scholes model, adjusted for the effect of dilution, because it embodies all of the requisite assumptions (including trading 
volatility, estimated terms, dilution and risk free rates) necessary to fair value these instruments. Estimating fair values of derivative 
financial instruments requires the development of significant and subjective estimates that may, and are likely to, change over the duration 
of the instrument with related changes in internal and external market factors. In addition, option-based techniques (such as Black-Scholes 
model) are highly volatile and sensitive to changes in the trading market price of our common stock. Since derivative financial instruments 
are initially and subsequently carried at fair values, our income (expense) going forward will reflect the volatility in these estimates and 
assumption changes. Under the terms of the new accounting standard, increases in the trading price of the Company’s common stock and 
increases in fair value during a given financial quarter result in the application of non-cash derivative expense. Conversely, decreases in the 
trading price of the Company’s common stock and decreases in trading fair value during a given financial quarter result in the application of 
non-cash derivative income.

The following table presents a reconciliation of the derivative liability measured at fair value on a recurring basis using significant 
unobservable inputs (Level 3) from December 31, 2013 to December 31, 2015:

Conversion feature
derivative liability

Balance at December 31, 2013 $ 1,503,531
Gain on extinguishment of derivative liability due to conversions and repayments (10,995,882)
Recognition of initial derivative liability 719,063
Change in fair value included in earnings 10,236,272

Balance at December 31, 2014 1,462,984
Recognition of initial derivative liability 3,492,594
Reclass of derivative liability to additional paid in capital due to conversions (1,196,842)
Change in fair value included in earnings (40,494)

Balance at December 31, 2015 $ 3,718,242
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DIRECTVIEW HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8 – DERIVATIVE LIABILITY (continued)

Total derivative liability at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 amounted to $3,718,242 and $1,462,984, respectively. The change 
in fair value included in earnings as income of $40,494 is due in part to the quoted market price of the Company’s common stock decreasing 
from $.027 at December 31, 2014 to $.0036 at December 31, 2015 coupled with substantially reduced conversion prices due to the effect of 
“Ratchet” provisions incorporated in convertible notes payable.

The Company used the following assumptions for determining the fair value of the convertible instruments granted under the Black-Scholes 
option pricing model:

December 31, 2015

Expected volatility 192 % - 304%
Expected term 3 – 12 months
Risk-free interest rate 0.0 2% - 0.09%
Expected dividend yield 0%

NOTE 9 – STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT

Pursuant to the terms of a promissory note issued in October 2013 the Company issued 333,333 common shares in February 2014 and an 
additional 333,333 common shares in March 2014 and another 333,333 common shares in April 2014. The three issuances were at 
contractual rate of $.003 per share for conversion totaling $3,000.

Pursuant to the terms of convertible promissory notes issued in May 2013 the Company issued 254,667 common shares in February 2014 
upon conversion at the contractual rate of $.003 per share totaling $764.

Pursuant to the terms of convertible promissory notes issued in May 2013 the Company issued 330,936 common shares in March 2014 upon 
conversion at the contractual rate of $.003 per share totaling $993.

Pursuant to the terms of a convertible promissory note issued in June 2012 the Company issued 233,333 common shares in March 2014 
upon conversion at the contractual rate of $.03 per share totaling $7,000.

Pursuant to the terms of a convertible promissory note issued in June 2012 the Company issued 188,007 common shares in March 2014 
upon conversion at the contractual rate of $.224 per share totaling $42,200.

Pursuant to the terms of a convertible promissory note renegotiated in May 2013 the Company issued 330,000 common shares in March 
2014 upon conversion at the contractual rate of $.003 per share totaling $990.

Pursuant to the terms of a convertible promissory note renegotiated in May 2013 the Company issued 330,000 common shares in March 
2014 upon conversion at the contractual rate of $.003 per share totaling $990.

Pursuant to the board of directors meeting in March 2014 the Company issued 833,333 common shares to the CEO for services rendered. 
The shares were issued at the fair market value rate of $.47 at the time of issuance, resulting in an expense of $387,500.

Pursuant to the terms of a convertible promissory note the Company issued 500,000 common shares in April 2014 upon conversion at the 
contractual rate of $.003 per share totaling $1,500.

Pursuant to the terms of a convertible promissory note issued in August 2013 the Company issued 500,000 common shares in April 2014 
upon conversion at the contractual rate of $.003 per share totaling $1,500.

Pursuant to the board of directors meeting in March 2014 the Company issued 100,000 common shares to an employee for services 
rendered. The shares were issued at the fair market value rate of $.44 at the time of issuance, resulting in an expense of $44,100.
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DIRECTVIEW HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 9 – STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT (continued)

Pursuant to the board of directors meeting in July 2014 the Company issued 166,667 common shares to a company for consulting services 
rendered. The shares were issued at the fair market value rate of $.19 at the time of issuance, resulting in an expense of $31,000.

Pursuant to the terms of a convertible promissory note issued in April 2014 the Company issued 308,642 common shares in October 2014 
upon conversion at the contractual rate of $.049 per share totaling $15,000. In November 2014 the Company issued 320,513 common shares 
upon conversion at the contractual rate of $.047 per share totaling $15,000 and in December 2014 the Company issued 555,556 common 
shares upon conversion at the contractual rate of $.0216 per share totaling $12,000.

Pursuant to the board of directors meeting in December 2014 the Company issued 100,000 common shares to an employee for services 
rendered. The shares were issued at the fair market value rate of $.036 at the time of issuance, resulting in an expense of $3,600.

Pursuant to the board of directors meeting in December 2014 the Company issued 16,667 common shares to an employee for services 
rendered. The shares were issued at the fair market value rate of $.036 at the time of issuance, resulting in an expense of $600.

Pursuant to the board of directors meeting in December 2014 the Company issued 8,333 common shares to an employee for services 
rendered. The shares were issued at the fair market value rate of $.036 at the time of issuance, resulting in an expense of $300.

Pursuant to the board of directors meeting in December 2014 the Company issued 83,333 common shares to a company for consulting 
services rendered. The shares were issued at the fair market value rate of $.036 at the time of issuance, resulting in an expense of $3,000.

Pursuant to the terms of a convertible promissory note issued in December 2014 the Company issued 664,973 common shares in December 
2014 upon conversion at the contractual rate of $.0162 per share totaling $10,773.

In March 2015 the Company approved a 1-30 Reverse Stock Split (see Note 1).

In January 2015 the Company made four issuances of common shares related to the same convertible note payable. The Company issued 
600,000; 633,333; 633,333 and 666,667 shares of common stock at the contractual rate of $.0108 for the reduction of $6,480; at the 
contractual rate of $.0108 for the reduction of 6,840; at $.0108 for the reduction of $6,840 and at $.009 for an additional reduction of $6,000 
in principal of notes payable.

In January 2015 the Company issued 333,333 shares of common stock at the contractual rate of $.003 for the reduction of $1,000 in 
principal of convertible notes payable.

In January 2015 the Company issued 699,667 shares of common stock at the contractual rate of $.0108 for the reduction of $7,556 in 
principal of convertible notes payable.

In February 2015 the Company issued 700,000; 766,667 and 833,333 shares of common stock at the contractual rate of $.009 for the 
reduction of $6,300; at the contractual rate of $.009 for the reduction of $6,900; and at the contractual rate of $.0072 for the reduction of 
$6,000 in principal of convertible notes payable.

In February 2015 the Company made four issuances of common shares at contractual rates related to the same convertible note payable. The 
Company issued 741,226; 946,793; 1,033,333 and 1,097,767 shares of common stock at $.009 for the reduction of $6,671; at $.009 for the 
reduction of 8,521; at $.0072 for the reduction of $7,440 and at $.0054 for an additional reduction of $5,928 in principal of notes payable.

In February 2015 the Company issued 116,667 shares of common stock at fair market value of $.018 for $2,100 of services rendered.

In March 2015 the Company made two issuances of common shares at contractual rates related to the same convertible note payable. The 
Company issued 41,500 and 43,333 shares of common stock at $.027 for the reduction of $1,121 and at $.027 for the reduction of $1,170 in 
principal of notes payable.
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DIRECTVIEW HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 9 – STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT (continued)

In March 2015 the Company made issuances of common shares at contractual rates related to the same convertible note payable. The 
Company issued 4,844,633 shares of common stock at $.0072 for the reduction of $8,720 of principal, interest and associated fees.

In March 2015 the Company made two issuances of common shares at contractual rates related to the same convertible note payable. The 
Company issued 45,833 and 54,780 shares of common stock at $.027 for the reduction of $1,238 and at $.027 for the reduction of $1,479 in 
principal of notes payable.

In March 2015 the Company issued 1,300,000 shares of common stock at the contractual rate of $.001 for the reduction of $1,300 in 
principal of convertible notes payable.

In the period of April 1, 2015 through June 30, 2015 the Company issued 174,227,554 shares of common stock at contractual rates ranging 
from $.00096 to $.075 for the reduction of $265,281 in principal convertible notes payable, $8,540 in fees and $959 in the reduction of 
accrued interest (See Note 7).

In May 2015 the Company issued 3,000,000 shares of common stock at fair market value of $.014 per share, based on quoted traded prices, 
for compensation totaling $42,000.

In the period of July 1, 2015 through September 30, 2015 the Company issued 71,280,788 shares of common stock at contractual rates 
ranging from $.00138 to $.003 for the reduction of $114,289 in principal of convertible notes payable, $156 in fees and $44,181 in the 
reduction of accrued interest (See Note 7).

In the period of October 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015 the Company issued 69,003,110 shares of common stock at contractual rates 
ranging from $.00116 to $.0023 for the reduction of $85,500 in principal of convertible notes payable and $5,250 in the reduction of accrued 
interest (See Note 7).

NOTE 10 – RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Due to Related Parties

The following related party transactions have been presented on the balance sheet in due to related parties. Additionally, as of December 31, 
2015 $48,478 of accrued interest due to related parties has been included in accrued expenses.

During 2007 and 2006, the Company’s Chief Financial Officer (CFO) loaned $39,436 and $14,400, respectively to the Company for 
working capital purposes. This debt carries 3% interest per annum and matured in July 2010. In March 2012, the Company and the CFO of 
the Company agreed to change the term of this promissory note into a demand note. In May and June 2015 the Company repaid $16,881 in 
the principal of this note. During the period of July 1, 2015 through September 30, 2015 the Company repaid the remaining balance of 
$35,465. The amount due to such related party at September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014 amounted to $0 and $52,347, respectively. In 
October 2015 the Company paid its CFO $4,189 in accrued interest. As of December 31, 2014, this note was reflected as due to related 
party. Accrued interest related to these notes amounted to $0 and $4,716 as of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively and 
is included in accrued expenses in the Company’s balance sheet.

In June 2009, the Company issued a promissory note amounting $22,000 to the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. This note is 
payable either in cash or security equivalent at the option of the note holder. The note payable bears 12% interest per annum and was 
payable in June 2010. During 2012, the Company repaid the Chief Executive Officer $11,157 and in July and August 2015 the Company 
repaid the Chief Executive Officer $10,843 related to this note leaving the balance of the note at $0 as of September 30, 2015. As of 
December 31, 2014 the balance on this promissory note amounted to $10,843.

The Company paid the Chief Executive Officer $29,728 in accrued interest during the period of October through December 2015 leaving 
the balance of accrued interest payable to the Chief Executive Officer at $0 and $21,999 as of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, 
respectively and is included in accrued expenses in the Company’s balance sheet.
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DIRECTVIEW HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 10 – RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The Chief Executive Officer of the Company, from time to time, provided advances to the Company for operating expenses. The Company 
repays the advances when funds are available. The Company repaid $13,819 to the Chief Executive Officer in the first quarter of 2015. The 
Chief Executive Officer of the Company loaned the Company $20,984 in the first quarter of 2015. In March 2015 the Company issued the 
Chief Executive Officer 100,000,000 shares of common stock for the retirement of $10,000 of loans.

The Company repaid $10,907 to the Chief Executive Officer and borrowed $2,484 in the second quarter of 2015. The Company repaid 
$140,330 to the Chief Executive Officer and borrowed $3,412 in the third quarter of 2015. In October 2015 the Company repaid $2,584 to 
the Chief Executive Officer. At December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 the Company had a payable to the Chief Executive Officer of 
the Company amounting to $12,560 and $163,320, respectively. These advances are short-term in nature and non-interest bearing.

The Chief Financial Officer of the Company, from time to time, provided advances to the Company for operating expenses. The Company 
repaid $8,119 to the Chief Financial Officer in the second quarter of 2015. At September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the Company 
had a payable to the Chief Financial Officer of the Company amounting to $0 and $8,119, respectively. These advances are short-term in 
nature and non-interest bearing.

During the quarter ended June 30, 2012, the Company issued notes payable to the CFO amounting to $429,439 related to the accrued 
salaries. In July 2015 the Company repaid the CFO $429,439. As of September 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014 the balance on the notes 
payable related to the accrued salaries amounted to $0 and $429,439, respectively.

NOTE 11 – BARTER REVENUE

The Company provides security systems and associated installation labor in exchange for business services. The Company recognizes 
revenue from these barter transactions when security systems are installed and recognizes deferred barter costs as other current assets until 
the barter transaction is completed and then recognizes the appropriate expense. The barter revenue is valued at the fair market value which 
is the selling price we sell to other third parties. The barter revenue for the year ended December 31, 2015 totaled $18,047. The barter 
revenue for the year ended December 31, 2014 totaled $5,893.

NOTE 12 – ACCRUED PAYROLL TAXES

As of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 the Company recorded a liability related to unpaid payroll taxes which includes interest 
and penalties of approximately $84,000 and $110,000, respectively. The liability was incurred in the years ended December 31, 2007 
through December 31, 2010 as a result of the Company not remitting payroll tax liabilities. In August 2013, the Company paid $43,176 and 
in September 2015, the Company paid $28,281 toward the outstanding payroll tax liabilities. Such amount also includes current payroll tax 
liabilities and has been included in accrued expenses in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. In the years of 2011 through 
2015 the Company has filed and paid its payroll liabilities timely.

NOTE 13 – SEGMENT REPORTING

Although the Company has a number of operating divisions, separate segment data has not been presented as they meet the criteria for 
aggregation as permitted by ASC Topic 280, “Segment Reporting” (formerly Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 131, 
“Disclosures About Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information”).

Our chief operating decision-maker is considered to be our Chief Executive Officer (CEO). The CEO reviews financial information 
presented on a consolidated basis for purposes of making operating decisions and assessing financial performance. The financial information 
reviewed by the CEO is identical to the information presented in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. Therefore, the 
Company has determined that it operates in a single operating segment, specifically, security systems and related services. For the year 
ended December 31, 2015 and the year ended December 31, 2014 all material assets and revenues of the Company were in the United 
States.
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DIRECTVIEW HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 14 – INCOME TAXES

The Company accounts for income taxes under ASC Topic 740: Income Taxes which requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and 
liabilities for both the expected impact of differences between the financial statements and the tax basis of assets and liabilities, and for the 
expected future tax benefit to be derived from tax losses and tax credit carry forwards. ASC Topic 740 additionally requires the 
establishment of a valuation allowance to reflect the likelihood of realization of deferred tax assets. The Company estimates its net operating 
loss carry forward for tax purposes to be approximately $6 million at December 31, 2015, expiring through the year 2035. As noted below, 
the Company is delinquent in its income tax filings and has not reported its losses to the taxing authorities since 2010. Therefore, utilization 
of tax losses may be limited due to non-filing of returns for 2011, 2012, 2013 and 2014. Also, Internal Revenue Code Section 382 places a 
limitation on the amount of taxable income that can be offset by carry forwards after certain ownership shifts.

The Company last filed an income tax return for the year ended December 31, 2010. Tax years ending December 31, 2014, 2013, 2012 and 
2011 will be subject to IRS examination for a period of three years after the file dates, and the Company’s tax net operating loss 
carryforwards have not yet been established with the taxing authorities due to non-filing.

The table below summarizes the differences between the Company’s effective tax rate and the statutory federal rate as follows for the year 
ended December 31, 2015 and 2014:

2015 2014

Tax benefit computed at “expected” statutory rate $ (1,531,000) $ (432,000)
State income taxes, net of benefit (153,000) (43,000)
Stock based compensation and other permanent differences 1,037,000 101,000
Increase in valuation allowance 647,000 374,000
Net income tax benefit $ - $ -

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are provided for significant income and expense items recognized in different years for tax and financial 
reporting purposes. Temporary differences, which give rise to a net deferred tax asset is as follows:

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss carryforwards $ 2,302,000 $ 1,655,000
Accrued lease abandonment costs 63,000 63,000
Allowance for doubtful accounts 15,000 61,000
Accrued salaries 608,000 562,000

Total Deferred tax assets 2,988,000 2,341,000
Less: Valuation allowance (2,988,000) (2,341,000)

$ - $ -

After consideration of all the evidence, both positive and negative, management has recorded a full valuation allowance at December 31, 
2015 and 2014, due to the uncertainty of realizing the deferred income tax assets. The valuation allowance was increased by $647,000 and 
$374,000 during 2015 and 2014, respectively.

NOTE 15 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent to the December 31, 2015 the Company issued 146,667,412 shares of common stock in satisfaction of $224,659 of convertible 
promissory notes and $15,753 of accrued interest. These notes were converted at contractual rates ranging from $.00138 to $.00203.

Subsequent to the December 31, 2015 the Company entered into a Settlement Agreement and paid a note holder $91,338 in three equal 
installments of $30,445 from January 6, 2016 through March 4, 2016 in satisfaction of outstanding notes payable and accrued interest of 
$91,338.
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DIRECTVIEW HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 15 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (continued)

On January 19, 2016 the Company issued a 5% original issue discount (OID) convertible promissory note with a principal balance of 
$111,111 with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 70% of the lowest traded price in the prior 30 days before 
conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion 
feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of $141,697, a debt discount of $95,000, 
and derivative expense of $52,808. The Company also recorded OID of $5,000. The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the 
term of the note.

On February 5, 2016 the Company issued a 5% original issue discount (OID) convertible promissory note with a principal balance of 
$157,895 with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 70% of the lowest traded price in the prior 30 days before 
conversion. Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion 
feature as a derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of $201,359, a debt discount of 
$142,500, and derivative expense of $59,254. The Company also recorded OID of $7,500. The OID and debt discount are being amortized 
over the term of the note.

On March 7, 2016 the Company issued a 5% original issue discount (OID) convertible promissory note with a principal balance of $118,573 
with a one year maturity date. This convertible debenture converts at 70% of the lowest traded price in the prior 30 days before conversion. 
Due to certain ratchet provisions contained in the convertible promissory note the Company accounted for this conversion feature as a 
derivative liability. In connection herewith, the Company recorded a derivative liability of $151,213, a debt discount of $112,940, and 
derivative expense of $38,569. The Company also recorded OID of $5,632. The OID and debt discount are being amortized over the term of 
the note.

On April 1, 2016, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement (the “SPA”) to issue and sell a 5% Original Issue Discount 
Convertible Promissory Note (the “Note” and together with the SPA, the “Transaction Documents”) to an institutional investor (the 
“Investor”), in the principal amount of $105,263 (the “Principal Amount”). Pursuant to the Transaction Documents, on or about April 1, 
2016, the Company received $100,000 (before expenses and fees) in funding from the Investor. The Company’s issuance of the securities to 
the Investor pursuant to the SPA are exempt from registration requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), 
pursuant to Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act and/or Rule 506 of Regulation D promulgated under the Securities Act.

The Note shall mature on March 31, 2017 (the “Maturity Date”) and shall accrue interest at an annual rate equal to 10%. The Principal 
Amount shall be paid on the Maturity Date (or sooner as provided in the Note) in cash. The interest shall be paid on the Maturity Date (or 
sooner as provided in the Note) in cash or in shares of the Company’s common stock, par value $0.0001 per share (the “Common Stock”). 
In accordance with the terms of the Note, the Investor shall be entitled to convert a portion or all of the Principal Amount and interest due 
and outstanding under the Note into shares of Common Stock equal to 70% of the lowest traded price in the prior thirty (30) trading days.

On January 6, 2016, the Company filed an amendment to its articles of incorporation (the “Amendment”) with the Secretary of State of the 
State of Nevada, which, among other things, established the designation, powers, rights, privileges, preferences and restrictions of the Series 
A Preferred Stock, $0.001 par value per share (the “Series A Preferred Stock”).

Among other provisions, each one (1) share of the Series A Preferred Stock shall have voting rights equal to (x) 0.019607 multiplied by the 
total issued and outstanding shares of common stock of the Company eligible to vote at the time of the respective vote (the “Numerator”), 
divided by (y) 0.49, minus (z) the Numerator. For purposes of illustration only, if the total issued and outstanding shares of common stock of 
the Company eligible to vote at the time of the respective vote is 5,000,000, the voting rights of one share of the Series A Preferred Stock 
shall be equal to 102,036 (0.019607 x 5,000,000) / 0.49) – (0.019607 x 5,000,000) = 102,036).

Fifty-one (51) shares of Series A Preferred Stock were authorized and fifty-one (51) shares of Series A Preferred Stock were issued to Roger 
Ralston, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and a director of the Company.

The Series A Preferred Stock has no dividend rights, no liquidation rights and no redemption rights, and was created primarily to be able to 
obtain a quorum and conduct business at shareholder meetings. All shares of the Series A Preferred Stock shall rank (i) senior to the 
Company’s common stock and any other class or series of capital stock of the Company hereafter created, (ii) pari passu with any class or 
series of capital stock of the Company hereafter created and specifically ranking, by its terms, on par with the Series A Preferred Stock and 
(iii) junior to any class or series of capital stock of the Company hereafter created specifically ranking, by its terms, senior to the Series A 
Preferred Stock, in each case as to distribution of assets upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, whether voluntary or 
involuntary.
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SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT

This Securities Purchase Agreement (this “Agreement”) is dated as of April 1, 2016 between DirectView Holdings, Inc., a Nevada 
corporation (the “Company”), and the purchaser identified on the signature pages hereto (including its successors and assigns, the 
“Purchaser”).

WHEREAS, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and pursuant to Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act of 
1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), and Rule 506 promulgated thereunder, the Company desires to issue and sell to the Purchaser, and 
the Purchaser desires to purchase from the Company, securities of the Company as more fully described in this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual covenants contained in this Agreement, and for other good and 
valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, the Company and the Purchaser agree as follows:

ARTICLE I.
DEFINITIONS

1.1 Definitions. In addition to the terms defined elsewhere in this Agreement: (a) capitalized terms that are not otherwise defined 
herein have the meanings given to such terms in the Note (as defined herein), and (b) the following terms have the meanings set forth in this 
Section 1.1:

“Acquiring Person” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 4.7.

“Action” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3.1(j).

“Affiliate” means any Person that, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, controls or is controlled by or 
is under common control with a Person, as such terms are used in and construed under Rule 405 under the Securities Act.

“Board of Directors” means the board of directors of the Company.

“Business Day” means any day except any Saturday, any Sunday, any day which is a federal legal holiday in the United 
States or any day on which banking institutions in the State of New York are authorized or required by law or other governmental 
action to close.

“Closing Dates” means the Trading Day(s) on which all of the Transaction Documents have been executed and delivered 
by the applicable parties thereto in connection with a Closing, and all conditions precedent to (i) the Purchasers’ obligations to pay 
the Subscription Amount as to such Closing and (ii) the Company’s obligations to deliver the Securities as to such Closing, in each 
case, have been satisfied or waived.

“Closing(s)” means the one or more closings of the purchase and sale of the Securities pursuant to Section 2.2.
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“Closing Statement” means the Closing Statement in the form on Annex A attached hereto.

“Commission” means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission.

“Common Stock” means the common stock of the Company, par value $0.001 per share, and any other class of securities 
into which such securities may hereafter be reclassified or changed.

“Common Stock Equivalents” means any securities of the Company or the Subsidiaries which would entitle the holder 
thereof to acquire at any time Common Stock, including, without limitation, any debt, preferred stock, right, option, warrant or 
other instrument that is at any time convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for, or otherwise entitles the holder thereof to 
receive, Common Stock.

“Company Counsel” means Lucosky Brookman, with offices located at 101 Wood Avenue South, 5th Floor, Woodbridge, 
New Jersey 08830.

“Conversion Price” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Note.

“Conversion Shares” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Note.

“Disclosure Schedules” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3.1.

“Effective Date” means the earliest of the date that (a) all of the Registrable Securities have been sold pursuant to Rule 
144 or may be sold pursuant to Rule 144 without the requirement for the Company to be in compliance with the current public 
information required under Rule 144 and without volume or manner-of-sale restrictions or (b) following the one year anniversary 
of the Closing Date provided that a holder of Registrable Securities is not an Affiliate of the Company, all of the Registrable 
Securities may be sold pursuant to an exemption from registration under Section 4(1) of the Securities Act without volume or 
manner-of-sale restrictions and Company counsel has delivered to such holders a standing written unqualified opinion that resales 
may then be made by such holders of the Registrable Securities pursuant to such exemption which opinion shall be in form and 
substance reasonably acceptable to such holders.

“Evaluation Date” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3.1(r).

“Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated 
thereunder.
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“Exempt Issuance” means the issuance of (a) shares of Common Stock or options to employees, officers or directors of the 
Company pursuant to any stock or option plan duly adopted for such purpose, by a majority of the non-employee members of the 
Board of Directors or a majority of the members of a committee of non-employee directors established for such purpose, (b) 
securities upon the exercise of or exchange of or conversion of any Securities issued hereunder and/or other securities exercisable 
or exchangeable for or convertible into shares of Common Stock issued and outstanding on the date of this Agreement, provided 
that such securities have not been amended since the date of this Agreement to increase the number of such securities or to decrease 
the exercise price, exchange price or conversion price of such securities, (c) shares issued pursuant to any equipment loan or 
leasing arrangement, reap property leasing arrangement or debt financing from a bank or similar institution approved by a majority 
of the disinterested directors of the Company, (d) securities issued pursuant to acquisitions or strategic transactions approved by a 
majority of the disinterested directors of the Company, and (e) shares with respect to which the holders of a majority of the 
outstanding Note waive their anti-dilution rights, provided that any such issuance shall only be to a Person (or to the equityholders 
of a Person) which is, itself or through its subsidiaries, an operating company or an owner of an asset in a business synergistic with 
the business of the Company and shall provide to the Company additional benefits in addition to the investment of funds, but shall 
not include a transaction in which the Company is issuing securities primarily for the purpose of raising capital or to an entity 
whose primary business is investing in securities.

“First Closing” means the closing of the purchase and sale of the Securities pursuant to Section 2.1.

“FCPA” means the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977, as amended.

“GAAP” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3.1(h).

“Holder” or “Holders” means the holder or holders, as the case may be, from time to time of Registrable Securities.

“Indebtedness” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3.1(aa).

“Intellectual Property Rights” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3.1(o).

“Legend Removal Date” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 4.1(c).

“Liens” means a lien, charge, pledge, security interest, encumbrance, right of first refusal, preemptive right or other 
restriction.

“Material Adverse Effect” shall have the meaning assigned to such term in Section 3.1(b).

“Material Permits” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3.1(m).

“Maximum Rate” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 5.17.
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“Note” means the 5% Original Issue Discount Senior Convertible Promissory Note(s) due, subject to the terms therein, 12 
months from their date of issuance, issued by the Company to the Purchaser hereunder, in the form of Exhibit A attached hereto.

“Participation Maximum” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 4.12(a).

“Person” means an individual or corporation, partnership, trust, incorporated or unincorporated association, joint venture, 
limited liability company, joint stock company, government (or an agency or subdivision thereof) or other entity of any kind.

“Pre-Notice” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 4.12(b).

“Principal Amount” means, as to the Purchaser, the amounts set forth below such Purchaser’s signature block on the 
signature pages hereto next to the heading “Principal Amount,” in United States Dollars, which shall equal such Purchaser’s 
Subscription Amount as to the Closing multiplied by 1.1.

“Pro Rata Portion” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 4.12(e).

“Proceeding” means an action, claim, suit, investigation or proceeding (including, without limitation, an informal 
investigation or partial proceeding, such as a deposition), whether commenced or threatened.

“Public Information Failure” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 4.3(b).

“Public Information Failure Payments” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 4.3(b).

“Purchaser Party” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 4.10.

“Registrable Securities” means, as of any date of determination, (a) all of the shares of Common Stock then issued and 
issuable upon conversion in full of the Note (assuming on such date the Note are converted in full without regard to any conversion 
limitations therein), (b) all shares of Common Stock issued and issuable as interest or principal on the Note assuming all 
permissible interest and principal payments are made in shares of Common Stock and the Note is held until maturity, (c) any 
additional shares of Common Stock issued and issuable in connection with any anti-dilution provisions in the Note (in each case, 
without giving effect to any limitations on conversion set forth in the Note) and (d) any securities issued or then issuable upon any 
stock split, dividend or other distribution, recapitalization or similar event with respect to the foregoing; provided, however, that 
any such Registrable Securities shall cease to be Registrable Securities for so long as (a) a registration statement with respect to the 
sale of such Registrable Securities is declared effective by the Commission under the Securities Act and such Registrable Securities 
have been disposed of by the Holder in accordance with such effective registration statement, (b) such Registrable Securities have 
been previously sold in accordance with Rule 144, or (c) such securities become eligible for resale without volume or manner-of-
sale restrictions and without current public information pursuant to Rule 144 as set forth in a written opinion letter to such effect, 
addressed, delivered and acceptable to the Transfer Agent and the affected Holders (assuming that such securities and any 
securities issuable upon exercise, conversion or exchange of which, or as a dividend upon which, such securities were issued or are 
issuable, were at no time held by any Affiliate of the Company), as reasonably determined by the Company, upon the advice of 
counsel to the Company.
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“Required Approvals” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3.1(e).

“Required Minimum” means, as of any date, the maximum aggregate number of shares of Common Stock then issued or 
potentially issuable in the future pursuant to the Transaction Documents, including any Underlying Shares issuable upon 
conversion in full of all Note (including Underlying Shares issuable as payment of interest on the Note), ignoring any conversion 
limits set forth therein, and assuming that the Conversion Price is at all times on and after the date of determination 75% of the then 
Conversion Price on the Trading Day immediately prior to the date of determination.

“Robinson Brog” means Robinson Brog Leinwand Greene Genovese & Gluck P.C., with offices located at 875 Third 

Avenue, 9th Floor, New York, New York 10022.

“Rule 144” means Rule 144 promulgated by the Commission pursuant to the Securities Act, as such Rule may be 
amended from time to time, or any similar rule or regulation hereafter adopted by the Commission having substantially the same 
effect as such Rule.

“Rule 424” means Rule 424 promulgated by the Commission pursuant to the Securities Act, as such Rule may be 
amended or interpreted from time to time, or any similar rule or regulation hereafter adopted by the Commission having 
substantially the same purpose and effect as such Rule.

“SEC Reports” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3.1(h).

“Securities” means the Note and the Underlying Shares.

“Securities Act” means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.

“Security Agreement” Reserved.

“Security Documents” Reserved.

“Short Sales” means all “short sales” as defined in Rule 200 of Regulation SHO under the Exchange Act (but shall not be 
deemed to include the location and/or reservation of borrowable shares of Common Stock).
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“Subscription Amount” means, as to the Purchaser, the aggregate amount to be paid for the Note purchased hereunder as 
specified below such Purchaser’s name on the signature page of this Agreement and next to the heading “Subscription Amount,” in 
United States dollars and in immediately available funds.

“Subsequent Financing” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 4.12(a).

“Subsequent Financing Notice” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 4.12(b).

“Subsidiary” means any subsidiary of the Company as set forth on Schedule 3.1(a) and shall, where applicable, also 
include any direct or indirect subsidiary of the Company formed or acquired after the date hereof.

“Subsidiary Guarantee” means the Subsidiary Guarantee, dated the date hereof, by each Subsidiary in favor of the 
Purchasers, in the form of Exhibit E attached hereto.

“Trading Day” means a day on which the principal Trading Market is open for trading.

“Trading Market” means any of the following markets or exchanges on which the Common Stock is listed or quoted for 
trading on the date in question: the NYSE MKT, the Nasdaq Capital Market, the Nasdaq Global Market, the Nasdaq Global Select 
Market, the New York Stock Exchange or the OTC Bulletin Board (or any successors to any of the foregoing).

“Tranche(s)” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 2.1.

“Transaction Documents” means this Agreement, the Note, and all exhibits and schedules thereto and hereto and any other 
documents or agreements executed in connection with the transactions contemplated hereunder.

“Transfer Agent” means Standard Registrar & Transfer Company, Inc., the current transfer agent of the Company, with a 
mailing address of 2528 South 1840 East, Draper, Utah 84020 and a facsimile number of (801) 571-2551, and any successor 
transfer agent of the Company.

“Transfer Agent Instruction Letter” means the letter from the Company to the Transfer Agent which instructs the Transfer 
Agent to issue Underlying Shares pursuant to the Transaction Documents, in the form of Exhibit C attached hereto.

“Underlying Shares” means the shares of Common Stock issued and issuable upon conversion or redemption of the Note 
and issued and issuable in lieu of the cash payment of interest on the Note in accordance with the terms of the Note.

“Variable Rate Transaction” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 4.13(b).
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“VWAP” means, for any date, the price determined by the first of the following clauses that applies: (a) if the Common 
Stock is then listed or quoted on a Trading Market, the daily volume weighted average price of the Common Stock for such date (or 
the nearest preceding date) on the Trading Market on which the Common Stock is then listed or quoted as reported by Bloomberg 
L.P. (based on a Trading Day from 9:30 a.m. (New York City time) to 4:02 p.m. (New York City time)), (b) if the OTC Bulletin 
Board is not a Trading Market, the volume weighted average price of the Common Stock for such date (or the nearest preceding 
date) on the OTC Bulletin Board, (c) if the Common Stock is not then listed or quoted for trading on the OTC Bulletin Board and if 
prices for the Common Stock are then reported in the “Pink Sheets” published by Pink OTC Markets, Inc. (or a similar organization 
or agency succeeding to its functions of reporting prices), the most recent bid price per share of the Common Stock so reported, or 
(d) in all other cases, the fair market value of a share of Common Stock as determined by an independent appraiser selected in good 
faith by the Purchasers of a majority in interest of the Securities then outstanding and reasonably acceptable to the Company, the 
fees and expenses of which shall be paid by the Company.

ARTICLE II.
PURCHASE AND SALE

2.1 Purchase. The Purchaser will purchase an aggregate of up to $500,000.00 in Subscription Amount corresponding to an 
aggregate of up to $526,315.79 in Principal Amount of Notes. The purchase will occur in nine (9) tranches (each a “Tranche,” and 
collectively the “Tranches”), with the Closing Date of the first Tranche of $100,000.00 being on the date of execution of this Agreement 
(the “First Closing”). The second Tranche will be for $50,000.00 with a Closing Date on the two (2) week anniversary of the date of this 
Agreement. Each successive Tranche will be for $50,000.00 with a Closing Date on the two (2) week anniversary of the Tranche 
immediately prior, until the final Tranche which Closing Date shall be on the sixteen (16) week anniversary of the First Closing.

2.2 Closing. On each Closing Date, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth herein, substantially concurrent with the 
execution and delivery of this Agreement by the parties hereto with respect to the First Closing, the Company agrees to sell, and the 
Purchaser agrees to purchase, such Purchaser’s Closing Subscription Amount as set forth on the signature page hereto executed by such 
Purchaser (an aggregate of up to $500,000.00 in Subscription Amount in connection with the Principal Amount of the Note). At the Closing, 
the Purchaser shall deliver to the Company, via wire transfer or a certified check, immediately available funds equal to such Purchaser’s 
Subscription Amount as set forth on the signature page hereto executed by such Purchaser, and the Company shall deliver to the Purchaser 
its Note, as determined pursuant to Section 2.3(a), and the Company and the Purchaser shall deliver the other items set forth in Section 2.3 
deliverable at the First Closing. Upon satisfaction of the covenants and conditions set forth in Sections 2.3 and 2.4 for the Closing, the 
Closing shall occur at the offices of Robinson Brog or such other location as the parties shall mutually agree.
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2.3 Deliveries.

(a) On or prior to the Closing Date (except as noted), the Company shall deliver or cause to be delivered to the Purchaser 
the following:

(i) As to the First Closing, this Agreement duly executed by the Company;

(ii) a legal opinion of Company Counsel, substantially in the form of Exhibit B attached hereto;

(iii) the Transfer Agent Instruction Letter duly executed by the Company and the Transfer Agent;

(iv) a Note with a principal amount equal to such Purchaser’s Principal Amount as to the Closing, registered in 
the name of such Purchaser; and

(b) On or prior to the Closing Date, the Purchaser shall deliver or cause to be delivered to the Company, as applicable, the 
following:

(i) As to the First Closing, this Agreement duly executed by the Purchaser; and

(ii) the Purchaser’s Subscription Amount as to the Closing by wire transfer to the account specified in writing by 
the Company.

2.4 Closing Conditions.

(a) The obligations of the Company hereunder in connection with the Closing are subject to the following conditions being 
met:

(i) the accuracy in all material respects on the Closing Date of the representations and warranties of the 
Purchasers contained herein (unless as of a specific date therein in which case they shall be accurate as of such date);

(ii) all obligations, covenants and agreements of the Purchaser required to be performed at or prior to the Closing 
Date shall have been performed;

(iii) the delivery by the Purchaser of the items set forth in Section 2.3(b) of this Agreement; and

(iv) the Company must be have complied with SEC Reports and filings as described in Section 3.1(h).

(b) The respective obligations of the Purchaser hereunder in connection with the Closing are subject to the following 
conditions being met:

(i) the accuracy in all material respects when made and on the Closing Date of the representations and warranties 
of the Company contained herein (unless as of a specific date therein);
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(ii) all obligations, covenants and agreements of the Company required to be performed at or prior to the Closing 
Date shall have been performed;

(iii) the delivery by the Company of the items set forth in Section 2.3(a) of this Agreement;

(iv) there is no existing Event of Default (as defined in the Note) and no existing event which, with the passage of 
time or the giving of notice, would constitute an Event of Default;

(v) the Company shall be fully current on all SEC filings and reports and there shall be no adverse proceeding 
initiated, ongoing, or threatened by any governmental or regulatory body.

(vi) there shall have been no Material Adverse Effect with respect to the Company since the date hereof; and

(vii) from the date hereof to the Closing Date, trading in the Common Stock shall not have been suspended by the 
Commission or the Company’s principal Trading Market and, at any time prior to the Closing Date, trading in securities 
generally as reported by Bloomberg L.P. shall not have been suspended or limited, or minimum prices shall not have been 
established on securities whose trades are reported by such service, or on any Trading Market, nor shall a banking 
moratorium have been declared either by the United States or New York State authorities nor shall there have occurred 
any material outbreak or escalation of hostilities or other national or international calamity of such magnitude in its effect 
on, or any material adverse change in, any financial market which, in each case, in the reasonable judgment of such 
Purchaser, makes it impracticable or inadvisable to purchase the Securities at the Closing.

ARTICLE III.
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

3.1 Representations and Warranties of the Company. Except as set forth in the Disclosure Schedules, which Disclosure Schedules 
shall be deemed a part hereof and shall qualify any representation or otherwise made herein to the extent of the disclosure contained in the 
corresponding section of the Disclosure Schedules, the Company hereby makes the following representations and warranties to the 
Purchaser:

(a) Subsidiaries. All of the direct and indirect subsidiaries of the Company are set forth on Schedule 3.1(a). The Company 
owns, directly or indirectly, all of the capital stock or other equity interests of each Subsidiary free and clear of any Liens, and all of 
the issued and outstanding shares of capital stock of each Subsidiary are validly issued and are fully paid, non-assessable and free 
of preemptive and similar rights to subscribe for or purchase securities. If the Company has no subsidiaries, all other references to 
the Subsidiaries or any of them in the Transaction Documents shall be disregarded.
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(b) Organization and Qualification. The Company and each of the Subsidiaries is an entity duly incorporated or otherwise 
organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its incorporation or organization, with the 
requisite power and authority to own and use its properties and assets and to carry on its business as currently conducted. Neither 
the Company nor any Subsidiary is in violation nor default of any of the provisions of its respective certificate or articles of 
incorporation, bylaws or other organizational or charter documents. Each of the Company and the Subsidiaries is duly qualified to 
conduct business and is in good standing as a foreign corporation or other entity in each jurisdiction in which the nature of the 
business conducted or property owned by it makes such qualification necessary, except where the failure to be so qualified or in 
good standing, as the case may be, could not have or reasonably be expected to result in: (i) a material adverse effect on the 
legality, validity or enforceability of any Transaction Document, (ii) a material adverse effect on the results of operations, assets, 
business, prospects or condition (financial or otherwise) of the Company and the Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, or (iii) a material 
adverse effect on the Company’s ability to perform in any material respect on a timely basis its obligations under any Transaction 
Document (any of (i), (ii) or (iii), a “Material Adverse Effect”) and no Proceeding has been instituted in any such jurisdiction 
revoking, limiting or curtailing or seeking to revoke, limit or curtail such power and authority or qualification.

(c) Authorization; Enforcement. The Company has the requisite corporate power and authority to enter into and to 
consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and each of the other Transaction Documents and otherwise to carry 
out its obligations hereunder and thereunder. The execution and delivery of this Agreement and each of the other Transaction 
Documents by the Company and the consummation by it of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby have been duly 
authorized by all necessary action on the part of the Company and no further action is required by the Company, the Board of 
Directors or the Company’s stockholders in connection herewith or therewith other than in connection with the Required 
Approvals. This Agreement and each other Transaction Document to which it is a party has been (or upon delivery will have been) 
duly executed by the Company and, when delivered in accordance with the terms hereof and thereof, will constitute the valid and 
binding obligation of the Company enforceable against the Company in accordance with its terms, except: (i) as limited by general 
equitable principles and applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other laws of general application 
affecting enforcement of creditors’ rights generally, (ii) as limited by laws relating to the availability of specific performance, 
injunctive relief or other equitable remedies and (iii) insofar as indemnification and contribution provisions may be limited by 
applicable law.
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(d) No Conflicts. The execution, delivery and performance by the Company of this Agreement and the other Transaction 
Documents to which it is a party, the issuance and sale of the Securities and the consummation by it of the transactions 
contemplated hereby and thereby do not and will not: (i) conflict with or violate any provision of the Company’s or any 
Subsidiary’s certificate or articles of incorporation, bylaws or other organizational or charter documents, (ii) conflict with, or 
constitute a default (or an event that with notice or lapse of time or both would become a default) under, result in the creation of 
any Lien upon any of the properties or assets of the Company or any Subsidiary, or give to others any rights of termination, 
amendment, acceleration or cancellation (with or without notice, lapse of time or both) of, any agreement, credit facility, debt or 
other instrument (evidencing a Company or Subsidiary debt or otherwise) or other understanding to which the Company or any 
Subsidiary is a party or by which any property or asset of the Company or any Subsidiary is bound or affected, or (iii) subject to the 
Required Approvals, conflict with or result in a violation of any law, rule, regulation, order, judgment, injunction, decree or other 
restriction of any court or governmental authority to which the Company or a Subsidiary is subject (including federal and state 
securities laws and regulations), or by which any property or asset of the Company or a Subsidiary is bound or affected; except in 
the case of each of clauses (ii) and (iii), such as could not have or reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect.

(e) Filings, Consents and Approvals. The Company is not required to obtain any consent, waiver, authorization or order of, 
give any notice to, or make any filing or registration with, any court or other federal, state, local or other governmental authority or 
other Person in connection with the execution, delivery and performance by the Company of the Transaction Documents, other 
than: (i) the filings required pursuant to Section 4.6 of this Agreement, (ii) the notice and/or application(s) to each applicable 
Trading Market for the issuance and sale of the Securities and the listing of the Conversion Shares for trading thereon in the time 
and manner required thereby and (iii) the filing of Form D with the Commission and such filings as are required to be made under 
applicable state securities laws (collectively, the “Required Approvals”).

(f) Issuance of the Securities. The Securities are duly authorized and, when issued and paid for in accordance with the 
applicable Transaction Documents, will be duly and validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable, free and clear of all Liens 
imposed by the Company other than restrictions on transfer provided for in the Transaction Documents. The Underlying Shares, 
when issued in accordance with the terms of the Transaction Documents, will be validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable, free 
and clear of all Liens imposed by the Company other than restrictions on transfer provided for in the Transaction Documents. The 
Company has reserved from its duly authorized capital stock a number of shares of Common Stock for issuance of the Underlying 
Shares at least equal to 300% of the Required Minimum on the date hereof.
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(g) Capitalization. The capitalization of the Company is as set forth on Schedule 3.1(g), which Schedule 3.1(g) shall also 
include the number of shares of Common Stock owned beneficially, and of record, by Affiliates of the Company as of the date 
hereof. The Company has not issued any capital stock since its most recently filed periodic report under the Exchange Act, other 
than pursuant to the exercise of employee stock options under the Company’s stock option plans, the issuance of shares of 
Common Stock to employees pursuant to the Company’s employee stock purchase plans and pursuant to the conversion and/or 
exercise of Common Stock Equivalents outstanding as of the date of the most recently filed periodic report under the Exchange 
Act. No Person has any right of first refusal, preemptive right, right of participation, or any similar right to participate in the 
transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents. Except as a result of the purchase and sale of the Securities, there are no 
outstanding options, warrants, scrip rights to subscribe to, calls or commitments of any character whatsoever relating to, or 
securities, rights or obligations convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for, or giving any Person any right to subscribe for 
or acquire any shares of Common Stock, or contracts, commitments, understandings or arrangements by which the Company or any 
Subsidiary is or may become bound to issue additional shares of Common Stock or Common Stock Equivalents. The issuance and 
sale of the Securities will not obligate the Company to issue shares of Common Stock or other securities to any Person (other than 
the Purchasers) and will not result in a right of any holder of Company securities to adjust the exercise, conversion, exchange or 
reset price under any of such securities. All of the outstanding shares of capital stock of the Company are duly authorized, validly 
issued, fully paid and nonassessable, have been issued in compliance with all federal and state securities laws, and none of such 
outstanding shares was issued in violation of any preemptive rights or similar rights to subscribe for or purchase securities. No 
further approval or authorization of any stockholder, the Board of Directors or others is required for the issuance and sale of the 
Securities. There are no stockholders agreements, voting agreements or other similar agreements with respect to the Company’s 
capital stock to which the Company is a party or, to the knowledge of the Company, between or among any of the Company’s 
stockholders.

(h) SEC Reports; Financial Statements. The Company has filed all reports, schedules, forms, statements and other 
documents required to be filed by the Company under the Securities Act and the Exchange Act, including pursuant to Section 13(a) 
or 15(d) thereof, for the two years preceding the date hereof (or such shorter period as the Company was required by law or 
regulation to file such material) (the foregoing materials, including the exhibits thereto and documents incorporated by reference 
therein, being collectively referred to herein as the “SEC Reports”) on a timely basis or has received a valid extension of such time 
of filing and has filed any such SEC Reports prior to the expiration of any such extension. As of their respective dates, the SEC 
Reports complied in all material respects with the requirements of the Securities Act and the Exchange Act, as applicable, and none 
of the SEC Reports, when filed, contained any untrue statement of a material fact or omitted to state a material fact required to be 
stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, 
not misleading. The Company has never been an issuer subject to Rule 144(i) under the Securities Act. The financial statements of 
the Company included in the SEC Reports comply in all material respects with applicable accounting requirements and the rules 
and regulations of the Commission with respect thereto as in effect at the time of filing. Such financial statements have been 
prepared in accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principles applied on a consistent basis during the periods 
involved (“GAAP”), except as may be otherwise specified in such financial statements or the notes thereto and except that 
unaudited financial statements may not contain all footnotes required by GAAP, and fairly present in all material respects the 
financial position of the Company and its consolidated Subsidiaries as of and for the dates thereof and the results of operations and 
cash flows for the periods then ended, subject, in the case of unaudited statements, to normal, immaterial, year-end audit 
adjustments.
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(i) Material Changes; Undisclosed Events, Liabilities or Developments. Since the date of the latest audited financial 
statements included within the SEC Reports, except as specifically disclosed in a subsequent SEC Report filed prior to the date 
hereof: (i) there has been no event, occurrence or development that has had or that could reasonably be expected to result in a 
Material Adverse Effect, (ii) the Company has not incurred any liabilities (contingent or otherwise) other than (A) trade payables 
and accrued expenses incurred in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice and (B) liabilities not required to be 
reflected in the Company’s financial statements pursuant to GAAP or disclosed in filings made with the Commission, (iii) the 
Company has not altered its method of accounting, (iv) the Company has not declared or made any dividend or distribution of cash 
or other property to its stockholders or purchased, redeemed or made any agreements to purchase or redeem any shares of its 
capital stock and (v) the Company has not issued any equity securities to any officer, director or Affiliate, except pursuant to 
existing Company stock option plans. The Company does not have pending before the Commission any request for confidential 
treatment of information. Except for the issuance of the Securities contemplated by this Agreement or as set forth on Schedule 3.1
(i), no event, liability, fact, circumstance, occurrence or development has occurred or exists or is reasonably expected to occur or 
exist with respect to the Company or its Subsidiaries or their respective businesses, properties, operations, assets or financial 
condition, that would be required to be disclosed by the Company under applicable securities laws at the time this representation is 
made or deemed made that has not been publicly disclosed at least 1 Trading Day prior to the date that this representation is made.

(j) Litigation. There is no action, suit, inquiry, notice of violation, proceeding or investigation pending or, to the 
knowledge of the Company, threatened against or affecting the Company, any Subsidiary or any of their respective properties 
before or by any court, arbitrator, governmental or administrative agency or regulatory authority (federal, state, county, local or 
foreign) (collectively, an “Action”) which (i) adversely affects or challenges the legality, validity or enforceability of any of the 
Transaction Documents or the Securities or (ii) could, if there were an unfavorable decision, have or reasonably be expected to 
result in a Material Adverse Effect. Neither the Company nor any Subsidiary, nor any director or officer thereof, is or has been the 
subject of any Action involving a claim of violation of or liability under federal or state securities laws or a claim of breach of 
fiduciary duty. There has not been, and to the knowledge of the Company, there is not pending or contemplated, any investigation 
by the Commission involving the Company or any current or former director or officer of the Company. The Commission has not 
issued any stop order or other order suspending the effectiveness of any registration statement filed by the Company or any 
Subsidiary under the Exchange Act or the Securities Act.
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(k) Labor Relations. No labor dispute exists or, to the knowledge of the Company, is imminent with respect to any of the 
employees of the Company, which could reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect. None of the Company’s or 
its Subsidiaries’ employees is a member of a union that relates to such employee’s relationship with the Company or such 
Subsidiary, and neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is a party to a collective bargaining agreement, and the Company 
and its Subsidiaries believe that their relationships with their employees are good. To the knowledge of the Company, no executive 
officer of the Company or any Subsidiary, is, or is now expected to be, in violation of any material term of any employment 
contract, confidentiality, disclosure or proprietary information agreement or non-competition agreement, or any other contract or 
agreement or any restrictive covenant in favor of any third party, and the continued employment of each such executive officer 
does not subject the Company or any of its Subsidiaries to any liability with respect to any of the foregoing matters. The Company 
and its Subsidiaries are in compliance with all U.S. federal, state, local and foreign laws and regulations relating to employment 
and employment practices, terms and conditions of employment and wages and hours, except where the failure to be in compliance 
could not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

(l) Compliance. Neither the Company nor any Subsidiary: (i) is in default under or in violation of (and no event has 
occurred that has not been waived that, with notice or lapse of time or both, would result in a default by the Company or any 
Subsidiary under), nor has the Company or any Subsidiary received notice of a claim that it is in default under or that it is in 
violation of, any indenture, loan or credit agreement or any other agreement or instrument to which it is a party or by which it or 
any of its properties is bound (whether or not such default or violation has been waived), (ii) is in violation of any judgment, decree 
or order of any court, arbitrator or other governmental authority or (iii) is or has been in violation of any statute, rule, ordinance or 
regulation of any governmental authority, including without limitation all foreign, federal, state and local laws relating to taxes, 
environmental protection, occupational health and safety, product quality and safety and employment and labor matters, except in 
each case as could not have or reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect.

(m) Regulatory Permits. The Company and the Subsidiaries possess all certificates, authorizations and permits issued by 
the appropriate federal, state, local or foreign regulatory authorities necessary to conduct their respective businesses as described in 
the SEC Reports, except where the failure to possess such permits could not reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse 
Effect (“Material Permits”), and neither the Company nor any Subsidiary has received any notice of proceedings relating to the 
revocation or modification of any Material Permit.

(n) Title to Assets. The Company and the Subsidiaries have good and marketable title in fee simple to all real property 
owned by them and good and marketable title in all personal property owned by them that is material to the business of the 
Company and the Subsidiaries, in each case free and clear of all Liens, except for (i) Liens as do not materially affect the value of 
such property and do not materially interfere with the use made and proposed to be made of such property by the Company and the 
Subsidiaries and (ii) Liens for the payment of federal, state or other taxes, for which appropriate reserves have been made therefor 
in accordance with GAAP and, the payment of which is neither delinquent nor subject to penalties. Any real property and facilities 
held under lease by the Company and the Subsidiaries are held by them under valid, subsisting and enforceable leases with which 
the Company and the Subsidiaries are in compliance.
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(o) Intellectual Property. The Company and the Subsidiaries have, or have rights to use, all patents, patent applications, 
trademarks, trademark applications, service marks, trade names, trade secrets, inventions, copyrights, licenses and other intellectual 
property rights and similar rights as described in the SEC Reports as necessary or required for use in connection with their 
respective businesses and which the failure to so have could have a Material Adverse Effect (collectively, the “Intellectual Property 
Rights”). None of, and neither the Company nor any Subsidiary has received a notice (written or otherwise) that any of, the 
Intellectual Property Rights has expired, terminated or been abandoned, or is expected to expire or terminate or be abandoned, 
within two (2) years from the date of this Agreement. Neither the Company nor any Subsidiary has received, since the date of the 
latest audited financial statements included within the SEC Reports, a written notice of a claim or otherwise has any knowledge that 
the Intellectual Property Rights violate or infringe upon the rights of any Person, except as could not have or reasonably be 
expected to not have a Material Adverse Effect. To the knowledge of the Company, all such Intellectual Property Rights are 
enforceable and there is no existing infringement by another Person of any of the Intellectual Property Rights. The Company and its 
Subsidiaries have taken reasonable security measures to protect the secrecy, confidentiality and value of all of their intellectual 
properties, except where failure to do so could not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Material 
Adverse Effect.

(p) Insurance. The Company and the Subsidiaries are insured by insurers of recognized financial responsibility against 
such losses and risks and in such amounts as are prudent and customary in the businesses in which the Company and the 
Subsidiaries are engaged, including, but not limited to, directors and officers insurance coverage at least equal to the aggregate 
Subscription Amount. Neither the Company nor any Subsidiary has any reason to believe that it will not be able to renew its 
existing insurance coverage as and when such coverage expires or to obtain similar coverage from similar insurers as may be 
necessary to continue its business without a significant increase in cost.

(q) Transactions With Affiliates and Employees. Except as set forth in the SEC Reports, none of the officers or directors 
of the Company or any Subsidiary and, to the knowledge of the Company, none of the employees of the Company or any 
Subsidiary is presently a party to any transaction with the Company or any Subsidiary (other than for services as employees, 
officers and directors), including any contract, agreement or other arrangement providing for the furnishing of services to or by, 
providing for rental of real or personal property to or from providing for the borrowing of money from or lending of money to, or 
otherwise requiring payments to or from any officer, director or such employee or, to the knowledge of the Company, any entity in 
which any officer, director, or any such employee has a substantial interest or is an officer, director, trustee, stockholder, member 
or partner, in each case in excess of $120,000 other than for: (i) payment of salary or consulting fees for services rendered, (ii) 
reimbursement for expenses incurred on behalf of the Company and (iii) other employee benefits, including stock option 
agreements under any stock option plan of the Company.
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(r) Sarbanes-Oxley; Internal Accounting Controls. The Company and the Subsidiaries are in compliance with any and all 
applicable requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that are effective as of the date hereof, and any and all applicable rules 
and regulations promulgated by the Commission thereunder that are effective as of the date hereof and as of the Closing Date. The 
Company and the Subsidiaries maintain a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide reasonable assurance that: (i) 
transactions are executed in accordance with management’s general or specific authorizations, (ii) transactions are recorded as 
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP and to maintain asset accountability, (iii) access 
to assets is permitted only in accordance with management’s general or specific authorization, and (iv) the recorded accountability 
for assets is compared with the existing assets at reasonable intervals and appropriate action is taken with respect to any 
differences. The Company and the Subsidiaries have established disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act 
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the Company and the Subsidiaries and designed such disclosure controls and procedures to 
ensure that information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports it files or submits under the Exchange Act is 
recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the Commission’s rules and forms. The 
Company’s certifying officers have evaluated the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures of the Company and the 
Subsidiaries as of the end of the period covered by the most recently filed periodic report under the Exchange Act (such date, the 
“Evaluation Date”). The Company presented in its most recently filed periodic report under the Exchange Act the conclusions of 
the certifying officers about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures based on their evaluations as of the 
Evaluation Date. Since the Evaluation Date, there have been no changes in the internal control over financial reporting (as such 
term is defined in the Exchange Act) that have materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the internal control 
over financial reporting of the Company and its Subsidiaries.

(s) Certain Fees. Other than as set forth on Schedule 3.1(s), no brokerage or finder’s fees or commissions are or will be 
payable by the Company or any Subsidiaries to any broker, financial advisor or consultant, finder, placement agent, investment 
banker, bank or other Person with respect to the transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents. The Purchasers shall 
have no obligation with respect to any fees or with respect to any claims made by or on behalf of other Persons for fees of a type 
contemplated in this Section that may be due in connection with the transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents.

(t) Private Placement. Assuming the accuracy of the Purchasers’ representations and warranties set forth in Section 3.2, no 
registration under the Securities Act is required for the offer and sale of the Securities by the Company to the Purchasers as 
contemplated hereby. The issuance and sale of the Securities hereunder does not contravene the rules and regulations of the 
Trading Market.

(u) Investment Company. The Company is not, and is not an Affiliate of, and immediately after receipt of payment for the 
Securities, will not be or be an Affiliate of, an “investment company” within the meaning of the Investment Company Act of 1940, 
as amended. The Company shall conduct its business in a manner so that it will not become an “investment company” subject to 
registration under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended.
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(v) Registration Rights. No Person has any right to cause the Company to effect the registration under the Securities Act of 
any securities of the Company or any Subsidiaries.

(w) Listing and Maintenance Requirements. The Common Stock is registered pursuant to Section 12(b) or 12(g) of the 
Exchange Act, and the Company has taken no action designed to, or which to its knowledge is likely to have the effect of, 
terminating the registration of the Common Stock under the Exchange Act nor has the Company received any notification that the 
Commission is contemplating terminating such registration. The Company has not, in the 12 months preceding the date hereof, 
received notice from any Trading Market on which the Common Stock is or has been listed or quoted to the effect that the 
Company is not in compliance with the listing or maintenance requirements of such Trading Market. The Company is, and has no 
reason to believe that it will not in the foreseeable future continue to be, in compliance with all such listing and maintenance 
requirements.

(x) Application of Takeover Protections. The Company and the Board of Directors have taken all necessary action, if any, 
in order to render inapplicable any control share acquisition, business combination, poison pill (including any distribution under a 
rights agreement) or other similar anti-takeover provision under the Company’s certificate of incorporation (or similar charter 
documents) or the laws of its state of incorporation that is or could become applicable to the Purchasers as a result of the Purchasers 
and the Company fulfilling their obligations or exercising their rights under the Transaction Documents, including without 
limitation as a result of the Company’s issuance of the Securities and the Purchasers’ ownership of the Securities.

(y) Disclosure. Except with respect to the material terms and conditions of the transactions contemplated by the 
Transaction Documents, the Company confirms that neither it nor any other Person acting on its behalf has provided any of the 
Purchasers or their agents or counsel with any information that it believes constitutes or might constitute material, non-public 
information. The Company understands and confirms that the Purchasers will rely on the foregoing representation in effecting 
transactions in securities of the Company. All of the disclosure furnished by or on behalf of the Company to the Purchasers 
regarding the Company and its Subsidiaries, their respective businesses and the transactions contemplated hereby, including the 
Disclosure Schedules to this Agreement, is true and correct and does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to 
state any material fact necessary in order to make the statements made therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were 
made, not misleading. The press releases disseminated by the Company during the twelve months preceding the date of this 
Agreement taken as a whole do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be 
stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made and 
when made, not misleading. The Company acknowledges and agrees that no Purchaser makes or has made any representations or 
warranties with respect to the transactions contemplated hereby other than those specifically set forth in Section 3.2 hereof.
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(z) No Integrated Offering. Assuming the accuracy of the Purchasers’ representations and warranties set forth in Section 
3.2, neither the Company, nor any of its Affiliates, nor any Person acting on its or their behalf has, directly or indirectly, made any 
offers or sales of any security or solicited any offers to buy any security, under circumstances that would cause this offering of the 
Securities to be integrated with prior offerings by the Company for purposes of (i) the Securities Act which would require the 
registration of any such securities under the Securities Act, or (ii) any applicable shareholder approval provisions of any Trading 
Market on which any of the securities of the Company are listed or designated. 

(aa) Solvency. Based on the consolidated financial condition of the Company as of the Closing Date, after giving effect to 
the receipt by the Company of the proceeds from the sale of the Securities hereunder: (i) the fair saleable value of the Company’s 
assets exceeds the amount that will be required to be paid on or in respect of the Company’s existing debts and other liabilities 
(including known contingent liabilities) as they mature, (ii) the Company’s assets do not constitute unreasonably small capital to 
carry on its business as now conducted and as proposed to be conducted including its capital needs taking into account the 
particular capital requirements of the business conducted by the Company, consolidated and projected capital requirements and 
capital availability thereof, and (iii) the current cash flow of the Company, together with the proceeds the Company would receive, 
were it to liquidate all of its assets, after taking into account all anticipated uses of the cash, would be sufficient to pay all amounts 
on or in respect of its liabilities when such amounts are required to be paid. The Company does not intend to incur debts beyond its 
ability to pay such debts as they mature (taking into account the timing and amounts of cash to be payable on or in respect of its 
debt). The Company has no knowledge of any facts or circumstances which lead it to believe that it will file for reorganization or 
liquidation under the bankruptcy or reorganization laws of any jurisdiction within one year from the Closing Date. Schedule 3.1(aa) 
sets forth as of the date hereof all outstanding secured and unsecured Indebtedness of the Company or any Subsidiary, or for which 
the Company or any Subsidiary has commitments. For the purposes of this Agreement, “Indebtedness” means (x) any liabilities for 
borrowed money or amounts owed in excess of $50,000 (other than trade accounts payable incurred in the ordinary course of 
business), (y) all guaranties, endorsements and other contingent obligations in respect of indebtedness of others, whether or not the 
same are or should be reflected in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet (or the notes thereto), except guaranties by 
endorsement of negotiable instruments for deposit or collection or similar transactions in the ordinary course of business; and (z) 
the present value of any lease payments in excess of $50,000 due under leases required to be capitalized in accordance with GAAP. 
Neither the Company nor any Subsidiary is in default with respect to any Indebtedness.
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(bb) Tax Status. Except for matters that would not, individually or in the aggregate, have or reasonably be expected to 
result in a Material Adverse Effect, the Company and its Subsidiaries each (i) has made or filed all United States federal, state and 
local income and all foreign income and franchise tax returns, reports and declarations required by any jurisdiction to which it is 
subject, (ii) has paid all taxes and other governmental assessments and charges that are material in amount, shown or determined to 
be due on such returns, reports and declarations and (iii) has set aside on its books provision reasonably adequate for the payment 
of all material taxes for periods subsequent to the periods to which such returns, reports or declarations apply. There are no unpaid 
taxes in any material amount claimed to be due by the taxing authority of any jurisdiction, and the officers of the Company or of 
any Subsidiary know of no basis for any such claim.

(cc) No General Solicitation. Neither the Company nor any person acting on behalf of the Company has offered or sold 
any of the Securities by any form of general solicitation or general advertising. The Company has offered the Securities for sale 
only to the Purchasers and certain other “accredited investors” within the meaning of Rule 501 under the Securities Act.

(dd) Foreign Corrupt Practices. Neither the Company nor any Subsidiary, nor to the knowledge of the Company or any 
Subsidiary, any agent or other person acting on behalf of the Company or any Subsidiary, has: (i) directly or indirectly, used any 
funds for unlawful contributions, gifts, entertainment or other unlawful expenses related to foreign or domestic political activity, 
(ii) made any unlawful payment to foreign or domestic government officials or employees or to any foreign or domestic political 
parties or campaigns from corporate funds, (iii) failed to disclose fully any contribution made by the Company or any Subsidiary 
(or made by any person acting on its behalf of which the Company is aware) which is in violation of law or (iv) violated in any 
material respect any provision of FCPA.

(ee) Accountants. The Company’s accounting firm is set forth on Schedule 3.1(ee) of the Disclosure Schedules. To the 
knowledge and belief of the Company, such accounting firm: (i) is a registered public accounting firm as required by the Exchange 
Act and (ii) shall express its opinion with respect to the financial statements to be included in the Company’s Annual Report for the 
fiscal year ending December 31, 2014.

(ff) Seniority. As of the Closing Date, no Indebtedness or other claim against the Company is senior to the Note in right of 
payment, whether with respect to interest or upon liquidation or dissolution, or otherwise, other than indebtedness secured by 
purchase money security interests (which is senior only as to underlying assets covered thereby) and capital lease obligations 
(which is senior only as to the property covered thereby).

(gg) No Disagreements with Accountants and Lawyers. There are no disagreements of any kind presently existing, or 
reasonably anticipated by the Company to arise, between the Company and the accountants and lawyers formerly or presently 
employed by the Company and the Company is current with respect to any fees owed to its accountants and lawyers which could 
affect the Company’s ability to perform any of its obligations under any of the Transaction Documents.
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(hh) Acknowledgment Regarding Purchasers’ Purchase of Securities. The Company acknowledges and agrees that the 
Purchaser is acting solely in the capacity of an arm’s length purchaser with respect to the Transaction Documents and the 
transactions contemplated thereby. The Company further acknowledges that no Purchaser is acting as a financial advisor or 
fiduciary of the Company (or in any similar capacity) with respect to the Transaction Documents and the transactions contemplated 
thereby and any advice given by any Purchaser or any of their respective representatives or agents in connection with the 
Transaction Documents and the transactions contemplated thereby is merely incidental to the Purchasers’ purchase of the 
Securities. The Company further represents to the Purchaser that the Company’s decision to enter into this Agreement and the other 
Transaction Documents has been based solely on the independent evaluation of the transactions contemplated hereby by the 
Company and its representatives.

(ii) Acknowledgment Regarding Purchaser’s Trading Activity. Anything in this Agreement or elsewhere herein to the 
contrary notwithstanding (except for Sections 3.2(f) and 4.15 hereof), it is understood and acknowledged by the Company that: (i) 
the Purchaser has not been asked by the Company to agree, nor has the Purchaser agreed, to desist from purchasing or selling, long 
and/or short, securities of the Company, or “derivative” securities based on securities issued by the Company or to hold the 
Securities for any specified term, (ii) past or future open market or other transactions by the Purchaser, specifically including, 
without limitation, Short Sales or “derivative” transactions, before or after the closing of this or future private placement 
transactions, may negatively impact the market price of the Company’s publicly-traded securities, (iii) the Purchaser, and counter-
parties in “derivative” transactions to which any such Purchaser is a party, directly or indirectly, may presently have a “short” 
position in the Common Stock and (iv) the Purchaser shall not be deemed to have any affiliation with or control over any arm’s 
length counter-party in any “derivative” transaction. The Company further understands and acknowledges that (y) one or more 
Purchasers may engage in hedging activities at various times during the period that the Securities are outstanding, including, 
without limitation, during the periods that the value of the Underlying Shares deliverable with respect to Securities are being 
determined, and (z) such hedging activities (if any) could reduce the value of the existing stockholders’ equity interests in the 
Company at and after the time that the hedging activities are being conducted. The Company acknowledges that such 
aforementioned hedging activities do not constitute a breach of any of the Transaction Documents.

(jj) Regulation M Compliance. The Company has not, and to its knowledge no one acting on its behalf has, (i) taken, 
directly or indirectly, any action designed to cause or to result in the stabilization or manipulation of the price of any security of the 
Company to facilitate the sale or resale of any of the Securities, (ii) sold, bid for, purchased, or paid any compensation for soliciting 
purchases of, any of the Securities, or (iii) paid or agreed to pay to any Person any compensation for soliciting another to purchase 
any other securities of the Company, other than, in the case of clauses (ii) and (iii), compensation paid to the Company’s placement 
agent in connection with the placement of the Securities.
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(kk) Stock Option Plans. Each stock option granted by the Company under the Company’s stock option plan was granted 
(i) in accordance with the terms of the Company’s stock option plan and (ii) with an exercise price at least equal to the fair market 
value of the Common Stock on the date such stock option would be considered granted under GAAP and applicable law. No stock 
option granted under the Company’s stock option plan has been backdated. The Company has not knowingly granted, and there is 
no and has been no Company policy or practice to knowingly grant, stock options prior to, or otherwise knowingly coordinate the 
grant of stock options with, the release or other public announcement of material information regarding the Company or its 
Subsidiaries or their financial results or prospects.

(ll) Office of Foreign Assets Control. Neither the Company nor any Subsidiary nor, to the Company’s knowledge, any 
director, officer, agent, employee or affiliate of the Company or any Subsidiary is currently subject to any U.S. sanctions 
administered by the Office of Foreign Assets Control of the U.S. Treasury Department (“OFAC”).

(mm) U.S. Real Property Holding Corporation. The Company is not and has never been a U.S. real property holding 
corporation within the meaning of Section 897 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the Company shall so 
certify upon Purchaser’s request.

(nn) Bank Holding Company Act. Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries or Affiliates is subject to the Bank 
Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended (the “BHCA”) and to regulation by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve 
System (the “Federal Reserve”). Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries or Affiliates owns or controls, directly or 
indirectly, five percent (5%) or more of the outstanding shares of any class of voting securities or twenty-five percent or more of 
the total equity of a bank or any entity that is subject to the BHCA and to regulation by the Federal Reserve. Neither the Company 
nor any of its Subsidiaries or Affiliates exercises a controlling influence over the management or policies of a bank or any entity 
that is subject to the BHCA and to regulation by the Federal Reserve.

(oo) Money Laundering. The operations of the Company and its Subsidiaries are and have been conducted at all times in 
compliance with applicable financial record-keeping and reporting requirements of the Currency and Foreign Transactions 
Reporting Act of 1970, as amended, applicable money laundering statutes and applicable rules and regulations thereunder 
(collectively, the “Money Laundering Laws”), and no action, suit or proceeding by or before any court or governmental agency, 
authority or body or any arbitrator involving the Company or any Subsidiary with respect to the Money Laundering Laws is 
pending or, to the knowledge of the Company or any Subsidiary, threatened.
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3.2 Representations and Warranties of the Purchaser. The Purchaser, for itself and for no other Purchaser, hereby represents and 
warrants as of the date hereof and as of the Closing Date to the Company as follows (unless as of a specific date therein):

(a) Organization; Authority. Such Purchaser is either an individual or an entity duly incorporated or formed, validly 
existing and in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its incorporation or formation with full right, corporate, 
partnership, limited liability company or similar power and authority to enter into and to consummate the transactions contemplated 
by the Transaction Documents and otherwise to carry out its obligations hereunder and thereunder. The execution and delivery of 
the Transaction Documents and performance by such Purchaser of the transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents 
have been duly authorized by all necessary corporate, partnership, limited liability company or similar action, as applicable, on the 
part of such Purchaser. Each Transaction Document to which it is a party has been duly executed by such Purchaser, and when 
delivered by such Purchaser in accordance with the terms hereof, will constitute the valid and legally binding obligation of such 
Purchaser, enforceable against it in accordance with its terms, except: (i) as limited by general equitable principles and applicable 
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other laws of general application affecting enforcement of creditors’ rights 
generally, (ii) as limited by laws relating to the availability of specific performance, injunctive relief or other equitable remedies 
and (iii) insofar as indemnification and contribution provisions may be limited by applicable law.

(b) Own Account. Such Purchaser understands that the Securities are “restricted securities” and have not been registered 
under the Securities Act or any applicable state securities law and is acquiring the Securities as principal for its own account and 
not with a view to or for distributing or reselling such Securities or any part thereof in violation of the Securities Act or any 
applicable state securities law, has no present intention of distributing any of such Securities in violation of the Securities Act or 
any applicable state securities law and has no direct or indirect arrangement or understandings with any other persons to distribute 
or regarding the distribution of such Securities in violation of the Securities Act or any applicable state securities law (this 
representation and warranty not limiting such Purchaser’s right to sell the Securities in compliance with applicable federal and state 
securities laws). Such Purchaser is acquiring the Securities hereunder in the ordinary course of its business.

(c) Purchaser Status. At the time such Purchaser was offered the Securities, it was, and as of the date hereof it is, and on 
each date on which it converts the Note it will be an “accredited investor” as defined in Rule 501(a)(1), (a)(2), (a)(3), (a)(7) or (a)
(8) under the Securities Act.

(d) Experience of Such Purchaser. Such Purchaser, either alone or together with its representatives, has such knowledge, 
sophistication and experience in business and financial matters so as to be capable of evaluating the merits and risks of the 
prospective investment in the Securities, and has so evaluated the merits and risks of such investment. Such Purchaser is able to 
bear the economic risk of an investment in the Securities and, at the present time, is able to afford a complete loss of such 
investment.

(e) General Solicitation. Such Purchaser is not purchasing the Securities as a result of any advertisement, article, notice or 
other communication regarding the Securities published in any newspaper, magazine or similar media or broadcast over television 
or radio or presented at any seminar or any other general solicitation or general advertisement.
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(f) Certain Transactions and Confidentiality. Other than consummating the transactions contemplated hereunder, such 
Purchaser has not directly or indirectly, nor has any Person acting on behalf of or pursuant to any understanding with such 
Purchaser, executed any purchases or sales, including Short Sales, of the securities of the Company during the period commencing 
as of the time that such Purchaser first received a term sheet (written or oral) from the Company or any other Person representing 
the Company setting forth the material terms of the transactions contemplated hereunder and ending immediately prior to the 
execution hereof. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the case the Purchaser that is a multi-managed investment vehicle whereby 
separate portfolio managers manage separate portions of such Purchaser’s assets and the portfolio managers have no direct 
knowledge of the investment decisions made by the portfolio managers managing other portions of such Purchaser’s assets, the 
representation set forth above shall only apply with respect to the portion of assets managed by the portfolio manager that made the 
investment decision to purchase the Securities covered by this Agreement. Other than to other Persons party to this Agreement, 
such Purchaser has maintained the confidentiality of all disclosures made to it in connection with this transaction (including the 
existence and terms of this transaction). Notwithstanding the foregoing, for avoidance of doubt, nothing contained herein shall 
constitute a representation or warranty, or preclude any actions, with respect to the identification of the availability of, or securing 
of, available shares to borrow in order to effect Short Sales or similar transactions in the future.

The Company acknowledges and agrees that the representations contained in Section 3.2 shall not modify, amend or affect such Purchaser’s 
right to rely on the Company’s representations and warranties contained in this Agreement or any representations and warranties contained 
in any other Transaction Document or any other document or instrument executed and/or delivered in connection with this Agreement or the 
consummation of the transaction contemplated hereby.

ARTICLE IV.
OTHER AGREEMENTS OF THE PARTIES

4.1 Transfer Restrictions.

(a) The Securities may only be disposed of in compliance with state and federal securities laws. In connection with any 
transfer of Securities other than pursuant to an effective registration statement or Rule 144, to the Company or to an Affiliate of the 
Purchaser or in connection with a pledge as contemplated in Section 4.1(b), the Company may require the transferor thereof to 
provide to the Company an opinion of counsel selected by the transferor and reasonably acceptable to the Company, the form and 
substance of which opinion shall be reasonably satisfactory to the Company, to the effect that such transfer does not require 
registration of such transferred Securities under the Securities Act. As a condition of transfer, any such transferee shall agree in 
writing to be bound by the terms of this Agreement and shall have the rights and obligations of the Purchaser under this Agreement.
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(b) The Purchasers agree to the imprinting, so long as is required by this Section 4.1, of a legend on any of the Securities 
in the following form:

[NEITHER] THIS SECURITY [NOR THE SECURITIES INTO WHICH THIS SECURITY IS [EXERCISABLE] 
[CONVERTIBLE]] HAS [NOT] BEEN REGISTERED WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OR THE 
SECURITIES COMMISSION OF ANY STATE IN RELIANCE UPON AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION UNDER 
THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE “SECURITIES ACT”), AND, ACCORDINGLY, MAY NOT BE 
OFFERED OR SOLD EXCEPT PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE 
SECURITIES ACT OR PURSUANT TO AN AVAILABLE EXEMPTION FROM, OR IN A TRANSACTION NOT SUBJECT 
TO, THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE 
STATE SECURITIES LAWS AS EVIDENCED BY A LEGAL OPINION OF COUNSEL TO THE TRANSFEROR TO SUCH 
EFFECT, THE SUBSTANCE OF WHICH SHALL BE REASONABLY ACCEPTABLE TO THE COMPANY. THIS 
SECURITY [AND THE SECURITIES ISSUABLE UPON [EXERCISE] [CONVERSION] OF THIS SECURITY] MAY BE 
PLEDGED IN CONNECTION WITH A BONA FIDE MARGIN ACCOUNT WITH A REGISTERED BROKER-DEALER OR 
OTHER LOAN WITH A FINANCIAL INSTITUTION THAT IS AN “ACCREDITED INVESTOR” AS DEFINED IN RULE 501
(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR OTHER LOAN SECURED BY SUCH SECURITIES.

The Company acknowledges and agrees that the Purchaser may from time to time pledge pursuant to a bona fide margin 
agreement with a registered broker-dealer or grant a security interest in some or all of the Securities to a financial institution that is 
an “accredited investor” as defined in Rule 501(a) under the Securities Act and who agrees to be bound by the provisions of this 
Agreement and, if required under the terms of such arrangement, such Purchaser may transfer pledged or secured Securities to the 
pledgees or secured parties. Such a pledge or transfer would not be subject to approval of the Company and no legal opinion of 
legal counsel of the pledgee, secured party or pledgor shall be required in connection therewith. Further, no notice shall be required 
of such pledge. At the appropriate Purchaser’s expense, the Company will execute and deliver such reasonable documentation as a 
pledgee or secured party of Securities may reasonably request in connection with a pledge or transfer of the Securities.
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(c) Certificates evidencing the Underlying Shares shall not contain any legend (including the legend set forth in Section 
4.1(b) hereof): (i) while a registration statement covering the resale of such security is effective under the Securities Act, (ii) 
following any sale of such Underlying Shares pursuant to Rule 144, (iii) if such Underlying Shares are eligible for sale under Rule 
144 or (iv) if such legend is not required under applicable requirements of the Securities Act (including judicial interpretations and 
pronouncements issued by the staff of the Commission). The Company shall cause its counsel to issue a legal opinion to the 
Transfer Agent promptly after any of the events described in (i)-(iv) in the preceding sentence if required by the Transfer Agent to 
effect the removal of the legend hereunder (with a copy to the applicable Purchaser and its broker). If all or any portion of a Note is 
converted at a time when there is an effective registration statement to cover the resale of the Underlying Shares, or if such 
Underlying Shares may be sold under Rule 144 or if such legend is not otherwise required under applicable requirements of the 
Securities Act (including judicial interpretations and pronouncements issued by the staff of the Commission) then such Underlying 
Shares shall be issued free of all legends. The Company agrees that following the Effective Date or at such time as such legend is 
no longer required under this Section 4.1(c), it will, no later than three (3) Trading Days following the delivery by the Purchaser to 
the Company or the Transfer Agent of a certificate representing Underlying Shares, as applicable, issued with a restrictive legend 
(such third Trading Day, the “Legend Removal Date”), deliver or cause to be delivered to such Purchaser a certificate representing 
such shares that is free from all restrictive and other legends. The Company may not make any notation on its records or give 
instructions to the Transfer Agent that enlarge the restrictions on transfer set forth in this Section 4. Certificates for Underlying 
Shares subject to legend removal hereunder shall be transmitted by the Transfer Agent to the Purchaser by crediting the account of 
the Purchaser’s prime broker with the Depository Trust Company System as directed by such Purchaser.

(d) In addition to such Purchaser’s other available remedies, the Company shall pay to the Purchaser, in cash, as partial 
liquidated damages and not as a penalty, for each $1,000 of Underlying Shares (based on the VWAP of the Common Stock on the 
date such Securities are submitted to the Transfer Agent) delivered for removal of the restrictive legend and subject to Section 4.1
(c), $10 per Trading Day (increasing to $20 per Trading Day five (5) Trading Days after such damages have begun to accrue) for 
each Trading Day after the Legend Removal Date until such certificate is delivered without a legend. Nothing herein shall limit 
such Purchaser’s right to pursue actual damages for the Company’s failure to deliver certificates representing any Securities as 
required by the Transaction Documents, and such Purchaser shall have the right to pursue all remedies available to it at law or in 
equity including, without limitation, a decree of specific performance and/or injunctive relief.

4.2 Acknowledgment of Dilution. The Company acknowledges that the issuance of the Securities may result in dilution of the 
outstanding shares of Common Stock, which dilution may be substantial under certain market conditions. The Company further 
acknowledges that its obligations under the Transaction Documents, including, without limitation, its obligation to issue the Underlying 
Shares pursuant to the Transaction Documents, are unconditional and absolute and not subject to any right of set off, counterclaim, delay or 
reduction, regardless of the effect of any such dilution or any claim the Company may have against any Purchaser and regardless of the 
dilutive effect that such issuance may have on the ownership of the other stockholders of the Company. In the event of an issuance of stock 
involving tranches or other multiple closings, the anti-dilution adjustment shall be calculated as if all stock was issued at the Closing.
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4.3 Furnishing of Information; Public Information.

(a) If the Common Stock is not registered under Section 12(b) or 12(g) of the Exchange Act on the date hereof, the 

Company agrees to cause the Common Stock to be registered under Section 12(g) of the Exchange Act on or before the 60th

calendar day following the date hereof. Until the earliest of the time that no Purchaser owns Securities, the Company covenants to 
maintain the registration of the Common Stock under Section 12(b) or 12(g) of the Exchange Act and to timely file (or obtain 
extensions in respect thereof and file within the applicable grace period) all reports required to be filed by the Company after the 
date hereof pursuant to the Exchange Act even if the Company is not then subject to the reporting requirements of the Exchange 
Act.

(b) At any time during the period commencing from the six (6) month anniversary of the date hereof and ending at such 
time that all of the Securities may be sold without the requirement for the Company to be in compliance with Rule 144(c)(1) and 
otherwise without restriction or limitation pursuant to Rule 144, if the Company shall fail for any reason to satisfy the current 
public information requirement under Rule 144(c) (a “Public Information Failure”) then, in addition to such Purchaser’s other 
available remedies, the Company shall pay to the Purchaser, in cash, as partial liquidated damages and not as a penalty, by reason 
of any such delay in or reduction of its ability to sell the Securities, an amount in cash equal to two percent (2.0%) of the aggregate 

Subscription Amount of such Purchaser’s Securities on the day of a Public Information Failure and on every thirtieth (30th) day 
(pro rated for periods totaling less than thirty days) thereafter until the earlier of (a) the date such Public Information Failure is 
cured and (b) such time that such public information is no longer required for the Purchasers to transfer the Underlying Shares 
pursuant to Rule 144. The payments to which the Purchaser shall be entitled pursuant to this Section 4.3(b) are referred to herein as 
“Public Information Failure Payments.” Public Information Failure Payments shall be paid on the earlier of (i) the last day of the 

calendar month during which such Public Information Failure Payments are incurred and (ii) the third (3rd) Business Day after the 
event or failure giving rise to the Public Information Failure Payments is cured. In the event the Company fails to make Public 
Information Failure Payments in a timely manner, such Public Information Failure Payments shall bear interest at the rate of 1.5% 
per month (prorated for partial months) until paid in full. Nothing herein shall limit such Purchaser’s right to pursue actual damages 
for the Public Information Failure, and such Purchaser shall have the right to pursue all remedies available to it at law or in equity 
including, without limitation, a decree of specific performance and/or injunctive relief.

4.4 Integration. The Company shall not sell, offer for sale or solicit offers to buy or otherwise negotiate in respect of any security 
(as defined in Section 2 of the Securities Act) that would be integrated with the offer or sale of the Securities in a manner that would require 
the registration under the Securities Act of the sale of the Securities or that would be integrated with the offer or sale of the Securities for 
purposes of the rules and regulations of any Trading Market such that it would require shareholder approval prior to the closing of such 
other transaction unless shareholder approval is obtained before the closing of such subsequent transaction.

4.5 Conversion and Exercise Procedures. The form of Notice of Conversion included in the Note set forth the totality of the 
procedures required of the Purchasers in order to convert the Note. Without limiting the preceding sentences, no ink-original Notice of 
Exercise or Notice of Conversion shall be required, nor shall any medallion guarantee (or other type of guarantee or notarization) of any 
Notice of Conversion form be required in order to convert the Note. No additional legal opinion, other information or instructions shall be 
required of the Purchasers to convert its Note. The Company shall honor conversions of the Note and shall deliver Underlying Shares in 
accordance with the terms, conditions and time periods set forth in the Transaction Documents.

26

Page 84 of 145Submission Proof - D:\Dropbox (SEC Compliance)\2016 OPERATIONS\2016 EDGAR\04_April\DI...

4/15/2016file:///D:/Dropbox%20(SEC%20Compliance)/2016%20OPERATIONS/2016%20EDGAR/04_April/DIR...



4.6 Securities Laws Disclosure; Publicity. The Company shall (a) by 9:30 a.m. (New York City time) on the Trading Day 
immediately following the date hereof, issue a press release disclosing the material terms of the transactions contemplated hereby, and (b) 
file a Current Report on Form 8-K, including the Transaction Documents as exhibits thereto, with the Commission within the time required 
by the Exchange Act. From and after the issuance of such press release, the Company represents to the Purchaser that it shall have publicly 
disclosed all material, non-public information delivered to the Purchaser by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, or any of their 
respective officers, directors, employees or agents in connection with the transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents. The 
Company and the Purchaser shall consult with each other in issuing any other press releases with respect to the transactions contemplated 
hereby, and neither the Company nor any Purchaser shall issue any such press release nor otherwise make any such public statement without 
the prior consent of the Company, with respect to any press release of any Purchaser, or without the prior consent of the Purchaser, with 
respect to any press release of the Company, which consent shall not unreasonably be withheld or delayed, except if such disclosure is 
required by law, in which case the disclosing party shall promptly provide the other party with prior notice of such public statement or 
communication. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company shall not publicly disclose the name of any Purchaser, or include the name of 
any Purchaser in any filing with the Commission or any regulatory agency or Trading Market, without the prior written consent of such 
Purchaser, except: (a) as required by federal securities law in connection with any registration statement and (b) to the extent such disclosure 
is required by law or Trading Market regulations, in which case the Company shall provide the Purchasers with prior notice of such 
disclosure permitted under this clause (b).

4.7 Shareholder Rights Plan. No claim will be made or enforced by the Company or, with the consent of the Company, any other 
Person, that any Purchaser is an “Acquiring Person” under any control share acquisition, business combination, poison pill (including any 
distribution under a rights agreement) or similar anti-takeover plan or arrangement in effect or hereafter adopted by the Company, or that 
any Purchaser could be deemed to trigger the provisions of any such plan or arrangement, by virtue of receiving Securities under the 
Transaction Documents or under any other agreement between the Company and the Purchasers.

4.8 Non-Public Information. Except with respect to the material terms and conditions of the transactions contemplated by the 
Transaction Documents, the Company covenants and agrees that neither it, nor any other Person acting on its behalf, will provide any 
Purchaser or its agents or counsel with any information that the Company believes constitutes material non-public information, unless prior 
thereto such Purchaser shall have entered into a written agreement with the Company regarding the confidentiality and use of such 
information. The Company understands and confirms that the Purchaser shall be relying on the foregoing covenant in effecting transactions 
in securities of the Company.
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4.9 Use of Proceeds. The Company shall use the net proceeds hereunder as set forth on Schedule 4.9 attached hereto, and shall not 
use such proceeds: (a) for the satisfaction of any portion of the Company’s debt (other than payment of trade payables in the ordinary course 
of the Company’s business and prior practices), (b) for the redemption of any Common Stock or Common Stock Equivalents, (c) for the 
settlement of any outstanding litigation or (d) in violation of FCPA or OFAC regulations.

4.10 Indemnification of Purchaser. Subject to the provisions of this Section 4.10, the Company will indemnify and hold the 
Purchaser and its directors, officers, shareholders, members, managers, partners, employees and agents (and any other Persons with a 
functionally equivalent role of a Person holding such titles notwithstanding a lack of such title or any other title), each Person who controls 
such Purchaser (within the meaning of Section 15 of the Securities Act and Section 20 of the Exchange Act), and the directors, officers, 
shareholders, agents, members, managers, partners or employees (and any other Persons with a functionally equivalent role of a Person 
holding such titles notwithstanding a lack of such title or any other title) of such controlling persons (each, a “Purchaser Party”) harmless 
from any and all losses, liabilities, obligations, claims, contingencies, damages, costs and expenses, including all judgments, amounts paid in 
settlements, court costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs of investigation that any such Purchaser Party may suffer or incur as a result 
of or relating to (a) any breach of any of the representations, warranties, covenants or agreements made by the Company in this Agreement 
or in the other Transaction Documents or (b) any action instituted against the Purchaser Parties in any capacity, or any of them or their 
respective Affiliates, by any stockholder of the Company who is not an Affiliate of such Purchaser Party, with respect to any of the 
transactions contemplated by the Transaction Documents (unless such action is based upon a breach of such Purchaser Party’s 
representations, warranties or covenants under the Transaction Documents or any agreements or understandings such Purchaser Party may 
have with any such stockholder or any violations by such Purchaser Party of state or federal securities laws or any conduct by such 
Purchaser Party which constitutes fraud, gross negligence, willful misconduct or malfeasance). If any action shall be brought against any 
Purchaser Party in respect of which indemnity may be sought pursuant to this Agreement, such Purchaser Party shall promptly notify the 
Company in writing, and the Company shall have the right to assume the defense thereof with counsel of its own choosing reasonably 
acceptable to the Purchaser Party. Any Purchaser Party shall have the right to employ separate counsel in any such action and participate in 
the defense thereof, but the fees and expenses of such counsel shall be at the expense of such Purchaser Party except to the extent that (i) the 
employment thereof has been specifically authorized by the Company in writing, (ii) the Company has failed after a reasonable period of 
time to assume such defense and to employ counsel or (iii) in such action there is, in the reasonable opinion of counsel, a material conflict 
on any material issue between the position of the Company and the position of such Purchaser Party, in which case the Company shall be 
responsible for the reasonable fees and expenses of no more than one such separate counsel. The Company will not be liable to any 
Purchaser Party under this Agreement (y) for any settlement by the Purchaser Party effected without the Company’s prior written consent, 
which shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed; or (z) to the extent, but only to the extent that a loss, claim, damage or liability is 
attributable to any Purchaser Party’s breach of any of the representations, warranties, covenants or agreements made by such Purchaser 
Party in this Agreement or in the other Transaction Documents. The indemnification required by this Section 4.10 shall be made by periodic 
payments of the amount thereof during the course of the investigation or defense, as and when bills are received or are incurred. The 
indemnity agreements contained herein shall be in addition to any cause of action or similar right of any Purchaser Party against the 
Company or others and any liabilities the Company may be subject to pursuant to law.
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4.11 Reservation and Listing of Securities.

(a) The Company shall maintain a reserve from its duly authorized shares of Common Stock for issuance pursuant to the 
Transaction Documents in such amount as may then be required to fulfill its obligations in full under the Transaction Documents. 
On a monthly basis, the Company will adjust the reserve as necessary to make sure that 300% of the Required Minimum is 
available. However, at no point should the reserve be adjusted downwards.

(b) If, on any date, the number of authorized but unissued (and otherwise unreserved) shares of Common Stock is less than 
300% of the Required Minimum on such date, then the Board of Directors shall use commercially reasonable efforts to amend the 
Company’s certificate or articles of incorporation to increase the number of authorized but unissued shares of Common Stock to at 
least 300% of the Required Minimum at such time, as soon as possible and in any event not later than the 75th day after such date.

(c) The Company shall, if applicable: (i) in the time and manner required by the principal Trading Market, prepare and file 
with such Trading Market an additional shares listing application covering a number of shares of Common Stock at least equal to 
the Required Minimum on the date of such application, (ii) take all steps necessary to cause such shares of Common Stock to be 
approved for listing or quotation on such Trading Market as soon as possible thereafter, (iii) provide to the Purchasers evidence of 
such listing or quotation and (iv) maintain the listing or quotation of such Common Stock on any date at least equal to the Required 
Minimum on such date on such Trading Market or another Trading Market.

4.12 Participation in Future Financing.

(a) From the date hereof until the date that is the 24-month anniversary of the last Closing, upon any issuance by the 
Company or any of its Subsidiaries of Common Stock, Common Stock Equivalents or debt for cash consideration, Indebtedness, 
assignment, or a combination of units hereof (a “Subsequent Financing”), the Purchaser shall have the right to participate in up to 
an amount of the Subsequent Financing equal to 100% of the Subsequent Financing (the “Participation Maximum”) on the same 
terms, conditions and price provided for in the Subsequent Financing.

(b) At least five (5) Trading Days prior to the closing of the Subsequent Financing, the Company shall deliver to the 
Purchaser a written notice of its intention to effect a Subsequent Financing (“Pre-Notice”), which Pre-Notice shall ask such 
Purchaser if it wants to review the details of such financing (such additional notice, a “Subsequent Financing Notice”). Upon the 
request of the Purchaser, and only upon a request by such Purchaser, for a Subsequent Financing Notice, the Company shall 
promptly, but no later than one (1) Trading Day after such request, deliver a Subsequent Financing Notice to such Purchaser. The 
Subsequent Financing Notice shall describe in reasonable detail the proposed terms of such Subsequent Financing, the amount of 
proceeds intended to be raised thereunder and the Person or Persons through or with whom such Subsequent Financing is proposed 
to be effected and shall include a term sheet or similar document relating thereto as an attachment.
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(c) Any Purchaser desiring to participate in such Subsequent Financing must provide written notice to the Company by not 

later than 5:30 p.m. (New York City time) on the fifth (5th) Trading Day after the Purchaser has received the Pre-Notice that such 
Purchaser is willing to participate in the Subsequent Financing, the amount of such Purchaser’s participation, and representing and 
warranting that such Purchaser has such funds ready, willing, and available for investment on the terms set forth in the Subsequent 

Financing Notice. If the Company receives no such notice from the Purchaser as of such fifth (5th) Trading Day, such Purchaser 
shall be deemed to have notified the Company that it does not elect to participate.

(d) If by 5:30 p.m. (New York City time) on the fifth (5th ) Trading Day after the Purchaser has received the Pre-Notice, 
notifications by the Purchaser of its willingness to participate in the Subsequent Financing (or to cause their designees to 
participate) is, in the aggregate, less than the total amount of the Subsequent Financing, then the Company may effect the 
remaining portion of such Subsequent Financing on the terms and with the Persons set forth in the Subsequent Financing Notice.

(e) If by 5:30 p.m. (New York City time) on the fifth (5th) Trading Day after the Purchaser has received the Pre-Notice, the 
Company receives responses to a Subsequent Financing Notice from the Purchaser seeking to purchase more than the aggregate 
amount of the Participation Maximum, the Purchaser shall have the right to purchase its Pro Rata Portion (as defined below) of the 
Participation Maximum. “Pro Rata Portion” means the ratio of (x) the Subscription Amount of Securities purchased by the 
Purchaser participating under this Section 4.12 and (y) the sum of the aggregate Subscription Amounts of Securities purchased by 
all Purchasers participating under this Section 4.12.

(f) The Company must provide the Purchaser with a second Subsequent Financing Notice, and the Purchaser will again 
have the right of participation set forth above in this Section 4.12, if the Subsequent Financing subject to the initial Subsequent 
Financing Notice is not consummated for any reason on the terms set forth in such Subsequent Financing Notice within thirty (30) 
Trading Days after the date of the initial Subsequent Financing Notice.

(g) The Company and the Purchaser agree that if any Purchaser elects to participate in the Subsequent Financing, the 
transaction documents related to the Subsequent Financing shall not include any term or provision whereby such Purchaser shall be 
required to agree to any restrictions on trading as to any of the Securities purchased hereunder or be required to consent to any 
amendment to or termination of, or grant any waiver, release or the like under or in connection with, this Agreement, without the 
prior written consent of such Purchaser.
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(h) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Section 4.12 and unless otherwise agreed to by such Purchaser, the 
Company shall either confirm in writing to such Purchaser that the transaction with respect to the Subsequent Financing has been 
abandoned or shall publicly disclose its intention to issue the securities in the Subsequent Financing, in either case in such a manner 

such that such Purchaser will not be in possession of any material, non-public information, by the tenth (10th Business Day 

following delivery of the Subsequent Financing Notice. If by such tenth (10th) Business Day, no public disclosure regarding a 
transaction with respect to the Subsequent Financing has been made, and no notice regarding the abandonment of such transaction 
has been received by such Purchaser, such transaction shall be deemed to have been abandoned and such Purchaser shall not be 
deemed to be in possession of any material, non-public information with respect to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries. 

(i) Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Section 4.12 shall not apply in respect of an Exempt Issuance.

4.13 Subsequent Equity Sales.

(a) From the date hereof until such time that the Purchaser no longer holds the Note, in the event the Company or any of 
its Subsidiaries has received and wishes to accept a bona fide offer from a Person(s) other than the Purchaser (the “Third-Party 
Offer”), to effect or enter into an agreement to effect any issuance by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries of Common Stock or 
Common Stock Equivalents (or a combination of units thereof) involving a Variable Rate Transaction (the “Offered Securities”), 
the Company shall give notice thereof to Purchaser, which notice shall include a description of the material economic terms and 
conditions of such Third-Party Offer in connection with the Offered Securities (the “Sale Notice”). “Variable Rate Transaction” 
means a transaction in which the Company (i) issues or sells any debt or equity securities that are convertible into, exchangeable or 
exercisable for, or include the right to receive, additional shares of Common Stock either (A) at a conversion price, exercise price 
or exchange rate or other price that is based upon, and/or varies with, the trading prices of or quotations for the shares of Common 
Stock at any time after the initial issuance of such debt or equity securities or (B) with a conversion, exercise or exchange price that 
is subject to being reset at some future date after the initial issuance of such debt or equity security or upon the occurrence of 
specified or contingent events directly or indirectly related to the business of the Company or the market for the Common Stock or 
(ii) enters into any agreement, including, but not limited to, an equity line of credit, whereby the Company may issue securities at a 
future determined price. In the event the Company or any of its Subsidiaries does not follow the provisions of this Section 4.13, 
then the Purchaser shall be entitled to obtain injunctive relief against the Company to preclude any such issuance, which remedy 
shall be in addition to any right to collect damages.

(b) The Purchaser shall have the option for a period of two (2) days from the giving of the Sale Notice (the “Two-Day 
Period”) to elect to purchase the Offered Securities at the same price and subject to the same material terms and conditions as 
described in the Sales Notice. The Purchaser may exercise such right by notifying the Company in writing, before expiration of the 
Two-Day Period.
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(c) Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Purchaser has not elected to purchase the Offered Securities within the Two-Day 
Period, the Purchaser shall be deemed to have forfeited any right to purchase the Offered Securities, and the Company or the 
Subsidiary shall be free to sell all, but not less than all, of the Offered Securities on terms and conditions substantially similar to 
(and in no event more favorable to the Person(s) identified in the Sale Notice) the terms and conditions set forth in the Sale Notice, 
provided that such sale is consummated within ninety (90) days after receipt of the Sale Notice (if such sale is not consummated 
within such ninety (90) day period, such sale again becoming subject to the provisions of this Section 4.13).

(d) Section 4.13 shall not apply in respect of an Exempt Issuance, except that no Variable Rate Transaction shall be an 
Exempt Issuance.

4.14 Further Financing Restrictions; Exclusivity.

(a) During the period commencing on the date hereof and for so long as any Principal on the Note remains outstanding, 
neither the Company nor any of its affiliates or Subsidiaries, nor any of its or their respective officers, employees, directors, agents 
or other representatives, will, without the prior written consent of the Investor (which consent may be withheld, delayed or 
conditioned in the Investor’s sole discretion), directly or indirectly: (a) solicit, initiate, encourage or accept any other inquiries, 
proposals or offers from any Person (other than the Investor) relating to any exchange (i) of any security of the Company or any of 
its Subsidiaries for any other security of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, except to the extent (x) consummated pursuant to 
an exchange registered under a registration statement of the Company filed pursuant to the 1933 Act and declared effective by the 
Commission or (y) such exchange is exempt from registration pursuant to an exemption provided under the 1933 Act (other than 
Section 3(a)(10) of the 1933 Act) or (ii) of any indebtedness or other securities of, or claim against, the Company or any of its 
Subsidiaries relying on the exemption provided by Section 3(a)(10) of the 1933 Act (any such transaction described in clauses (i) or 
(ii), an “Exchange Transaction”); (b) enter into, effect, alter, amend, announce or recommend to its stockholders any Exchange 
Transaction with any Person (other than the Investor); or (c) participate in any discussions, conversations, negotiations or other 
communications with any Person (other than the Investor) regarding any Exchange Transaction, or furnish to any Person (other 
than the Investor) any information with respect to any Exchange Transaction, or otherwise cooperate in any way, assist or 
participate in, facilitate or encourage any effort or attempt by any Person (other than the Investor) to seek an Exchange Transaction 
involving the Company or any of its Subsidiaries. Notwithstanding the foregoing or anything contained herein to the contrary, for 
so long as any Principal on the Note remains outstanding, neither the Company nor any of its affiliates or Subsidiaries, nor any of 
its or their respective officers, employees, directors, agents or other representatives, will, without the prior written consent of the 
Investor (which consent may be withheld, delayed or conditioned in the Investor’s sole discretion), directly or indirectly, cooperate 
in any way, assist or participate in, facilitate or encourage any effort or attempt by any Person (other than the Investor) to effect any 
acquisition of securities or indebtedness of, or claim against, the Company by such Person from an existing holder of such 
securities, indebtedness or claim in connection with a proposed exchange of such securities or indebtedness of, or claim against, the 
Company (whether pursuant to Section 3(a)(9) or 3(a)(10) of the 1933 Act or otherwise) (a “Third Party Exchange Transfer”). 
The Company, its affiliates and Subsidiaries, and each of its and their respective officers, employees, directors, agents or other 
representatives shall immediately cease and cause to be terminated all existing discussions, conversations, negotiations and other 
communications with any Persons (other than the Investor) with respect to any of the foregoing. The Company shall promptly (and 
in no event later than 24 hours after receipt) notify (which notice shall be provided orally and in writing and shall identify the 
Person making the inquiry, request, proposal or offer and set forth the material terms thereof) the Investor after receipt of any 
inquiry, request, proposal or offer relating to any Exchange Transaction or Third Party Exchange Transfer, and shall promptly (and 
in no event later than 24 hours after receipt) provide copies to the Investor of any written inquiries, requests, proposals or offers 
relating thereto. The Company agrees that it and its affiliates and Subsidiaries, and each of its and their respective officers, 
employees, directors, agents or other representatives Subsidiaries will not enter into any agreement with any Person subsequent to 
the date hereof which prohibits the Company from providing any information to the Investor in accordance with this provision. For 
all purposes of this Agreement, violations of the restrictions set forth in this Section 4.14 by any Subsidiary or affiliate of the 
Company, or any officer, employee, director, agent or other representative of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or affiliates 
shall be deemed a direct breach of this Section 4.14 by the Company.
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(b) From the date hereof until the earlier of (i) twenty-four (24) months following the Closing Date (such later date, the 
“Trigger Date”), neither the Company, nor any affiliate, nor any Subsidiary shall directly or indirectly, offer, sell, grant any option 
to purchase, or otherwise dispose of (or announce any offer, sale, grant or any option to purchase or other disposition of) any of the 
Company’s or any Subsidiary’s equity or equity equivalent securities, including without limitation any debt, preferred stock or 
other instrument or security that is, at any time during its life and under any circumstances, convertible into or exchangeable or 
exercisable for Common Stock or Common Stock Equivalents (any such offer, sale, grant, disposition or announcement being 
referred to as a “Subsequent Placement”) unless the Company, affiliate, or Subsidiary shall have first offered such securities to the 
Investor; provided, however, the thirty (30) day period set forth in this Section 4.14 shall be extended for the number of Trading 
Days during such period in which (i) trading in the Common Stock is suspended by any Trading Market. Notwithstanding anything 
to the contrary contained herein, the foregoing restriction shall not apply to (a) securities required to be issued pursuant to 
contractual obligations of the Company in effect as of the date of this Agreement that are set forth on Schedule 4.14 , (b) equity 
securities issued or issuable pursuant to employee benefit or purchase plans in effect as of the date of this Agreement or pursuant to 
bona fide employee benefit or purchase plans established during the period described in the first sentence of this Section 4.14 or (c) 
equity securities issued as an “equity kicker” in connection with any direct or indirect non-convertible debt financings, by the 
Company to a bank or venture fund whose principal business is to lend money by way of non-convertible debt financing (but not to 
a hedge fund or private equity fund) that is approved by the Board of Directors; provided that the value of the “equity kicker” 
portion of any such non-convertible debt financing, including warrants, options or other rights to purchase capital stock and other 
interests convertible into capital stock of the Company, shall not exceed such amounts which are customary in similar transactions 
and in no event (i) shall such value exceed ten percent (10%) of the value of the non-convertible indebtedness being borrowed, or 
(ii) the number of shares of Common Stock or securities convertible into or exchangeable for Common Stock issuable pursuant to 
this clause (c) exceed, in the aggregate, two percent (2.0%) of the shares of Common Stock outstanding as of the date of this 
Agreement. The Company and the Investor agree that the restrictions contained in this Section 4.14 are reasonable and a necessary 
inducement to the Purchaser’s agreement to purchase the Securities offered herein. The Company and Purchaser further agree that 
the liquidated damages for a violation of this provision shall equal $100,000 per violation.
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4.15 Equal Treatment of Purchasers. No consideration (including any modification of any Transaction Document) shall be offered 
or paid to any Person to amend or consent to a waiver or modification of any provision of this Agreement unless the same consideration is 
also offered to all of the parties to this Agreement. Further, the Company shall not make any payment of principal or interest on the Note in 
amounts which are disproportionate to the principal amount outstanding on the Note at any applicable time. For clarification purposes, this 
provision constitutes a separate right granted to the Purchaser by the Company and negotiated separately by the Purchaser, and is intended 
for the Company to treat the Purchasers as a class and shall not in any way be construed as the Purchasers acting in concert or as a group 
with respect to the purchase, disposition or voting of Securities or otherwise.

4.16 Certain Transactions and Confidentiality. The Purchaser covenants that neither it, nor any Affiliate acting on its behalf or 
pursuant to any understanding with it will (i) execute any Short Sales, of any of the Company’s securities during the period commencing 
with the execution of this Agreement and ending at such time that the transactions contemplated by this Agreement are first publicly 
announced pursuant to the initial press release as described in Section 4.6 and (ii) execute any Short Sales of the Common Stock from the 
date hereof until the earlier of (x) 5 month anniversary of the date hereof and (y) the date that the Note is no longer outstanding (provided 
that this provision shall not prohibit any sales made where a corresponding Notice of Conversion or Notice of Exercise is tendered to the 
Company and the shares received upon such conversion or exercise are used to close out such sale) (a “Prohibited Short Sale”). The 
Purchaser covenants that until such time as the transactions contemplated by this Agreement are publicly disclosed by the Company 
pursuant to the initial press release as described in Section 4.6, such Purchaser will maintain the confidentiality of the existence and terms of 
this transaction and the information included in the Transaction Documents and the Disclosure Schedules. Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
and notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement to the contrary, the Company expressly acknowledges and agrees that (i) no 
Purchaser makes any representation, warranty or covenant hereby that it will not engage in effecting transactions in any securities of the 
Company after the time that the transactions contemplated by this Agreement are first publicly announced pursuant to the initial press 
release as described in Section 4.6, (ii) except for a Prohibited Short Sale, no Purchaser shall be restricted or prohibited from effecting any 
transactions in any securities of the Company in accordance with applicable securities laws from and after the time that the transactions 
contemplated by this Agreement are first publicly announced pursuant to the initial press release as described in Section 4.6 and (iii) no 
Purchaser shall have any duty of confidentiality to the Company or its Subsidiaries after the issuance of the initial press release as described 
in Section 4.6. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the case of the Purchaser that is a multi-managed investment vehicle whereby separate 
portfolio managers manage separate portions of such Purchaser’s assets and the portfolio managers have no direct knowledge of the 
investment decisions made by the portfolio managers managing other portions of such Purchaser’s assets, the covenant set forth above shall 
only apply with respect to the portion of assets managed by the portfolio manager that made the investment decision to purchase the 
Securities covered by this Agreement.

34

Page 92 of 145Submission Proof - D:\Dropbox (SEC Compliance)\2016 OPERATIONS\2016 EDGAR\04_April\DI...

4/15/2016file:///D:/Dropbox%20(SEC%20Compliance)/2016%20OPERATIONS/2016%20EDGAR/04_April/DIR...



4.17 Form D; Blue Sky Filings. The Company agrees to timely file a Form D with respect to the Securities as required under 
Regulation D and to provide a copy thereof, promptly upon request of any Purchaser. The Company shall take such action as the Company 
shall reasonably determine is necessary in order to obtain an exemption for, or to qualify the Securities for, sale to the Purchasers at the 
Closing under applicable securities or “Blue Sky” laws of the states of the United States, and shall provide evidence of such actions 
promptly upon request of any Purchaser.

4.17 Piggy-Back Registrations. If at any time prior to the conversion of the Note, the Company shall determine to prepare and file 
with the Commission a registration statement relating to an offering for its own account or the account of others under the Securities Act of 
any of its equity securities (a “Registration Statement”), other than on Form S-4 or Form S-8 (each as promulgated under the Securities Act) 
or their then equivalents relating to equity securities to be issued solely in connection with any acquisition of any entity or business or equity 
securities issuable in connection with the Company’s stock option or other employee benefit plans, then the Company shall deliver to each 
Holder a written notice of such determination and, if within fifteen days after the date of the delivery of such notice, any such Holder shall 
so request in writing, the Company shall include in such registration statement all or any part of such Registrable Securities such Holder 
requests to be registered; provided, however, that the Company shall not be required to register any Registrable Securities pursuant to this 
Section 6(e) that are eligible for resale pursuant to Rule 144 (without volume restrictions or current public information requirements) 
promulgated by the Commission pursuant to the Securities Act or that are the subject of a then effective Registration Statement

ARTICLE V.
MISCELLANEOUS

5.1 Termination. This Agreement may be terminated by the Purchaser, as to such Purchaser’s obligations hereunder, by written 
notice to the other parties, if the First Closing has not been consummated on or before April 1, 2016; provided, however, that such 
termination will not affect the right of any party to sue for any breach by any other party (or parties).
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5.2 Fees and Expenses. At each Closing, the Company has agreed to reimburse The Purchaser the sum of $1,500 for expenses 
associated with due diligence, and its legal fees, which shall be paid at the Closing. The Company shall deliver to the Purchaser, prior to the 
Closing, a completed and executed copy of the Closing Statement, attached hereto as Annex A. Except as expressly set forth in the 
Transaction Documents to the contrary, each party shall pay the fees and expenses of its advisers, counsel, accountants and other experts, if 
any, and all other expenses incurred by such party incident to the negotiation, preparation, execution, delivery and performance of this 
Agreement. The Company shall pay all Transfer Agent fees (including, without limitation, any fees required for same-day processing of any 
instruction letter delivered by the Company and any conversion or exercise notice delivered by the Purchaser), stamp taxes and other taxes 
and duties levied in connection with the delivery of any Securities to the Purchasers.

5.3 Entire Agreement. The Transaction Documents, together with the exhibits and schedules thereto, contain the entire 
understanding of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and thereof and supersede all prior agreements and understandings, oral 
or written, with respect to such matters, which the parties acknowledge have been merged into such documents, exhibits and schedules.

5.4 Notices. Any and all notices or other communications or deliveries required or permitted to be provided hereunder shall be in 
writing and shall be deemed given and effective on the earliest of: (a) the date of transmission, if such notice or communication is delivered 
via facsimile at the facsimile number set forth on the signature pages attached hereto at or prior to 5:30 p.m. (New York City time) on a 
Trading Day, (b) the next Trading Day after the date of transmission, if such notice or communication is delivered via facsimile at the 
facsimile number set forth on the signature pages attached hereto on a day that is not a Trading Day or later than 5:30 p.m. (New York City 

time) on any Trading Day, (c) the second (2nd) Trading Day following the date of mailing, if sent by U.S. nationally recognized overnight 
courier service or (d) upon actual receipt by the party to whom such notice is required to be given. The address for such notices and 
communications shall be as set forth on the signature pages attached hereto.

5.5 Amendments; Waivers. No provision of this Agreement may be waived, modified, supplemented or amended except in a 
written instrument signed, in the case of an amendment, by the Company and the Purchasers holding at least 67% in interest of the 
Securities then outstanding or, in the case of a waiver, by the party against whom enforcement of any such waived provision is sought. No 
waiver of any default with respect to any provision, condition or requirement of this Agreement shall be deemed to be a continuing waiver 
in the future or a waiver of any subsequent default or a waiver of any other provision, condition or requirement hereof, nor shall any delay 
or omission of any party to exercise any right hereunder in any manner impair the exercise of any such right.

5.6 Headings. The headings herein are for convenience only, do not constitute a part of this Agreement and shall not be deemed to 
limit or affect any of the provisions hereof.

5.7 Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their successors and 
permitted assigns. The Company may not assign this Agreement or any rights or obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of 
the Purchaser (other than by merger). The Purchaser may assign any or all of its rights under this Agreement to any Person to whom such 
Purchaser assigns or transfers any Securities, provided that such transferee agrees in writing to be bound, with respect to the transferred 
Securities, by the provisions of the Transaction Documents that apply to the “Purchaser.”
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5.8 No Third-Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is intended for the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors 
and permitted assigns and is not for the benefit of, nor may any provision hereof be enforced by, any other Person, except as otherwise set 
forth in Section 4.10.

5.9 Governing Law. All questions concerning the construction, validity, enforcement and interpretation of the Transaction 
Documents shall be governed by and construed and enforced in accordance with the internal laws of the State of New York, without regard 
to the principles of conflicts of law thereof. Each party agrees that all legal proceedings concerning the interpretations, enforcement and 
defense of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and any other Transaction Documents (whether brought against a party hereto 
or its respective affiliates, directors, officers, shareholders, partners, members, employees or agents) shall be commenced exclusively in the 
state and federal courts sitting in the City of New York. Each party hereby irrevocably submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of the state and 
federal courts sitting in the City of New York, Borough of Manhattan for the adjudication of any dispute hereunder or in connection 
herewith or with any transaction contemplated hereby or discussed herein (including with respect to the enforcement of any of the 
Transaction Documents), and hereby irrevocably waives, and agrees not to assert in any suit, action or proceeding, any claim that it is not 
personally subject to the jurisdiction of any such court, that such suit, action or proceeding is improper or is an inconvenient venue for such 
proceeding. Each party hereby irrevocably waives personal service of process and consents to process being served in any such suit, action 
or proceeding by mailing a copy thereof via registered or certified mail or overnight delivery (with evidence of delivery) to such party at the 
address in effect for notices to it under this Agreement and agrees that such service shall constitute good and sufficient service of process 
and notice thereof. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to limit in any way any right to serve process in any other manner permitted 
by law. If either party shall commence an action, suit or proceeding to enforce any provisions of the Transaction Documents, then, in 
addition to the obligations of the Company under Section 4.10, the prevailing party in such action, suit or proceeding shall be reimbursed by 
the other party for its reasonable attorneys’ fees and other costs and expenses incurred with the investigation, preparation and prosecution of 
such action or proceeding.

5.10 Survival. The representations and warranties contained herein shall survive the Closings and the delivery of the Securities.

5.11 Execution. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, all of which when taken together shall be 
considered one and the same agreement and shall become effective when counterparts have been signed by each party and delivered to each 
other party, it being understood that the parties need not sign the same counterpart. In the event that any signature is delivered by facsimile 
transmission or by e-mail delivery of a “.pdf” format data file, such signature shall create a valid and binding obligation of the party 
executing (or on whose behalf such signature is executed) with the same force and effect as if such facsimile or “.pdf” signature page were 
an original thereof.
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5.12 Severability. If any term, provision, covenant or restriction of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be 
invalid, illegal, void or unenforceable, the remainder of the terms, provisions, covenants and restrictions set forth herein shall remain in full 
force and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired or invalidated, and the parties hereto shall use their commercially reasonable 
efforts to find and employ an alternative means to achieve the same or substantially the same result as that contemplated by such term, 
provision, covenant or restriction. It is hereby stipulated and declared to be the intention of the parties that they would have executed the 
remaining terms, provisions, covenants and restrictions without including any of such that may be hereafter declared invalid, illegal, void or 
unenforceable.

5.13 Rescission and Withdrawal Right. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in (and without limiting any similar 
provisions of) any of the other Transaction Documents, whenever any Purchaser exercises a right, election, demand or option under a 
Transaction Document and the Company does not timely perform its related obligations within the periods therein provided, then such 
Purchaser may rescind or withdraw, in its sole discretion from time to time upon written notice to the Company, any relevant notice, 
demand or election in whole or in part without prejudice to its future actions and rights; provided, however, that in the case of a rescission of 
a conversion of a Note, the applicable Purchaser shall be required to return any shares of Common Stock subject to any such rescinded 
conversion concurrently with the return to such Purchaser of the aggregate exercise price paid to the Company for such shares and the 
restoration of such Purchaser’s right to acquire such shares.

5.14 Replacement of Securities. If any certificate or instrument evidencing any Securities is mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed, the 
Company shall issue or cause to be issued in exchange and substitution for and upon cancellation thereof (in the case of mutilation), or in 
lieu of and substitution therefor, a new certificate or instrument, but only upon receipt of evidence reasonably satisfactory to the Company 
of such loss, theft or destruction. The applicant for a new certificate or instrument under such circumstances shall also pay any reasonable 
third-party costs (including customary indemnity) associated with the issuance of such replacement Securities.

5.15 Remedies. In addition to being entitled to exercise all rights provided herein or granted by law, including recovery of 
damages, each of the Purchasers and the Company will be entitled to specific performance under the Transaction Documents. The parties 
agree that monetary damages may not be adequate compensation for any loss incurred by reason of any breach of obligations contained in 
the Transaction Documents and hereby agree to waive and not to assert in any action for specific performance of any such obligation the 
defense that a remedy at law would be adequate.

5.16 Payment Set Aside. To the extent that the Company makes a payment or payments to any Purchaser pursuant to any 
Transaction Document or the Purchaser enforces or exercises its rights thereunder, and such payment or payments or the proceeds of such 
enforcement or exercise or any part thereof are subsequently invalidated, declared to be fraudulent or preferential, set aside, recovered from, 
disgorged by or are required to be refunded, repaid or otherwise restored to the Company, a trustee, receiver or any other Person under any 
law (including, without limitation, any bankruptcy law, state or federal law, common law or equitable cause of action), then to the extent of 
any such restoration the obligation or part thereof originally intended to be satisfied shall be revived and continued in full force and effect as 
if such payment had not been made or such enforcement or setoff had not occurred.

38

Page 96 of 145Submission Proof - D:\Dropbox (SEC Compliance)\2016 OPERATIONS\2016 EDGAR\04_April\DI...

4/15/2016file:///D:/Dropbox%20(SEC%20Compliance)/2016%20OPERATIONS/2016%20EDGAR/04_April/DIR...



5.17 Usury. To the extent it may lawfully do so, the Company hereby agrees not to insist upon or plead or in any manner 
whatsoever claim, and will resist any and all efforts to be compelled to take the benefit or advantage of, usury laws wherever enacted, now 
or at any time hereafter in force, in connection with any claim, action or proceeding that may be brought by any Purchaser in order to 
enforce any right or remedy under any Transaction Document. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary contained in any Transaction 
Document, it is expressly agreed and provided that the total liability of the Company under the Transaction Documents for payments in the 
nature of interest shall not exceed the maximum lawful rate authorized under applicable law (the “Maximum Rate”), and, without limiting 
the foregoing, in no event shall any rate of interest or default interest, or both of them, when aggregated with any other sums in the nature of 
interest that the Company may be obligated to pay under the Transaction Documents exceed such Maximum Rate. It is agreed that if the 
maximum contract rate of interest allowed by law and applicable to the Transaction Documents is increased or decreased by statute or any 
official governmental action subsequent to the date hereof, the new maximum contract rate of interest allowed by law will be the Maximum 
Rate applicable to the Transaction Documents from the effective date thereof forward, unless such application is precluded by applicable 
law. If under any circumstances whatsoever, interest in excess of the Maximum Rate is paid by the Company to any Purchaser with respect 
to indebtedness evidenced by the Transaction Documents, such excess shall be applied by such Purchaser to the unpaid principal balance of 
any such indebtedness or be refunded to the Company, the manner of handling such excess to be at such Purchaser’s election.

5.18 Liquidated Damages. The Company’s obligations to pay any partial liquidated damages or other amounts owing under the 
Transaction Documents is a continuing obligation of the Company and shall not terminate until all unpaid partial liquidated damages and 
other amounts have been paid notwithstanding the fact that the instrument or security pursuant to which such partial liquidated damages or 
other amounts are due and payable shall have been canceled.

5.19 Saturdays, Sundays, Holidays, etc. If the last or appointed day for the taking of any action or the expiration of any right 
required or granted herein shall not be a Business Day, then such action may be taken or such right may be exercised on the next succeeding 
Business Day.

5.20 Construction. The parties agree that each of them and/or their respective counsel have reviewed and had an opportunity to 
revise the Transaction Documents and, therefore, the normal rule of construction to the effect that any ambiguities are to be resolved against 
the drafting party shall not be employed in the interpretation of the Transaction Documents or any amendments thereto. In addition, each 
and every reference to share prices and shares of Common Stock in any Transaction Document shall be subject to adjustment for reverse and 
forward stock splits, stock dividends, stock combinations and other similar transactions of the Common Stock that occur after the date of 
this Agreement.

5.21 WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. IN ANY ACTION, SUIT, OR PROCEEDING IN ANY JURISDICTION BROUGHT BY 
ANY PARTY AGAINST ANY OTHER PARTY, THE PARTIES EACH KNOWINGLY AND INTENTIONALLY, TO THE 
GREATEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, HEREBY ABSOLUTELY, UNCONDITIONALLY, 
IRREVOCABLY AND EXPRESSLY WAIVES FOREVER TRIAL BY JURY. 

(Signature Pages Follow)

39

Page 97 of 145Submission Proof - D:\Dropbox (SEC Compliance)\2016 OPERATIONS\2016 EDGAR\04_April\DI...

4/15/2016file:///D:/Dropbox%20(SEC%20Compliance)/2016%20OPERATIONS/2016%20EDGAR/04_April/DIR...



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Securities Purchase Agreement to be duly executed by their 
respective authorized signatories as of the date first indicated above.

DIRECTVIEW HOLDINGS, INC. Address for Notice:

By: Fax:
Name:
Title:
With a copy to (which shall not constitute notice):

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
SIGNATURE PAGE FOR PURCHASER FOLLOWS]
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[PURCHASER SIGNATURE PAGES TO SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have caused this Securities Purchase Agreement to be duly executed by their 
respective authorized signatories as of the date first indicated above.

Name of Purchaser: ________________________________________________________

Signature of Authorized Signatory of Purchaser: __________________________________

Name of Authorized Signatory: ____________________________________________________

Title of Authorized Signatory: _____________________________________________________

Email Address of Authorized Signatory: _____________________________________________

Facsimile Number of Authorized Signatory: __________________________________________

Address for Notice to Purchaser:

Address for Delivery of Securities to Purchaser (if not same as address for notice):

First Closing Subscription Amount: ____________

First Closing Principal Amount: _____________

Additional Closings Subscription Amount: _____________

Additional Closings Principal Amount: _____________

EIN Number: _______________________
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Annex A 

CLOSING STATEMENT

Pursuant to the attached Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of the date hereto, the purchasers shall purchase Note from DirectView 
Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”). All funds will be wired into an account maintained by the Company. All funds will be disbursed in 
accordance with this Closing Statement.

Disbursement Date: April 1, 2016

I. PURCHASE PRICE

Gross Proceeds to be Received $100,000.00

II. DISBURSEMENTS

Purchaser Legal Fees $ 1,500.00
$
$
$
$

Total Amount Disbursed: $ 98,500.00

WIRE INSTRUCTIONS:

Bank Name: Capital One Bank Account Number: 752 764 6515
Trump Park Ave Branch
502 Park Ave Beneficiary: Directview Holding, Inc.
New York NY 10022
(212) 980-3840

Routing Number: 021407912 Beneficiary Address: 21218 ST Andrews Blvd., 
SUITE 323, Boca Raton, FL 33433

Duly executed this 1st day of April, 2016:

DirectView Holdings, Inc.

By:
Name:
Title:
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Schedule 3.1(a)

Subsidiaries

DirectView Video Technologies, Inc.
DirectView Security Systems, Inc.
Ralston Communication Services, Inc.
Meeting Technologies, Inc.
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Schedule 3.1(b)

Organization and Qualification

The Company was incorporated in the State of Delaware on October 2, 2006. On July 6, 2012 the Company attempted to change its 
domicile from Delaware and incorporated in the state of Nevada. However, back in July of 2012, Company never filed Articles of 
Conversion with the State of Nevada, and failed to file Articles of Conversion with the State of Delaware to complete the conversion 
process. In addition, the Company did not obtain a majority consent to effectuate the redomicle as required by law. As such, the Company 
remedied these errors and has obtained a majority consent and filed a Schedule 14C with the SEC on April 18, 2014. Following that filing, 
and in accordance with the Rules of the Exchange Act, the Company filed Articles of Conversion with the State of Nevada and the State 
Delaware to complete the redomicle.
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Schedule 3.1(g)

Capitalization

500,000,000 common shares authorized
309,000,000 issued and additional 25,000,000 to be issued in connection with the redemption of certain convertible notes on 4/7/14

5,000,000 preferred authorized
0 preferred issued

There are no options

Affiliate Shares

Roger Ralston has ___87,100,000_Shares

Michele Ralston has _250,000_Shares

Convertible debentures and notes outstanding (non-affiliate)

Sharon Standowski $44,246.00 aggregate principal amount convertible at par and redeemable by the company at 120% of face value + 
interest issued in 2008

Ascendant Partners $15,246.00 aggregate principal amount convertible at par and redeemable by the company at 120% of face value + 
interest issued in 2008

Ascendant Partners $10,000.00 principal amount convertible at .00075 and redeemable by the company at 120% of face value + interest 
issued 10/13

Ascendant Partners $25,000.00 principal amount convertible at a 50% VWAP discount due in December 2014 – issued 12/13

Plantation Partners $8,000.00 principal amount convertible at par and redeemable by the company at 120% of face value + interest issued 
8/13

Blulife $25,000.00 which converts at a 50% disc due in January 2015 issued 1/14

$150,000.00 in non convertible debt @ 6% interest issued 3/14

There is an aggregate amount of notes scheduled for redemption on 4/7/2014 for which the company has paid approximately $45,000.00 in 
principal and interest as of that date to complete the redemption.
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Roger Ralston $10,843. Note
Roger Ralston $193,065. Loan

Michele Ralston $481,786. Note
Michele Ralston $8,119. Loan

Dominion Capital LLC, 8% Original Issue Discount Senior Secured Convertible Promissory Note, dated April 11, 2014, in the principal 
amount of $367,753.62.

[___]
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Schedule 3.1(i)

Material Changes; Undisclosed Events, Liabilities or Developments

See Schedule 3.1(b)
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Schedule 3.1(s)

Certain Fees

Not Applicable
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Schedule 3.1(aa)

Solvency

See EDGAR filings on www.sec.gov
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Schedule 3.1(cc)

Accountants

D’ARELLI PURZANZKY, PA
MITCHEL PURZANZKY
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Schedule 4.9

Use of Proceeds
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NEITHER THIS SECURITY NOR THE SECURITIES INTO WHICH THIS SECURITY IS CONVERTIBLE HAVE BEEN 
REGISTERED WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OR THE SECURITIES COMMISSION OF ANY STATE 
IN RELIANCE UPON AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE 
“SECURITIES ACT”), AND, ACCORDINGLY, MAY NOT BE OFFERED OR SOLD EXCEPT PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE 
REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR PURSUANT TO AN AVAILABLE EXEMPTION FROM, OR IN 
A TRANSACTION NOT SUBJECT TO, THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT AND IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS AS EVIDENCED BY A LEGAL OPINION OF COUNSEL TO 
THE TRANSFEROR TO SUCH EFFECT, THE SUBSTANCE OF WHICH SHALL BE REASONABLY ACCEPTABLE TO THE 
COMPANY. THIS SECURITY AND THE SECURITIES ISSUABLE UPON CONVERSION OF THIS SECURITY MAY BE PLEDGED 
IN CONNECTION WITH A BONA FIDE MARGIN ACCOUNT OR OTHER LOAN SECURED BY SUCH SECURITIES.

Original Issue Date: April 1, 2016
Original Conversion Price (subject to adjustment herein): 70% of the lowest traded price in the prior thirty (30) trading days

Purchase Price: $100,000.00

5% ORIGINAL ISSUE DISCOUNT 
CONVERTIBLE PROMISSORY NOTE

DUE OCTOBER 16, 2016

THIS 5% ORIGINAL ISSUE DISCOUNT CONVERTIBLE PROMISSORY NOTE is a duly authorized and validly issued 5% 
Original Issue Discount Convertible Promissory Note of DirectView Holdings, Inc., a Nevada corporation (the “Company” or the 
“Borrower”), having its principal place of business at 21218 Saint Andrews Blvd., Suite 323, Boca Raton, FL 33433, designated as its 5% 
Original Issue Discount Convertible Promissory Note due October 16, 2016 (the “Note”).

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the Company promises to pay to Dominion Capital LLC or its registered assigns (the “Holder”), or 
shall have paid pursuant to the terms hereunder, the principal sum of $105,263.16 on March 31, 2017 (the “Maturity Date”) or such earlier 
date as this Note is required or permitted to be repaid as provided hereunder, and to pay interest to the Holder on the aggregate unconverted 
and then outstanding principal amount of this Note in accordance with the provisions hereof. This Note is subject to the following additional 
provisions:
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Section 1. Definitions. For the purposes hereof, in addition to the terms defined elsewhere in this Note, (a) capitalized terms not 
otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings set forth in the Purchase Agreement and (b) the following terms shall have the following 
meanings:

“Alternate Consideration” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5(e).

“Alternate Conversion Price” means 55% of the lowest traded price during the 25 Trading Day-period immediately prior 
to the applicable Conversion Date.

“Amortization Conversion Rate” Reserved.

“Amortization Payment” Reserved.

“Amortization Payment Date” Reserved.

“Bankruptcy Event” means any of the following events: (a) the Company or any Significant Subsidiary (as such term is 
defined in Rule 1-02(w) of Regulation S-X) thereof commences a case or other proceeding under any bankruptcy, reorganization, 
arrangement, adjustment of debt, relief of debtors, dissolution, insolvency or liquidation or similar law of any jurisdiction relating 
to the Company or any Significant Subsidiary thereof, (b) there is commenced against the Company or any Significant Subsidiary 
thereof any such case or proceeding that is not dismissed within 60 days after commencement, (c) the Company or any Significant 
Subsidiary thereof is adjudicated insolvent or bankrupt or any order of relief or other order approving any such case or proceeding 
is entered, (d) the Company or any Significant Subsidiary thereof suffers any appointment of any custodian or the like for it or any 
substantial part of its property that is not discharged or stayed within 60 calendar days after such appointment, (e) the Company or 
any Significant Subsidiary thereof makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, (f) the Company or any Significant 
Subsidiary thereof calls a meeting of its creditors with a view to arranging a composition, adjustment or restructuring of its debts or 
(g) the Company or any Significant Subsidiary thereof, by any act or failure to act, expressly indicates its consent to, approval of or 
acquiescence in any of the foregoing or takes any corporate or other action for the purpose of effecting any of the foregoing.

“Base Conversion Price” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5(b).

“Beneficial Ownership Limitation” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4(d).

“Business Day” means any day except any Saturday, any Sunday, any day which is a federal legal holiday in the United 
States or any day on which banking institutions in the State of New York are authorized or required by law or other governmental 
action to close.

“Buy-In” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4(c)(v).
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“Change of Control Transaction” means the occurrence after the date hereof of any of (a) an acquisition after the date 
hereof by an individual or legal entity or “group” (as described in Rule 13d-5(b)(1) promulgated under the Exchange Act) of 
effective control (whether through legal or beneficial ownership of capital stock of the Company, by contract or otherwise) of in 
excess of 33% of the voting securities of the Company (other than by means of conversion or exercise of the Note and the 
Securities issued together with the Note), (b) the Company merges into or consolidates with any other Person, or any Person 
merges into or consolidates with the Company and, after giving effect to such transaction, the stockholders of the Company 
immediately prior to such transaction own less than 66% of the aggregate voting power of the Company or the successor entity of 
such transaction, (c) the Company sells or transfers all or substantially all of its assets to another Person and the stockholders of the 
Company immediately prior to such transaction own less than 66% of the aggregate voting power of the acquiring entity 
immediately after the transaction, (d) a replacement at one time or within a three year period of more than one-half of the members 
of the Board of Directors which is not approved by a majority of those individuals who are members of the Board of Directors on 
the Original Issue Date (or by those individuals who are serving as members of the Board of Directors on any date whose 
nomination to the Board of Directors was approved by a majority of the members of the Board of Directors who are members on 
the date hereof), or (e) the execution by the Company of an agreement to which the Company is a party or by which it is bound, 
providing for any of the events set forth in clauses (a) through (d) above.

“Conversion” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 4.

“Conversion Date” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4(a).

“Conversion Price” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4(b).

“Conversion Schedule” means the Conversion Schedule in the form of Schedule 1 attached hereto.

“Conversion Shares” means, collectively, the shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of this Note in 
accordance with the terms hereof.

“Dilutive Issuance” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5(b).

“Dilutive Issuance Notice” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5(b).

“DTC” means the Depository Trust Company.

“DTC/FAST Program” means the DTC’s Fast Automated Securities Transfer Program.

“DWAC” means Deposit Withdrawal at Custodian as defined by the DTC.
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“DWAC Eligible” means that (a) the Common Stock is eligible at DTC for full services pursuant to DTC’s Operational 
Arrangements, including without limitation transfer through DTC’s DWAC system, (b) the Company has been approved (without 
revocation) by the DTC’s underwriting department, (c) the Transfer Agent is approved as an agent in the DTC/FAST Program, (d) 
the Conversion Shares are otherwise eligible for delivery via DWAC, and (e) the Transfer Agent does not have a policy prohibiting 
or limiting delivery of the Conversion Shares via DWAC.

“Equity Conditions” means, during the period in question, (a) the Company shall have duly honored all conversions and 
redemptions scheduled to occur or occurring by virtue of one or more Notices of Conversion of the Holder, if any, (b) the Company 
shall have paid all liquidated damages and other amounts owing to the Holder in respect of this Note, (c) all of the Conversion 
Shares issuable pursuant to the Transaction Documents (and shares issuable in lieu of cash payments of interest) may be resold 
pursuant to Rule 144 without volume or manner-of-sale restrictions or current public information requirements as determined by 
the counsel to the Company as set forth in a written opinion letter to such effect, addressed and acceptable to the Transfer Agent 
and the Holder, (d) the Common Stock is trading on a Trading Market and all of the shares issuable pursuant to the Transaction 
Documents are listed or quoted for trading on such Trading Market (and the Company believes, in good faith, that trading of the 
Common Stock on a Trading Market will continue uninterrupted for the foreseeable future), (e) there is a sufficient number of 
authorized but unissued and otherwise unreserved shares of Common Stock for the issuance of all of the shares then issuable 
pursuant to the Transaction Documents, (f) there is no existing Event of Default and no existing event which, with the passage of 
time or the giving of notice, would constitute an Event of Default, (g) the issuance of the shares in question to the Holder would not 
violate the limitations set forth in Section 4(d) herein, (h) there has been no public announcement of a pending or proposed 
Fundamental Transaction or Change of Control Transaction that has not been consummated, (i) the applicable Holder is not in 
possession of any information provided by the Company that constitutes, or may constitute, material non-public information, (j) for 
each Trading Day in a period of 20 consecutive Trading Days prior to the applicable date in question, the daily dollar trading 
volume for the Common Stock on the principal Trading Market exceeds $70,000 per Trading Day and (i) the Company’s Common 
Stock must be DWAC Eligible.

“Event of Default” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 6(a).

“Fundamental Transaction” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5(e).

“Late Fees” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2(d).

“Make-Whole Amount” means, with respect to the applicable date of determination, an amount in cash equal to all of the 
interest that, but for the applicable conversion or default payment, would have accrued pursuant to Section 2 with respect to the 
applicable principal amount being so converted or redeemed for the period commencing on the applicable redemption date or 
Conversion Date or default payment date and ending on March 31, 2017.
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“Mandatory Default Amount” means either, at the Holder’s discretion (i) the conversion of the outstanding principal 
amount of this Note, plus all accrued and unpaid interest hereon, converted at the Alternative Conversion Price or (ii) the payment 
125% of the outstanding principal amount of this Note and accrued and unpaid interest hereon, in addition to, for both (i) and (ii) 
above, the payment of (a) all other amounts, costs, expenses and liquidated damages due in respect of this Note and (b) the Make-
Whole Amount.

“New York Courts” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 7(d).

“Note Register” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2(c).

“Notice of Conversion” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4(a).

“Original Issue Date” means the date of the first issuance of the Note, regardless of any transfers of any Note and 
regardless of the number of instruments which may be issued to evidence such Note.

“Permitted Indebtedness” means the indebtedness evidenced by the Note.

“Permitted Lien” means the individual and collective reference to the following: (a) Liens for taxes, assessments and other 
governmental charges or levies not yet due or Liens for taxes, assessments and other governmental charges or levies being 
contested in good faith and by appropriate proceedings for which adequate reserves (in the good faith judgment of the management 
of the Company) have been established in accordance with GAAP, (b) Liens imposed by law which were incurred in the ordinary 
course of the Company’s business, such as carriers’, warehousemen’s and mechanics’ Liens, statutory landlords’ Liens, and other 
similar Liens arising in the ordinary course of the Company’s business, and which (x) do not individually or in the aggregate 
materially detract from the value of such property or assets or materially impair the use thereof in the operation of the business of 
the Company and its consolidated Subsidiaries or (y) are being contested in good faith by appropriate proceedings, which 
proceedings have the effect of preventing for the foreseeable future the forfeiture or sale of the property or asset subject to such 
Lien and (c) Liens incurred in connection with Permitted Indebtedness.

“Purchase Agreement” means the Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of April 1, 2016 among the Company and the 
original Holders, as amended, modified or supplemented from time to time in accordance with its terms.

“Securities Act” means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.

“Share Delivery Date” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4(c)(ii).
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“Successor Entity” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5(e).

“Trading Day” means a day on which the principal Trading Market is open for trading.

“Trading Market” means any of the following markets or exchanges on which the Common Stock is listed or quoted for 
trading on the date in question: the NYSE MKT, the Nasdaq Capital Market, the Nasdaq Global Market, the Nasdaq Global Select 
Market, the New York Stock Exchange or the OTC Bulletin Board (or any successors to any of the foregoing).

“VWAP” means, for any date, the price determined by the first of the following clauses that applies: (a) if the Common 
Stock is then listed or quoted on a Trading Market, the daily volume weighted average price of the Common Stock for such date (or 
the nearest preceding date) on the Trading Market on which the Common Stock is then listed or quoted as reported by Bloomberg 
L.P. (based on a Trading Day from 9:30 a.m. (New York City time) to 4:02 p.m. (New York City time)), (b) if the OTC Bulletin 
Board is not a Trading Market, the volume weighted average price of the Common Stock for such date (or the nearest preceding 
date) on the OTC Bulletin Board, (c) if the Common Stock is not then listed or quoted for trading on the OTC Bulletin Board and if 
prices for the Common Stock are then reported in the “Pink Sheets” published by Pink OTC Markets, Inc. (or a similar organization 
or agency succeeding to its functions of reporting prices), the most recent bid price per share of the Common Stock so reported, or 
(d) in all other cases, the fair market value of a share of Common Stock as determined by an independent appraiser selected in good 
faith by the Holders of a majority in interest of the Securities then outstanding and reasonably acceptable to the Company, the fees 
and expenses of which shall be paid by the Company.

Section 2. Interest.

a) Payment of Interest in Cash or Kind. The Company shall pay interest to the Holder on the aggregate unconverted and 
then outstanding principal amount of this Note at the rate of 10% per annum, which twelve (12) months’ interest amount shall be 
guaranteed, payable on each Conversion Date (as to that principal amount then being converted) and on the Maturity Date in cash 
or, at the Company’s option, in duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable shares of Common Stock or a 
combination thereof.

b) Interest Calculations. Interest shall be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year, consisting of twelve 30 calendar day 
periods, and shall accrue daily commencing on the Original Issue Date until payment in full of the outstanding principal, together 
with all accrued and unpaid interest, liquidated damages and other amounts which may become due hereunder, has been made. 
Payment of interest in shares of Common Stock shall otherwise occur pursuant to Section 4(c)(ii) herein. Interest hereunder will be 
paid to the Person in whose name this Note is registered on the records of the Company regarding registration and transfers of this 
Note (the “Note Register”). Except as otherwise provided herein, if at any time the Company pays interest partially in cash and 
partially in shares of Common Stock to the holder of the Note, then such payment of cash shall be distributed ratably among the 
holders of the then-outstanding Note based on their (or their predecessor’s) initial purchases of Note pursuant to the Purchase 
Agreement.
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c) Late Fee. All overdue accrued and unpaid interest to be paid hereunder shall entail a late fee at an interest rate equal to 
the lesser of 18% per annum or the maximum rate permitted by applicable law (the “Late Fees”) which shall accrue daily from the 
date such interest is due hereunder through and including the date of actual payment in full.

d) Amortization Payments. Reserved.

e) Prepayment. Prior to the six (6) month anniversary of the Original Issue Date, upon ten (10) days written notice to the 
Holder, the Company may prepay any portion of the principal amount of this Note and any accrued and unpaid interest. If the 
Borrower exercises its right to prepay the Note, the Borrower shall make payment to the Holder of an amount in cash equal to the 
sum of the then outstanding principal amount of this Note and guaranteed interest multiplied by 125%. The Holder may continue to 
convert the Note from the date notice of the prepayment is given until the date of the prepayment.

Section 3. Registration of Transfers and Exchanges.

a) Different Denominations. This Note is exchangeable for an equal aggregate principal amount of Notes of different 
authorized denominations, as requested by the Holder surrendering the same. No service charge will be payable for such 
registration of transfer or exchange.

b) Investment Representations. This Note has been issued subject to certain investment representations of the original 
Holder set forth in the Purchase Agreement and may be transferred or exchanged only in compliance with the Purchase Agreement 
and applicable federal and state securities laws and regulations.

c) Reliance on Note Register. Prior to due presentment for transfer to the Company of this Note, the Company and any 
agent of the Company may treat the Person in whose name this Note is duly registered on the Note Register as the owner hereof for 
the purpose of receiving payment as herein provided and for all other purposes, whether or not this Note is overdue, and neither the 
Company nor any such agent shall be affected by notice to the contrary.
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Section 4. Conversion.

a) Voluntary Conversion. At any time after the Original Issue Date until this Note is no longer outstanding, this Note shall 
be convertible, in whole or in part, into shares of Common Stock at the option of the Holder, at any time and from time to time 
(subject to the conversion limitations set forth in Section 4(d) hereof). The Holder shall effect conversions by delivering to the 
Company a Notice of Conversion, the form of which is attached hereto as Annex A (each, a “Notice of Conversion”), specifying 
therein the principal amount of this Note to be converted and the date on which such conversion shall be effected (such date, the 
“Conversion Date”). If no Conversion Date is specified in a Notice of Conversion, the Conversion Date shall be the date that such 
Notice of Conversion is deemed delivered hereunder. No ink-original Notice of Conversion shall be required, nor shall any 
medallion guarantee (or other type of guarantee or notarization) of any Notice of Conversion form be required. To effect 
conversions hereunder, the Holder shall not be required to physically surrender this Note to the Company unless the entire principal 
amount of this Note, plus all accrued and unpaid interest thereon, has been so converted. Conversions hereunder shall have the 
effect of lowering the outstanding principal amount of this Note in an amount equal to the applicable conversion. The Holder and 
the Company shall maintain records showing the principal amount(s) converted and the date of such conversion(s). The Company 
may deliver an objection to any Notice of Conversion within one (1) Business Day of delivery of such Notice of Conversion. In the 
event of any dispute or discrepancy, the records of the Holder shall be controlling and determinative in the absence of manifest 
error. The Holder, and any assignee by acceptance of this Note, acknowledge and agree that, by reason of the provisions of 
this paragraph, following conversion of a portion of this Note, the unpaid and unconverted principal amount of this Note 
may be less than the amount stated on the face hereof.

b) Conversion Price. The conversion price in effect on any Conversion Date shall be equal to 70% of the lowest traded 
price in the prior thirty (30) trading days, subject to adjustment herein (the “Conversion Price”). Notwithstanding anything herein 
to the contrary, at any time after the occurrence of any Event of Default the Holder may require the Company to, at such Holder’s 
option and otherwise in accordance with the provisions for conversion herein, convert all or any part of this Note into Common 
Stock at the Alternate Conversion Price. All such determinations to be appropriately adjusted for any stock dividend, stock split, 
stock combination, reclassification or similar transaction that proportionately decreases or increases the Common Stock during 
such measuring period. Nothing herein shall limit a Holder’s right to pursue actual damages or declare an Event of Default pursuant 
to Section 6 hereof and the Holder shall have the right to pursue all remedies available to it hereunder, at law or in equity including, 
without limitation, a decree of specific performance and/or injunctive relief. The exercise of any such rights shall not prohibit the 
Holder from seeking to enforce damages pursuant to any other Section hereof or under applicable law.

c) Mechanics of Conversion.

i. Conversion Shares Issuable Upon Conversion of Principal Amount. The number of Conversion Shares issuable 
upon a conversion hereunder shall be determined by the quotient obtained by dividing (x) the outstanding principal 
amount of this Note to be converted by (y) the Conversion Price.
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ii. Delivery of Certificate Upon Conversion. Not later than three (3) Trading Days after each Conversion Date 
(the “Share Delivery Date”), the Company shall deliver, or cause to be delivered, to the Holder (A) a certificate or 
certificates representing the Conversion Shares which, on or after the earlier of (i) the six month anniversary of the 
Original Issue Date or (ii) the Effective Date, shall be free of restrictive legends and trading restrictions (other than those 
which may then be required by the Purchase Agreement) representing the number of Conversion Shares being acquired 
upon the conversion of this Note, (B) a bank check in the amount of accrued and unpaid interest (if the Company has 
elected or is required to pay accrued interest in cash) and (C) a bank check in the amount of the Make-Whole Amount. All 
certificate or certificates required to be delivered by the Company under this Section 4(c) shall be delivered electronically 
through the Depository Trust Company or another established clearing corporation performing similar functions. If the 
Conversion Date is prior to the earlier of (i) the six month anniversary of the Original Issue Date or (ii) the Effective Date, 
then the Conversion Shares shall bear a restrictive legend in the following form, as appropriate:

“NEITHER THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS 
CERTIFICATE NOR THE SECURITIES INTO WHICH THESE SECURITIES ARE EXERCISABLE 
HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR 
APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS. THE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE OFFERED FOR SALE, 
SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR ASSIGNED (I) IN THE ABSENCE OF (A) AN EFFECTIVE 
REGISTRATION STATEMENT FOR THE SECURITIES UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, 
AS AMENDED, OR (B) AN OPINION OF COUNSEL (WHICH COUNSEL SHALL BE SELECTED BY 
THE HOLDER), IN A GENERALLY ACCEPTABLE FORM, THAT REGISTRATION IS NOT 
REQUIRED UNDER SAID ACT OR (II) UNLESS SOLD PURSUANT TO RULE 144 OR RULE 144A 
UNDER SAID ACT. NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, THE SECURITIES MAY BE 
PLEDGED IN CONNECTION WITH A BONA FIDE MARGIN ACCOUNT OR OTHER LOAN OR 
FINANCING ARRANGEMENT SECURED BY THE SECURITIES.”

iii. Failure to Deliver Certificates. If, in the case of any Notice of Conversion, such certificate or certificates are 
not delivered to or as directed by the applicable Holder by the Share Delivery Date, the Holder shall be entitled to elect by 
written notice to the Company at any time on or before its receipt of such certificate or certificates, to rescind such 
Conversion, in which event the Company shall promptly return to the Holder any original Note delivered to the Company 
and the Holder shall promptly return to the Company the Common Stock certificates issued to such Holder pursuant to the 
rescinded Conversion Notice.
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iv. Obligation Absolute; Partial Liquidated Damages. The Company’s obligations to issue and deliver the 
Conversion Shares upon conversion of this Note in accordance with the terms hereof are absolute and unconditional, 
irrespective of any action or inaction by the Holder to enforce the same, any waiver or consent with respect to any 
provision hereof, the recovery of any judgment against any Person or any action to enforce the same, or any setoff, 
counterclaim, recoupment, limitation or termination, or any breach or alleged breach by the Holder or any other Person of 
any obligation to the Company or any violation or alleged violation of law by the Holder or any other Person, and 
irrespective of any other circumstance which might otherwise limit such obligation of the Company to the Holder in 
connection with the issuance of such Conversion Shares; provided, however, that such delivery shall not operate as a 
waiver by the Company of any such action the Company may have against the Holder. In the event the Holder of this Note 
shall elect to convert any or all of the outstanding principal amount hereof, the Company may not refuse conversion based 
on any claim that the Holder or anyone associated or affiliated with the Holder has been engaged in any violation of law, 
agreement or for any other reason, unless an injunction from a court, on notice to Holder, restraining and or enjoining 
conversion of all or part of this Note shall have been sought and obtained, and the Company posts a surety bond for the 
benefit of the Holder in the amount of 150% of the outstanding principal amount of this Note, which is subject to the 
injunction, which bond shall remain in effect until the completion of arbitration/litigation of the underlying dispute and the 
proceeds of which shall be payable to the Holder to the extent it obtains judgment. In the absence of such injunction, the 
Company shall issue Conversion Shares or, if applicable, cash, upon a properly noticed conversion. If the Company fails 
for any reason to deliver to the Holder such certificate or certificates pursuant to Section 4(c)(ii) by the Share Delivery 
Date, the Company shall pay to the Holder, in cash, as liquidated damages and not as a penalty, for each $1,000 of 

principal amount being converted, $10 per Trading Day (increasing to $20 per Trading Day on the fifth (5th) Trading Day 
after such liquidated damages begin to accrue) for each Trading Day after such Share Delivery Date until such certificates 
are delivered or Holder rescinds such conversion. Nothing herein shall limit a Holder’s right to pursue actual damages or 
declare an Event of Default pursuant to Section 6 hereof for the Company’s failure to deliver Conversion Shares within 
the period specified herein and the Holder shall have the right to pursue all remedies available to it hereunder, at law or in 
equity including, without limitation, a decree of specific performance and/or injunctive relief. The exercise of any such 
rights shall not prohibit the Holder from seeking to enforce damages pursuant to any other Section hereof or under 
applicable law.
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v. Compensation for Buy-In on Failure to Timely Deliver Certificates Upon Conversion. In addition to any other 
rights available to the Holder, if the Company fails for any reason to deliver to the Holder such certificate or certificates 
by the Share Delivery Date pursuant to Section 4(c)(ii), and if after such Share Delivery Date the Holder is required by its 
brokerage firm to purchase (in an open market transaction or otherwise), or the Holder’s brokerage firm otherwise 
purchases, shares of Common Stock to deliver in satisfaction of a sale by the Holder of the Conversion Shares which the 
Holder was entitled to receive upon the conversion relating to such Share Delivery Date (a “Buy-In”), then the Company 
shall (A) pay in cash to the Holder (in addition to any other remedies available to or elected by the Holder) the amount, if 
any, by which (x) the Holder’s total purchase price (including any brokerage commissions) for the Common Stock so 
purchased exceeds (y) the product of (1) the aggregate number of shares of Common Stock that the Holder was entitled to 
receive from the conversion at issue multiplied by (2) the actual sale price at which the sell order giving rise to such 
purchase obligation was executed (including any brokerage commissions) and (B) at the option of the Holder, either 
reissue (if surrendered) this Note in a principal amount equal to the principal amount of the attempted conversion (in 
which case such conversion shall be deemed rescinded) or deliver to the Holder the number of shares of Common Stock 
that would have been issued if the Company had timely complied with its delivery requirements under Section 4(c)(ii). For 
example, if the Holder purchases Common Stock having a total purchase price of $11,000 to cover a Buy-In with respect 
to an attempted conversion of this Note with respect to which the actual sale price of the Conversion Shares (including any 
brokerage commissions) giving rise to such purchase obligation was a total of $10,000 under clause (A) of the 
immediately preceding sentence, the Company shall be required to pay the Holder $1,000. The Holder shall provide the 
Company written notice indicating the amounts payable to the Holder in respect of the Buy-In and, upon request of the 
Company, evidence of the amount of such loss. Nothing herein shall limit a Holder’s right to pursue any other remedies 
available to it hereunder, at law or in equity including, without limitation, a decree of specific performance and/or 
injunctive relief with respect to the Company’s failure to timely deliver certificates representing shares of Common Stock 
upon conversion of this Note as required pursuant to the terms hereof.

vi. Reservation of Shares Issuable Upon Conversion. The Company covenants that it will at all times reserve and 
keep available out of its authorized and unissued shares of Common Stock a number of shares of Common Stock at least 
equal to 400% of the Required Minimum (to be adjusted monthly) for the sole purpose of issuance upon conversion of this 
Note and payment of interest on this Note, each as herein provided, free from preemptive rights or any other actual 
contingent purchase rights of Persons other than the Holder (and the other holders of the Note), not less than such 
aggregate number of shares of the Common Stock as shall (subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the Purchase 
Agreement) be issuable (taking into account the adjustments and restrictions of Section 5) upon the conversion of the then 
outstanding principal amount of this Note and payment of interest hereunder. The Company covenants that all shares of 
Common Stock that shall be so issuable shall, upon issue, be duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable.
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vii. Fractional Shares. No fractional shares or scrip representing fractional shares shall be issued upon the 
conversion of this Note. As to any fraction of a share which the Holder would otherwise be entitled to purchase upon such 
conversion, the Company shall at its election, either pay a cash adjustment in respect of such final fraction in an amount 
equal to such fraction multiplied by the Conversion Price or round up to the next whole share.

viii. Transfer Taxes and Expenses. The issuance of certificates for shares of the Common Stock on conversion of 
this Note shall be made without charge to the Holder hereof for any documentary stamp or similar taxes that may be 
payable in respect of the issue or delivery of such certificates, provided that, the Company shall not be required to pay any 
tax that may be payable in respect of any transfer involved in the issuance and delivery of any such certificate upon 
conversion in a name other than that of the Holder of this Note so converted and the Company shall not be required to 
issue or deliver such certificates unless or until the Person or Persons requesting the issuance thereof shall have paid to the 
Company the amount of such tax or shall have established to the satisfaction of the Company that such tax has been paid. 
The Company shall pay all Transfer Agent fees required for same-day processing of any Notice of Conversion.

d) Holder’s Conversion Limitations. The Company shall not effect any conversion of this Note, and a Holder shall not 
have the right to convert any portion of this Note, to the extent that after giving effect to the conversion set forth on the applicable 
Notice of Conversion, the Holder (together with the Holder’s Affiliates, and any Persons acting as a group together with the Holder 
or any of the Holder’s Affiliates) would beneficially own in excess of the Beneficial Ownership Limitation (as defined below). For 
purposes of the foregoing sentence, the number of shares of Common Stock beneficially owned by the Holder and its Affiliates 
shall include the number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of this Note with respect to which such 
determination is being made, but shall exclude the number of shares of Common Stock which are issuable upon (i) conversion of 
the remaining, unconverted principal amount of this Note beneficially owned by the Holder or any of its Affiliates and (ii) exercise 
or conversion of the unexercised or unconverted portion of any other securities of the Company subject to a limitation on 
conversion or exercise analogous to the limitation contained herein (including, without limitation, any other Notes) beneficially 
owned by the Holder or any of its Affiliates. Except as set forth in the preceding sentence, for purposes of this Section 4(d), 
beneficial ownership shall be calculated in accordance with Section 13(d) of the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations 
promulgated thereunder. To the extent that the limitation contained in this Section 4(d) applies, the determination of whether this 
Note is convertible (in relation to other securities owned by the Holder together with any Affiliates) and of which principal amount 
of this Note is convertible shall be in the sole discretion of the Holder, and the submission of a Notice of Conversion shall be 
deemed to be the Holder’s determination of whether this Note may be converted (in relation to other securities owned by the 
Holder together with any Affiliates) and which principal amount of this Note is convertible, in each case subject to the Beneficial 
Ownership Limitation. To ensure compliance with this restriction, the Holder will be deemed to represent to the Company each 
time it delivers a Notice of Conversion that such Notice of Conversion has not violated the restrictions set forth in this paragraph 
and the Company shall have no obligation to verify or confirm the accuracy of such determination. In addition, a determination as 
to any group status as contemplated above shall be determined in accordance with Section 13(d) of the Exchange Act and the rules 
and regulations promulgated thereunder. For purposes of this Section 4(d), in determining the number of outstanding shares of 
Common Stock, the Holder may rely on the number of outstanding shares of Common Stock as stated in the most recent of the 
following: (i) the Company’s most recent periodic or annual report filed with the Commission, as the case may be, (ii) a more 
recent public announcement by the Company, or (iii) a more recent written notice by the Company or the Company’s transfer agent 
setting forth the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding. Upon the written or oral request of a Holder, the Company shall 
within two Trading Days confirm orally and in writing to the Holder the number of shares of Common Stock then outstanding. In 
any case, the number of outstanding shares of Common Stock shall be determined after giving effect to the conversion or exercise 
of securities of the Company, including this Note, by the Holder or its Affiliates since the date as of which such number of 
outstanding shares of Common Stock was reported. The “Beneficial Ownership Limitation” shall be 4.99% of the number of shares 
of the Common Stock outstanding immediately after giving effect to the issuance of shares of Common Stock issuable upon 
conversion of this Note held by the Holder. The Holder, upon not less than 61 days’ prior notice to the Company, may increase or 
decrease the Beneficial Ownership Limitation provisions of this Section 4(d), provided that the Beneficial Ownership Limitation in 
no event exceeds 9.99% of the number of shares of the Common Stock outstanding immediately after giving effect to the issuance 
of shares of Common Stock upon conversion of this Note held by the Holder and the Beneficial Ownership Limitation provisions 

of this Section 4(d) shall continue to apply. Any such increase or decrease will not be effective until the 61st day after such notice is 
delivered to the Company. The Beneficial Ownership Limitation provisions of this paragraph shall be construed and implemented 
in a manner otherwise than in strict conformity with the terms of this Section 4(d) to correct this paragraph (or any portion hereof) 
which may be defective or inconsistent with the intended Beneficial Ownership Limitation contained herein or to make changes or 
supplements necessary or desirable to properly give effect to such limitation. The limitations contained in this paragraph shall apply 
to a successor holder of this Note.

12

Page 122 of 145Submission Proof - D:\Dropbox (SEC Compliance)\2016 OPERATIONS\2016 EDGAR\04_April\...

4/15/2016file:///D:/Dropbox%20(SEC%20Compliance)/2016%20OPERATIONS/2016%20EDGAR/04_April/DIR...



Section 5. Certain Adjustments.

a) Stock Dividends and Stock Splits. If the Company, at any time while this Note is outstanding: (i) pays a stock dividend 
or otherwise makes a distribution or distributions payable in shares of Common Stock on shares of Common Stock or any Common 
Stock Equivalents (which, for avoidance of doubt, shall not include any shares of Common Stock issued by the Company upon 
conversion of, or payment of interest on, the Note), (ii) subdivides outstanding shares of Common Stock into a larger number of 
shares, (iii) combines (including by way of a reverse stock split) outstanding shares of Common Stock into a smaller number of 
shares or (iv) issues, in the event of a reclassification of shares of the Common Stock, any shares of capital stock of the Company, 
then the Conversion Price shall be multiplied by a fraction of which the numerator shall be the number of shares of Common Stock 
(excluding any treasury shares of the Company) outstanding immediately before such event, and of which the denominator shall be 
the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding immediately after such event. Any adjustment made pursuant to this Section 
shall become effective immediately after the record date for the determination of stockholders entitled to receive such dividend or 
distribution and shall become effective immediately after the effective date in the case of a subdivision, combination or re-
classification.

b) Subsequent Equity Sales. If, at any time while this Note is outstanding, the Company or any Subsidiary, as applicable, 
sells or grants any option to purchase or sells or grants any right to reprice, or otherwise disposes of or issues (or announces any 
sale, grant or any option to purchase or other disposition), any Common Stock or Common Stock Equivalents entitling any Person 
to acquire shares of Common Stock at an effective price per share that is lower than the then Conversion Price (such lower price, 
the “Base Conversion Price” and such issuances, collectively, a “Dilutive Issuance”) (if the holder of the Common Stock or 
Common Stock Equivalents so issued shall at any time, whether by operation of purchase price adjustments, reset provisions, 
floating conversion, exercise or exchange prices or otherwise, or due to warrants, options or rights per share which are issued in 
connection with such issuance, be entitled to receive shares of Common Stock at an effective price per share that is lower than the 
Conversion Price, such issuance shall be deemed to have occurred for less than the Conversion Price on such date of the Dilutive 
Issuance), then the Conversion Price shall be reduced to equal the Base Conversion Price. Such adjustment shall be made whenever 
such Common Stock or Common Stock Equivalents are issued. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no adjustment will be made under 
this Section 5(b) in respect of an Exempt Issuance. If the Company enters into a Variable Rate Transaction, despite the prohibition 
set forth in the Purchase Agreement, the Company shall be deemed to have issued Common Stock or Common Stock Equivalents 
at the lowest possible conversion price at which such securities may be converted or exercised. The Company shall notify the 
Holder in writing, no later than the Trading Day following the issuance of any Common Stock or Common Stock Equivalents 
subject to this Section 5(b), indicating therein the applicable issuance price, or applicable reset price, exchange price, conversion 
price and other pricing terms (such notice, the “Dilutive Issuance Notice”). For purposes of clarification, whether or not the 
Company provides a Dilutive Issuance Notice pursuant to this Section 5(b), upon the occurrence of any Dilutive Issuance, the 
Holder is entitled to receive a number of Conversion Shares based upon the Base Conversion Price on or after the date of such 
Dilutive Issuance, regardless of whether the Holder accurately refers to the Base Conversion Price in the Notice of Conversion.
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c) Subsequent Rights Offerings. In addition to any adjustments pursuant to Section 5(a) above, if at any time the Company 
grants, issues or sells any Common Stock Equivalents or rights to purchase stock, warrants, securities or other property pro rata to 
the record holders of any class of shares of Common Stock (the “Purchase Rights”), then the Holder will be entitled to acquire, 
upon the terms applicable to such Purchase Rights, the aggregate Purchase Rights which the Holder could have acquired if the 
Holder had held the number of shares of Common Stock acquirable upon complete conversion of this Note (without regard to any 
limitations on exercise hereof, including without limitation, the Beneficial Ownership Limitation) immediately before the date on 
which a record is taken for the grant, issuance or sale of such Purchase Rights, or, if no such record is taken, the date as of which 
the record holders of shares of Common Stock are to be determined for the grant, issue or sale of such Purchase Rights (provided, 
however, to the extent that the Holder’s right to participate in any such Purchase Right would result in the Holder exceeding the 
Beneficial Ownership Limitation, then the Holder shall not be entitled to participate in such Purchase Right to such extent (or 
beneficial ownership of such shares of Common Stock as a result of such Purchase Right to such extent) and such Purchase Right 
to such extent shall be held in abeyance for the Holder until such time, if ever, as its right thereto would not result in the Holder 
exceeding the Beneficial Ownership Limitation).

d) Pro Rata Distributions. During such time as this Note is outstanding, if the Company shall declare or make any 
dividend or other distribution of its assets (or rights to acquire its assets) to holders of shares of Common Stock, by way of return of 
capital or otherwise (including, without limitation, any distribution of cash, stock or other securities, property or options by way of 
a dividend, spin off, reclassification, corporate rearrangement, scheme of arrangement or other similar transaction) (a 
“Distribution”), at any time after the issuance of this Note, then, in each such case, the Holder shall be entitled to participate in such 
Distribution to the same extent that the Holder would have participated therein if the Holder had held the number of shares of 
Common Stock acquirable upon complete exercise of this Note (without regard to any limitations on exercise hereof, including 
without limitation, the Beneficial Ownership Limitation) immediately before the date of which a record is taken for such 
Distribution, or, if no such record is taken, the date as of which the record holders of shares of Common Stock are to be determined 
for the participation in such Distribution (provided, however, to the extent that the Holder’s right to participate in any such 
Distribution would result in the Holder exceeding the Beneficial Ownership Limitation, then the Holder shall not be entitled to 
participate in such Distribution to such extent (or in the beneficial ownership of any shares of Common Stock as a result of such 
Distribution to such extent) and the portion of such Distribution shall be held in abeyance for the benefit of the Holder until such 
time, if ever, as its right thereto would not result in the Holder exceeding the Beneficial Ownership Limitation).
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e) Fundamental Transaction. If, at any time while this Note is outstanding, (i) the Company, directly or indirectly, in one 
or more related transactions effects any merger or consolidation of the Company with or into another Person, (ii) the Company, 
directly or indirectly, effects any sale, lease, license, assignment, transfer, conveyance or other disposition of all or substantially all 
of its assets in one or a series of related transactions, (iii) any, direct or indirect, purchase offer, tender offer or exchange offer 
(whether by the Company or another Person) is completed pursuant to which holders of Common Stock are permitted to sell, tender 
or exchange their shares for other securities, cash or property and has been accepted by the holders of 50% or more of the 
outstanding Common Stock, (iv) the Company, directly or indirectly, in one or more related transactions effects any 
reclassification, reorganization or recapitalization of the Common Stock or any compulsory share exchange pursuant to which the 
Common Stock is effectively converted into or exchanged for other securities, cash or property, (v) the Company, directly or 
indirectly, in one or more related transactions consummates a stock or share purchase agreement or other business combination 
(including, without limitation, a reorganization, recapitalization, spin-off or scheme of arrangement) with another Person whereby 
such other Person acquires more than 50% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock (not including any shares of Common Stock 
held by the other Person or other Persons making or party to, or associated or affiliated with the other Persons making or party to, 
such stock or share purchase agreement or other business combination) (each a “Fundamental Transaction”), then, upon any 
subsequent conversion of this Note, the Holder shall have the right to receive, for each Conversion Share that would have been 
issuable upon such conversion immediately prior to the occurrence of such Fundamental Transaction (without regard to any 
limitation in Section 4(d) on the conversion of this Note), the number of shares of Common Stock of the successor or acquiring 
corporation or of the Company, if it is the surviving corporation, and any additional consideration (the “Alternate Consideration”) 
receivable as a result of such Fundamental Transaction by a holder of the number of shares of Common Stock for which this Note 
is convertible immediately prior to such Fundamental Transaction (without regard to any limitation in Section 4(d) on the 
conversion of this Note). For purposes of any such conversion, the determination of the Conversion Price shall be appropriately 
adjusted to apply to such Alternate Consideration based on the amount of Alternate Consideration issuable in respect of one (1) 
share of Common Stock in such Fundamental Transaction, and the Company shall apportion the Conversion Price among the 
Alternate Consideration in a reasonable manner reflecting the relative value of any different components of the Alternate 
Consideration. If holders of Common Stock are given any choice as to the securities, cash or property to be received in a 
Fundamental Transaction, then the Holder shall be given the same choice as to the Alternate Consideration it receives upon any 
conversion of this Note following such Fundamental Transaction. The Company shall cause any successor entity in a Fundamental 
Transaction in which the Company is not the survivor (the “Successor Entity”) to assume in writing all of the obligations of the 
Company under this Note and the other Transaction Documents (as defined in the Purchase Agreement) in accordance with the 
provisions of this Section 5(e) pursuant to written agreements in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Holder and 
approved by the Holder (without unreasonable delay) prior to such Fundamental Transaction and shall, at the option of the holder 
of this Note, deliver to the Holder in exchange for this Note a security of the Successor Entity evidenced by a written instrument 
substantially similar in form and substance to this Note which is convertible for a corresponding number of shares of capital stock 
of such Successor Entity (or its parent entity) equivalent to the shares of Common Stock acquirable and receivable upon conversion 
of this Note (without regard to any limitations on the conversion of this Note) prior to such Fundamental Transaction, and with a 
conversion price which applies the conversion price hereunder to such shares of capital stock (but taking into account the relative 
value of the shares of Common Stock pursuant to such Fundamental Transaction and the value of such shares of capital stock, such 
number of shares of capital stock and such conversion price being for the purpose of protecting the economic value of this Note 
immediately prior to the consummation of such Fundamental Transaction), and which is reasonably satisfactory in form and 
substance to the Holder. Upon the occurrence of any such Fundamental Transaction, the Successor Entity shall succeed to, and be 
substituted for (so that from and after the date of such Fundamental Transaction, the provisions of this Note and the other 
Transaction Documents referring to the “Company” shall refer instead to the Successor Entity), and may exercise every right and 
power of the Company and shall assume all of the obligations of the Company under this Note and the other Transaction 
Documents with the same effect as if such Successor Entity had been named as the Company herein.
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f) Calculations. All calculations under this Section 5 shall be made to the nearest cent or the nearest 1/100th of a share, as 
the case may be. For purposes of this Section 5, the number of shares of Common Stock deemed to be issued and outstanding as of 
a given date shall be the sum of the number of shares of Common Stock (excluding any treasury shares of the Company) issued and 
outstanding.

g) Notice to the Holder.

i. Adjustment to Conversion Price. Whenever the Conversion Price is adjusted pursuant to any provision of this 
Section 5, the Company shall promptly deliver to each Holder a notice setting forth the Conversion Price after such 
adjustment and setting forth a brief statement of the facts requiring such adjustment.

ii. Notice to Allow Conversion by Holder. If (A) the Company shall declare a dividend (or any other distribution 
in whatever form) on the Common Stock, (B) the Company shall declare a special nonrecurring cash dividend on or a 
redemption of the Common Stock, (C) the Company shall authorize the granting to all holders of the Common Stock of 
rights or warrants to subscribe for or purchase any shares of capital stock of any class or of any rights, (D) the approval of 
any stockholders of the Company shall be required in connection with any reclassification of the Common Stock, any 
consolidation or merger to which the Company is a party, any sale or transfer of all or substantially all of the assets of the 
Company, or any compulsory share exchange whereby the Common Stock is converted into other securities, cash or 
property or (E) the Company shall authorize the voluntary or involuntary dissolution, liquidation or winding up of the 
affairs of the Company, then, in each case, the Company shall cause to be filed at each office or agency maintained for the 
purpose of conversion of this Note, and shall cause to be delivered to the Holder at its last address as it shall appear upon 
the Note Register, at least twenty (20) calendar days prior to the applicable record or effective date hereinafter specified, a 
notice stating (x) the date on which a record is to be taken for the purpose of such dividend, distribution, redemption, 
rights or warrants, or if a record is not to be taken, the date as of which the holders of the Common Stock of record to be 
entitled to such dividend, distributions, redemption, rights or warrants are to be determined or (y) the date on which such 
reclassification, consolidation, merger, sale, transfer or share exchange is expected to become effective or close, and the 
date as of which it is expected that holders of the Common Stock of record shall be entitled to exchange their shares of the 
Common Stock for securities, cash or other property deliverable upon such reclassification, consolidation, merger, sale, 
transfer or share exchange, provided that the failure to deliver such notice or any defect therein or in the delivery thereof 
shall not affect the validity of the corporate action required to be specified in such notice. To the extent that any notice 
provided hereunder constitutes, or contains, material, non-public information regarding the Company or any of the 
Subsidiaries, the Company shall simultaneously file such notice with the Commission pursuant to a Current Report on 
Form 8-K. The Holder shall remain entitled to convert this Note during the 20-day period commencing on the date of such 
notice through the effective date of the event triggering such notice except as may otherwise be expressly set forth herein.
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Section 6. Events of Default.

a) “Event of Default” means, wherever used herein, any of the following events (whatever the reason for such event and 
whether such event shall be voluntary or involuntary or effected by operation of law or pursuant to any judgment, decree or order 
of any court, or any order, rule or regulation of any administrative or governmental body):

i. any default in the payment of (A) the principal amount of any Note or (B) interest, liquidated damages and 
other amounts owing to a Holder on any Note, as and when the same shall become due and payable (whether on a 
Conversion Date or the Maturity Date or by acceleration or otherwise) which default, solely in the case of an interest 
payment or other default under clause (B) above, is not cured within 3 Trading Days;

ii. the Company shall fail to observe or perform any other covenant or agreement contained in the Note (other 
than a breach by the Company of its obligations to deliver shares of Common Stock to the Holder upon conversion, which 
breach is addressed in clause (xi) below) which failure is not cured, if possible to cure, within the earlier to occur of (A) 5 
Trading Days after notice of such failure sent by the Holder or by any other Holder to the Company and (B) 10 Trading 
Days after the Company has become or should have become aware of such failure;
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iii. a default or event of default (subject to any grace or cure period provided in the applicable agreement, 
document or instrument) shall occur under (A) any of the Transaction Documents or (B) any other material agreement, 
lease, document or instrument to which the Company or any Subsidiary is obligated (and not covered by clause (vi) 
below);

iv. any representation or warranty made in this Note, any other Transaction Documents, any written statement 
pursuant hereto or thereto or any other report, financial statement or certificate made or delivered to the Holder or any 
other Holder shall be untrue or incorrect in any material respect as of the date when made or deemed made;

v. the Company or any Significant Subsidiary (as such term is defined in Rule 1-02(w) of Regulation S-X) shall 
be subject to a Bankruptcy Event;

vi. the Company or any Subsidiary shall default on any of its obligations under any mortgage, credit agreement or 
other facility, indenture agreement, factoring agreement or other instrument under which there may be issued, or by which 
there may be secured or evidenced, any indebtedness for borrowed money or money due under any long term leasing or 
factoring arrangement that (a) involves an obligation greater than $150,000, whether such indebtedness now exists or shall 
hereafter be created, and (b) results in such indebtedness becoming or being declared due and payable prior to the date on 
which it would otherwise become due and payable;

vii. the Common Stock shall not be eligible for listing or quotation for trading on a Trading Market and shall not 
be eligible to resume listing or quotation for trading thereon within five Trading Days or the transfer of shares of Common 
Stock through the Depository Trust Company System is no longer available or “chilled”;

viii. the Company shall be a party to any Change of Control Transaction or Fundamental Transaction or shall 
agree to sell or dispose of all or in excess of 33% of its assets in one transaction or a series of related transactions (whether 
or not such sale would constitute a Change of Control Transaction);

ix. the Company shall fail for any reason to deliver certificates via DWAC to a Holder prior to the fifth Trading 
Day after a Conversion Date pursuant to Section 4(c) or the Company shall provide at any time notice to the Holder, 
including by way of public announcement, of the Company’s intention to not honor requests for conversions of the Note 
in accordance with the terms hereof;

x. the Company fails to file with the Commission any required reports under Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange 
Act such that it is not in compliance with Rule 144(c)(1) (or Rule 144(i)(2), if applicable);
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xi. if the Borrower or any Significant Subsidiary shall: (i) apply for or consent to the appointment of a receiver, trustee, 
custodian or liquidator of it or any of its properties, (ii) admit in writing its inability to pay its debts as they mature, (iii) make a 
general assignment for the benefit of creditors, (iv) be adjudicated a bankrupt or insolvent or be the subject of an order for relief 
under Title 11 of the United States Code or any bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, readjustment of debt, dissolution or 
liquidation law or statute of any other jurisdiction or foreign country, or (v) file a voluntary petition in bankruptcy, or a petition or 
an answer seeking reorganization or an arrangement with creditors or to take advantage or any bankruptcy, reorganization, 
insolvency, readjustment of debt, dissolution or liquidation law or statute, or an answer admitting the material allegations of a 
petition filed against it in any proceeding under any such law, or (vi) take or permit to be taken any action in furtherance of or for 
the purpose of effecting any of the foregoing;

xii. if any order, judgment or decree shall be entered, without the application, approval or consent of the Borrower or any 
Significant Subsidiary, by any court of competent jurisdiction, approving a petition seeking liquidation or reorganization of the 
Borrower or any Subsidiary, or appointing a receiver, trustee, custodian or liquidator of the Borrower or any Subsidiary, or of all or 
any substantial part of its assets, and such order, judgment or decree shall continue unstayed and in effect for any period of sixty 
(60) days;

xiii. the occurrence of any levy upon or seizure or attachment of, or any uninsured loss of or damage to, any property of 
the Borrower or any Subsidiary having an aggregate fair value or repair cost (as the case may be) in excess of $100,000 
individually or in the aggregate, and any such levy, seizure or attachment shall not be set aside, bonded or discharged within thirty 
(30) days after the date thereof;

xiv. the Company shall fail to maintain sufficient reserved shares pursuant to Section 4.11 of the Purchase Agreement; or

xv. any monetary judgment, writ or similar final process shall be entered or filed against the Company, any subsidiary or 
any of their respective property or other assets for more than $150,000, and such judgment, writ or similar final process shall 
remain unvacated, unbonded or unstayed for a period of 45 calendar days.
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b) Remedies Upon Event of Default. If any Event of Default occurs, the Company shall have five (5) days to cure such 
Event of Default. If following the five day period the Event of Default remains, then the outstanding principal amount of this Note, 
plus accrued but unpaid interest, liquidated damages and other amounts owing in respect thereof through the date of acceleration, 
shall become, at the Holder’s election, immediately due and payable in cash at the Mandatory Default Amount. Commencing 5 
days after the occurrence of any Event of Default that results in the eventual acceleration of this Note, the interest rate on this Note 
shall accrue at an additional interest rate equal to the lesser of 2% per month (24% per annum) or the maximum rate permitted 
under applicable law. Upon the payment in full of the Mandatory Default Amount, the Holder shall promptly surrender this Note to 
or as directed by the Company. In connection with such acceleration described herein, the Holder need not provide, and the 
Company hereby waives, any presentment, demand, protest or other notice of any kind, and the Holder may immediately and 
without expiration of any grace period enforce any and all of its rights and remedies hereunder and all other remedies available to it 
under applicable law. Such acceleration may be rescinded and annulled by Holder at any time prior to payment hereunder and the 
Holder shall have all rights as a holder of the Note until such time, if any, as the Holder receives full payment pursuant to this 
Section 6(b). No such rescission or annulment shall affect any subsequent Event of Default or impair any right consequent thereon. 
No such rescission or annulment shall affect any subsequent Event of Default or impair any right consequent thereon; and (ii) in 
addition to any other remedies herein and notwithstanding any other provision in this Note, in addition to any other rights and 
remedies available to the Holder in an Event of Default, the Conversion Price in effect on any Conversion Date shall be equal to the 
Alternate Conversion Price, subject to adjustment herein, without any notice or any action taken by the Holder.
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Section 7. Miscellaneous.

a) Notices. Any and all notices or other communications or deliveries to be provided by the Holder hereunder, including, 
without limitation, any Notice of Conversion, shall be in writing and delivered personally, by facsimile, or sent by a nationally 
recognized overnight courier service, addressed to the Company, at the address set forth above, or such other facsimile number or 
address as the Company may specify for such purposes by notice to the Holder delivered in accordance with this Section 7(a). Any 
and all notices or other communications or deliveries to be provided by the Company hereunder shall be in writing and delivered 
personally, by facsimile, or sent by a nationally recognized overnight courier service addressed to each Holder at the facsimile 
number or address of the Holder appearing on the books of the Company, or if no such facsimile number or address appears on the 
books of the Company, at the principal place of business of such Holder, as set forth in the Purchase Agreement. Any notice or 
other communication or deliveries hereunder shall be deemed given and effective on the earliest of (i) the date of transmission, if 
such notice or communication is delivered via facsimile at the facsimile number set forth on the signature pages attached hereto 
prior to 5:30 p.m. (New York City time) on any date, (ii) the next Trading Day after the date of transmission, if such notice or 
communication is delivered via facsimile at the facsimile number set forth on the signature pages attached hereto on a day that is 
not a Trading Day or later than 5:30 p.m. (New York City time) on any Trading Day, (iii) the second Trading Day following the 
date of mailing, if sent by U.S. nationally recognized overnight courier service or (iv) upon actual receipt by the party to whom 
such notice is required to be given.
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b) Absolute Obligation. Except as expressly provided herein, no provision of this Note shall alter or impair the obligation 
of the Company, which is absolute and unconditional, to pay the principal of, liquidated damages and accrued interest, as 
applicable, on this Note at the time, place, and rate, and in the coin or currency, herein prescribed. This Note is a direct debt 
obligation of the Company. This Note ranks pari passu with all other Notes now or hereafter issued under the terms set forth herein.

c) Lost or Mutilated Note. If this Note shall be mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed, the Company shall execute and deliver, 
in exchange and substitution for and upon cancellation of a mutilated Note, or in lieu of or in substitution for a lost, stolen or 
destroyed Note, a new Note for the principal amount of this Note so mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed, but only upon receipt of 
evidence of such loss, theft or destruction of such Note, and of the ownership hereof, reasonably satisfactory to the Company.

d) Governing Law. All questions concerning the construction, validity, enforcement and interpretation of this Note shall 
be governed by and construed and enforced in accordance with the internal laws of the State of New York, without regard to the 
principles of conflict of laws thereof. Each party agrees that all legal proceedings concerning the interpretation, enforcement and 
defense of the transactions contemplated by any of the Transaction Documents (whether brought against a party hereto or its 
respective Affiliates, directors, officers, shareholders, employees or agents) shall be commenced in the state and federal courts 
sitting in the City of New York, Borough of Manhattan (the “New York Courts”). Each party hereto hereby irrevocably submits to 
the exclusive jurisdiction of the New York Courts for the adjudication of any dispute hereunder or in connection herewith or with 
any transaction contemplated hereby or discussed herein (including with respect to the enforcement of any of the Transaction 
Documents), and hereby irrevocably waives, and agrees not to assert in any suit, action or proceeding, any claim that it is not 
personally subject to the jurisdiction of such New York Courts, or such New York Courts are improper or inconvenient venue for 
such proceeding. Each party hereby irrevocably waives personal service of process and consents to process being served in any 
such suit, action or proceeding by mailing a copy thereof via registered or certified mail or overnight delivery (with evidence of 
delivery) to such party at the address in effect for notices to it under this Note and agrees that such service shall constitute good and 
sufficient service of process and notice thereof. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to limit in any way any right to serve 
process in any other manner permitted by applicable law. Each party hereto hereby irrevocably waives, to the fullest extent 
permitted by applicable law, any and all right to trial by jury in any legal proceeding arising out of or relating to this Note or the 
transactions contemplated hereby. If any party shall commence an action or proceeding to enforce any provisions of this Note, then 
the prevailing party in such action or proceeding shall be reimbursed by the other party for its attorneys’ fees and other costs and 
expenses incurred in the investigation, preparation and prosecution of such action or proceeding.

e) Waiver. Any waiver by the Company or the Holder of a breach of any provision of this Note shall not operate as or be 
construed to be a waiver of any other breach of such provision or of any breach of any other provision of this Note. The failure of 
the Company or the Holder to insist upon strict adherence to any term of this Note on one or more occasions shall not be 
considered a waiver or deprive that party of the right thereafter to insist upon strict adherence to that term or any other term of this 
Note on any other occasion. Any waiver by the Company or the Holder must be in writing.

22

Page 132 of 145Submission Proof - D:\Dropbox (SEC Compliance)\2016 OPERATIONS\2016 EDGAR\04_April\...

4/15/2016file:///D:/Dropbox%20(SEC%20Compliance)/2016%20OPERATIONS/2016%20EDGAR/04_April/DIR...



f) Severability. If any provision of this Note is invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the balance of this Note shall remain in 
effect, and if any provision is inapplicable to any Person or circumstance, it shall nevertheless remain applicable to all other 
Persons and circumstances. If it shall be found that any interest or other amount deemed interest due hereunder violates the 
applicable law governing usury, the applicable rate of interest due hereunder shall automatically be lowered to equal the maximum 
rate of interest permitted under applicable law. The Company covenants (to the extent that it may lawfully do so) that it shall not at 
any time insist upon, plead, or in any manner whatsoever claim or take the benefit or advantage of, any stay, extension or usury law 
or other law which would prohibit or forgive the Company from paying all or any portion of the principal of or interest on this Note 
as contemplated herein, wherever enacted, now or at any time hereafter in force, or which may affect the covenants or the 
performance of this Note, and the Company (to the extent it may lawfully do so) hereby expressly waives all benefits or advantage 
of any such law, and covenants that it will not, by resort to any such law, hinder, delay or impede the execution of any power herein 
granted to the Holder, but will suffer and permit the execution of every such as though no such law has been enacted.

g) Remedies, Characterizations, Other Obligations, Breaches and Injunctive Relief. The remedies provided in this Note 
shall be cumulative and in addition to all other remedies available under this Note and any of the other Transaction Documents at 
law or in equity (including a decree of specific performance and/or other injunctive relief), and nothing herein shall limit the 
Holder’s right to pursue actual and consequential damages for any failure by the Company to comply with the terms of this Note. 
The Company covenants to the Holder that there shall be no characterization concerning this instrument other than as expressly 
provided herein. Amounts set forth or provided for herein with respect to payments, conversion and the like (and the computation 
thereof) shall be the amounts to be received by the Holder and shall not, except as expressly provided herein, be subject to any 
other obligation of the Company (or the performance thereof). The Company acknowledges that a breach by it of its obligations 
hereunder will cause irreparable harm to the Holder and that the remedy at law for any such breach may be inadequate. The 
Company therefore agrees that, in the event of any such breach or threatened breach, the Holder shall be entitled, in addition to all 
other available remedies, to an injunction restraining any such breach or any such threatened breach, without the necessity of 
showing economic loss and without any bond or other security being required. The Company shall provide all information and 
documentation to the Holder that is requested by the Holder to enable the Holder to confirm the Company’s compliance with the 
terms and conditions of this Note.

h) Next Business Day. Whenever any payment or other obligation hereunder shall be due on a day other than a Business 
Day, such payment shall be made on the next succeeding Business Day.

i) Headings. The headings contained herein are for convenience only, do not constitute a part of this Note and shall not be 
deemed to limit or affect any of the provisions hereof.

*********************

(Signature Pages Follow)
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Note to be duly executed by a duly authorized officer as of the date first 
above indicated.

DIRECTVIEW HOLDINGS, INC.

By:
Name:
Title:

Facsimile No. for delivery of Notices:
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ANNEX A

NOTICE OF CONVERSION

The undersigned hereby elects to convert principal under the 5% Original Issue Discount Convertible Promissory Note due March 
31, 2017 of DirectView, Inc., a Nevada corporation (the “Company”), into shares of common stock (the “Common Stock”), of the Company 
according to the conditions hereof, as of the date written below. If shares of Common Stock are to be issued in the name of a person other 
than the undersigned, the undersigned will pay all transfer taxes payable with respect thereto and is delivering herewith such certificates and 
opinions as reasonably requested by the Company in accordance therewith. No fee will be charged to the holder for any conversion, except 
for such transfer taxes, if any.

By the delivery of this Notice of Conversion the undersigned represents and warrants to the Company that its ownership of the 
Common Stock does not exceed the amounts specified under Section 4 of this Note, as determined in accordance with Section 13(d) of the 
Exchange Act.

The undersigned agrees to comply with the prospectus delivery requirements under the applicable securities laws in connection 
with any transfer of the aforesaid shares of Common Stock.

Conversion calculations:

Date to Effect Conversion:

Principal Amount of Note to be Converted:

Payment of Interest in Common Stock __ yes __ no
If yes, $_____ of Interest Accrued on Account of Conversion at Issue.

Number of shares of Common Stock to be issued:

Signature:

Name:

DWAC Instructions:

Broker No: ______________________________
Account No: ______________________________
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Schedule 1

CONVERSION SCHEDULE

This 5% Original Issue Discount Convertible Promissory Note due on March 31, 2017 in the original principal amount of $105,263.16 is 
issued by DirectView Holdings, Inc., a Nevada corporation. This Conversion Schedule reflects conversions made under Section 4 of the 
above referenced Note.

Dated:

Date of Conversion
(or for first entry, Original 

Issue Date) Amount of Conversion

Aggregate Principal Amount 
Remaining Subsequent to 

Conversion
(or original Principal Amount) Company Attest
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF

THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Roger Ralston, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Form 10-K of DirectView Holdings, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to 
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the 
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material 
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods present in this report;

4. I am responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 
15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13-a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant 
and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to 
us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed 
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about 
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such 
evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financing reporting that occurred during the registrant’s 
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is 
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the 
audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are 
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involved management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s 
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: April 14, 2016 By: /s/ Roger Ralston

Roger Ralston
Principal Executive Officer
DirectView Holdings, Inc. 
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Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF

THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Michele Ralston, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Form 10-K of DirectView Holdings, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to 
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the 
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material 
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods present in this report;

4. I am responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 
15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13-a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant 
and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to 
us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed 
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about 
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such 
evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financing reporting that occurred during the registrant’s 
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is 
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the 
audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are 
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involved management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s 
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: April 14, 2016 By: /s/ Michele Ralston

Michele Ralston 
Principal Financial Officer
DirectView Holdings, Inc.
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Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with this Annual Report of DirectView Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”), on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 
2015, as filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof, I, Roger Ralston, Principal Executive Officer of the 
Company, certify to the best of my knowledge, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sec. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Sec. 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 
of 2002, that:

(1) Such Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2015, fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) 
or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in such Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2015, fairly presents, in all 
material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: April 14, 2016 By: /s/ Roger Ralston

Roger Ralston
Principal Executive Officer 
DirectView Holdings, Inc. 
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Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with this Annual Report of DirectView Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”), on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 
2015, as filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof, I, Michele Ralston, Principal Financial Officer of the 
Company, certify to the best of my knowledge, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sec. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Sec. 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 
of 2002, that:

(1) Such Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2015, fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) 
or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in such Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2015, fairly presents, in all 
material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: April 14, 2016 By: /s/ Michele Ralston

Michele Ralston
Principal Financial Officer
DirectView Holdings, Inc. 
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